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ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

JOHN M. FORMELLA

ATTORNEY GENERAL

JANE E. YOUNG

DEPLTTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

August 13, 2021

His Excellency, Governor'Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to enter into subgrants with the programs
listed below, in an amount not to exceed $200,000, to support the enhancement of Child
Advocacy Center (CAC) services effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval
through June 30, 2023. 100% General Funds.

Funding is available in account number 02-20-20-200010-2601-073, Department of
Justice, Attorney General, Grants Non-Federal as follows:

Class

Account Subreciplent Vendor #

SFY

2022

Amount

SFY

2023

Amount

073-500580 Strafford County Child Advocacy Center 177478-B008 $9,000 $9,000

073-500581 The Granite State Children's Alliance 172495-BOOl $37,000 $37,000

073-500581 The Child Advocacy Center of Carroll County 165511-BOO 1 $9,000 $9,000

073-500581 Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital 177160-B002 $18,000 $18,000

073-500580 Merrimack County Child Advocacy Center 177435-B005 $9,000 $9,000

073-500581 Child Advocacy Center of Coos County, Inc. 167955-BOOl $9,000 $9,000

073-500581- Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Inc. 158817-BOOl $9,000 $9,000

TOTAL $100,000 $100,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of a Child Advocacy Center (CAC) is to standardize the investigation of
child abuse and neglect cases, minimize the trauma to the child victims by limiting the number of
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interviews the child must participate in and coordinate services for those children. The CACs
use a multi-disciplinary team approach to ensure a child's health and well-being is of primary
importance during the investigation process.

The DOJ is requesting approval to award funding to all of the State's CACs for the
support of continued services to children, the implementation of evidence-based practices and
the enhancement of community outreach and education.

The agencies listed above represent the entire CAC network in New Hampshire and all
centers are members of the Granite State Children's Alliance, making them all eligible for
funding under this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

John M. Formella

Attorney General

^#3269960



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrccipicnt hereby
Mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions.

l.l. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipient Name

Stratford County Child Advocacy Center

1.4. Subrecipient Address

259 County Farm Road, Suite 201, Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Subrecipient Phone #

(603) 749-2808

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-200010-2601-0

73-500580

1.7. Completion Date

06/30/2023

1.8. Grant Limitation

S

18,000.00

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."
1.11. Subrecipient Signature 1

Subrecipient Signature 2 If Applicable

1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor I

Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable

1.13. A^nowledgment: Slate of New Hampshire, County of pPOfLC> ,
before the undersigned o^cer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12., known^to me (or

satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block l.l ]., and acknowledged that he/she executed this
iti^WHil^nt in the capacity indicated in block 1.12.

14. ̂ q^ture of Notary Public or Justic^f the Peace
^ "\ \

f.l3.2.,^S^ Title of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
/^orAA-i'TuAi-l

t*W.*^State Agency Signature(s)

XfltHCeen Qarr

. 15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifG & C approval required)

By:, jy Assistant Attorney General, On: / /
7/29/2021

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2.SC0PE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA rOVF-RED. Except as otherwise speciHcally provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrecipieni shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE- COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become 9.3.
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.4.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the effective date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as *the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS- PAYMENT 9.5.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B.
attached hereto. 10.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7<.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nature, II.
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, II.I.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and II.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of alt 11.1.2
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation 11.1.3
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions. II. 1-4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 11,2.

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipieni shall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or It.2.1
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in 11.2.2
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to. costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
end services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipienc's normal business hours, and as often 11.2.3
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit the Stale to audit, examine, at^ reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters 12.1.
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Subrecipient" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, alTiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Subrecipieni shall, at its own expense, provide alt personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.
subgmntee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the Slate, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or
appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the Stale hereunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hereunder, the inteqjretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and hiVher decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA- RETENTION OF DATA' ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and 13.
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this A^eement, including, but not limited to, all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, chans, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Between the; Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant to the Stale, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United Slates or any other country by
anyone other than the Slate,
On and after the Effective Dale all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with ftjnds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, ̂ all have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or In part, all data.
rONDITlONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in> excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such fbnds become
available, if ever, and shall have the rig^t to terminate this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT- REMEDIES.

Any one or more of (he following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default");
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder. or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; end
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe lo the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Defkult; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both,
TERMINATION

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Ptoject, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant OfTicer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and (he Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, (he
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT DP INTEREST No Officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or canying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her
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14.

13.

16.

19,

20,

17,

17.1

17.1.1

17,1:2

pcnonal interesi or ibe imeresi of any corporation, partnership, or auociaiion 17,2.
in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.
SUBRECIPIENT-S RELATION TO THE STATE, in the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgr&ntec of the Subrecipient ere in all respects independent contractors, and 18,
are neither agents nor employees of the State, Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its
employees,
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State, None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
[NDEMNIFIGATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnifV end hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, bosed on, resulting from, arising out 21,
of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient,
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State, This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement, 22,
INSURANCE AND BOND

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or 23.
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee perfonning Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:
Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than S1,000,000 per occurrence
and S2,000.000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
S300.0(X) for property damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the Slate of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly deliver^ or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS, fliis Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, \^ich may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporated as part of this agrecmenL

Rev. 9/2013 Page 3 of 8 Subrecipient Initial(s):
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OFSERVICES-

1. The Strafford County Child Advocacy Center as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant

from the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for Child Advocacy Center

expenses, forensic child advocacy interviews and victim services.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described In Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit Incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days

following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later

than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly

report is due on April ]5''^ or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both

state funds and match If provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting

documentation should be maintained for at least three (3) years af^er the close of the

grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for

review and compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such

desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271 -1261 or Tanya.pitman@doJ.nh.gov

Page 4 of 8
Subrecipient initials

Date 7-'S'*V



EXHIBIT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval through 06/30/22,

with approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued state

funding appropriation and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from'Governor and Council approval or 07/01/22,
whichever is later, through 06/30/23, with approved expenditure reports. This

shall be contingent on continued state funding appropriation and program

performance.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred

under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval not after 06/30/23.

Page 5 of 8
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EXHIBIT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval through 06/30/22,
with approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued state

funding appropriation and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/22,

whichever is later, through 06/30/23, with approved expenditure reports. This

shall be contingent on continued state funding appropriation and program

performance.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred

under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval not after 06/30/23.
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and

specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.

Page 6 of8
Subrecipient Initials

Date



EXHIBIT G

DOJ State Funding

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Subrecipient authorizes the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) and its
representatives, access to and the right to examine ail records, books, paper or
documents related to this subgrant. •

2. Discrimination Findings - The Subrecipient assures that in the event that a Federal or
State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground of race, religion, national
origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of victim assistance formula funds under
this award, the recipient will forward a copy of the findings to the DOJ.

3. The Subrecipient understands that subgrants are funded for the grant award period noted
on the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in
future years.

4. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the DOJ

that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal or

state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised

while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the DOJ.

5. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims

unless a program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission to generate

program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding scale

that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant

allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

6. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the

agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,
percentage of state funds, and location.

7. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it

be an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit

and any associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit. The
Single Audit report must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months
after the Subrccipient's year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit.

Page 7 of8
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EXHIBIT C

8. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements

available online (either on the Subrecipient's website, or the DOJ's, or another publicly

available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are considered

in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that
such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as

several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial

statements.

9. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to DOJ: 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non

profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available

upon audit one of the following:

•  A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

•  A letter from the State of NH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit

organization operating within the state, or:

•  A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates
I  ' ■ ■

its non- profit status

Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should

also have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non

profit affiliate.

I have read and understand all 9 special conditions contained in this document:

rna^'largs.
Name and Title of Authorized Representative • SSl

Signature Date

7.?? rcVA^^ fhrm A)hi-
Name and Address of Agency 0 3

Page 8 of8
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COMMISSIONERS

GEORGE MAGLARAS,

Chairman

ROBERT J. WATSON, Vice
Chairman

DEANNA S. ROLLO, Clerk

TREASURER

PAMELA J. ARNOLD

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

RAYMOND F. BOWER

STRAFFORD COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS

WILLIAM A. GRIMES

Justice & Administration Building
259 County Farm Road, Suite 204
Dover, New Hampshire 03820

Telephone: (603)7424458
Fax: (603) 743-4407

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Deanna Rollo, Clerk of the Strafford County Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Strafford County.

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Strafford County

Commissioners duly held on July 15^^ 2021

RESOLVED: That the Chairman of the Strafford Cpun^ Board of Commissioners is hereby authorized
on behalf of this County to enter into the said contract with the State of New Hampshire Department

of justice and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any

amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he may deem necessary, desirable or

appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect

as ofjuly 15^2021

4. George Maglaras is the duly elected Chairman of the Strafford County Board of Commissioners.

D^mrTS. Rollo, Clerk Date: '///■
jVgfgfy

State of New Hampshire, County of ^
On this day 1^, _ personally appeared and was
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name appears above, and acknowledged s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated.

Siwf
My Commission Expires 7 /



Prim^x"
NH Public Risk Monegtmenmchange CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Mariagement Exchange (Prlmex') Is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes. Its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex' Is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions In the Slate of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex^ Is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Prlmex^ may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member Is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that ere applicable to the members of Primex*, Including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed Included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Uability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury l.labitity) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Emors end Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity Is a member In good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex'. As of the dale this certificate Is issued, the Information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate Is Issued as a matter of Information only end confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Parliclpating /We/n6er; MemOer Numbtr.

Strafford County 605
259 County Farm Road
Dover, NH 03820

Comptny Affoming Coverege:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624

General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

Each Occurrence

General Aggregate

□ MadT' ^ Occurrence Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and Coll:

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(Etch Acddtnl)

Aggregate

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 1/1/2021 1/1/2022 X  Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Etch EmployM $2,000,000

Disease > Policy LImll

Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) Blanket LImll. Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

gy; Ss4 ̂ mteU

Date; 7/19/2021 mourcell@nhprimex.orgNH Department of Justice
33 Capitol St
Concord. NH 03301

Please direct Inquires to;
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



Prim^)('
NH Public Rl»li Monoacfncntuchoncc CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Menegement Exchange (Primex^} is organized under (he New Hampshire Revised Staiules Annotated. Chapter 5*B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those siatutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex' is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions In the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex* Is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are appiiceble to the members of Primex', including but not limited to the nnal and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex^ Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included In the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Uability) and Coverage 8 (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Prlmex'. As of the dale this certificate is issued, the Information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certiricate Is Issued as a matter of Information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not emend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Pertlcipttlng Member Member Number
\

Strafford County 605
259 County Farm Road
Dover, NH 03620

Company AtfyfxUng Cova/apa;

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex'
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord. NH 03301-2624

X General Liabiiify (Occurrenca Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

1/1/2021 1/1/2022
Eech Occurrence S 1.000.000

General Aggregate S 2.000.000

D Mair D Occurrence Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and (3otl: $1,000

Any auto

Combined Single Lirrtit
(Eacn Acdotnl)

Aggregate

Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability Statutory

Each Accident

Disease - Eaen EmptoyM

Disease - Policy LlnVt

Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Limli, Raplacement
Coil (unless olhafv^e statad)

Description; In regards to Grant Agreement, the certificate holder is named as Additional Covered.Party, but only to the extent liability Is
based solely on the negligence or wrongful acts of the member, its employees, agents, ofTicials or volunteers. This coverage does not
extend to others. Any liability resulting from the negligence or wrongful acts of the Additional Covered Party, or their employees, agents,
contractors, members, officers, directors or affiliates is not covered.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: X Additional Covered Party Loss Payeo Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By:

Date; 7/12/2021 mpurcelKSlnhDrimex.oroState of NH - Department of Justice
33 Capitol St
Concord, NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Clafms/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



strafford County

Child
Advocacy
Center

259 County Farm Road •Dover, NH 03821
Phone: 516-8100-Fax: 516-8101

TITLE: Director, Strafford County Child Advocacy Center

REPORT TO; County Attorney, Advisory Board

JOB SUMMARY: The Director is responsible for the coordination of aU aspects of the Child Advocacy
Center. The Director will participate as a member of the Multidisciplinary Team and supervise other CAC
staff members including, but not limited to, the Forensic Interviewer/Intake Coordinator, Interns, and
AmeriCorps Members.

RESPONSIBILITIES:

•  Resource Developmenc: Comply with the requirements of funding sources, including the timely
submission of applications, grants, and statistical reports. Research and pursue other available
funding sources

•  Admwiscracion. Participate in prograip development; update protocols; assist in special projects
as required for the effective operation bf the CAC. Facilitate quarterly Advisory Board Meetings.
.Attend monthly NH Network of Child Advocacy Centers Director meetings

•  SupervisioiT. Supervise, train and coordinate activities for CAC personnel
•  Coordination and Scheduling. Coordinate CAC resources to respond to level of need (i.e.

.^priority, time limits, needs assessment): schedule and inform all parties of forensic interviews,
case tracking/case review

•  Community Outreach. Develop and maintain working relationships with collaborative service
agencies; implement community education; coordinate and provide program presentations as
needed

QUALIFICATIONS: Master's Degree in Social Work or related field or Bachelor's Degree with a
minimum of 4 years related experience. The CAC Director should have knowledge of the dynamics of
child development and child abuse and the ability to work in a collaborative manner with diverse
professional groups. A working knowledge of dynamics of child sexual abuse, criminal investigations,
criminal statutes, and forensic interviewing is preferred. Experience vrith budgets, grant writing, and
fundraising is applicable to this position. Excellent verbal and written communication skills are required.

Previous experience conducting forensic interviews preferred or completion of specialized forensic
interview training will be required upon hire.



Cait M. Massev

Education

Masters of Social Work (MSW accredited, Clinical track) Augusi 2012
University of New England, Portland, ME
•  Advanced Standing

B.S., Social Work (BSW accredited), May 2008
University of New Hampshire, Durham NH
•  Magna Cum Laude

Related Experience

Strafford County Child Advocacy Center, March 2009-July 2011, Oct 2012-Present Dover, NH
Director: October 2012-Present

•  Sought and completed grant opportunities that matched the mission of the SCCAC-mainly related to child
sexual abuse and/or assistance for survivors of violence

Submitted required grant reports and updates to funding sources
Coordinated Advisory Board charged with overseeing general operations of the SCCAC
Sat on Family Justice Center Advisory Board, assisted in building collaborations for the new program and

provided programmatic oversight
Planned and facilitated both local and statewide fundraisers and awareness campaigns
Met with State and County ofTicials as needed to promote the mission of the SCCAC, the CAC model and

;other multidisciplinary endeavors
Met'With and maintained relationships with County police chiefs, social service agencies and other

^community resources relevant to our work
Facilitated Strafford County's CSEC task force
Participated in statewide chapter events to further the CAC movement in New Hampshire
Participated in the Leadership and Coaching Exchange program, a national program to help mentor new

CAC directors

Managed day to day operations at the CAC
Supervised and trained staff, including forensic interviewers and family support specialists
Fiscally responsible for paying bills, submitting purchase orders and other administrative tasks
Conducted forensic interviews of children and adults alleging physical /sexual abuse, extreme neglect or

witnessing violence

Forensic Interviewer/Intake Coordinator March 2009-July 2011
Completed 40 hours of Forensic Interview Training
Conducted culturally competent, age appropriate investigative interviews of children ages five through

seventeen following disclosures of physical /sexual abuse, extreme neglect or witnessing violence
Conducted Pre/Post interview meetings with caregivcrs of children who alleged abuse
Responsible for scheduling interviews and coordinating multi-disciplinary team response
Functioned within a multi-disciplinary team setting including members of Child Protection Services, Law

Enforcement, victims services and the local County Attorney's office
Responsible for database management, data entry and file maintenance
Provided referrals for community resources to families such as medical appointments and mental health
counseling options
Assisted in planning and facilitating monthly case review meetings
Participated in peer reviews of interviews
Assisted in planning and executing fundraising events and activities
Provided outreach and presentations to the community
Participated in on-going statewide and national trainings and conferences

Community Living Manager, Easter Seals of NH June 2012-October 2012, Stratham, NH
•  Managed adult foster care placements for high risk individuals with development disabilities
•  Oversaw day and residential programming for individuals with development disabilities



•  Supervised direct support staff responsibie for providing one on one services to individuals
•  Supervised adult foster care providers charged with providing residential services
•  Ensured both day and residential programs were within state mandates
•  Worked with multidisciplinary team to ensure seamless coordination for services
•  Provided one on one services to individuals with developmental disabilities as necessary
•  Completed monthly documentation in accordance with regulations
•  Attended bi-monthly home visits with individuals and providers
•  Completed necessary agency and state trainings
•  Assisted in creating individualized treatment and care plans

Internship, Sweetser Counseling Services September 201 l-May 2012, Berwick. ME
School based Intern

•  Completed thorough psychosocial assessments on adolescents, children and adults
•  Formulated multiaxial diagnosis using DSMJV_TR

•  Provided counseling services to varied populations, including clients struggling with eating disorders,
depression, anxiety and pervasive developmental disorders

•  Completed discharge planning
•  Coordinated needed referrals upon discharge
•  Facilitated psycho-educational groups
•  Provided on-going individual outpatient counseling with adults, adolescents and families
•  Provided outpatient family sessions as needed
•  Created individualized treatment plans
•  Coordinated treatment needs by working in conjunction with other mental health providers and school

officials

•  Identified goals for treatment. Formulated and implemented strengths based treatment goals and objectives
with adults, children and families

•  Maintained clinical electronic case records in a timely manner

Night Supervisor, Sexual Assault Support Services, August 2011-June 2012, Portsmouth, NH

•  Responded to area hospitals to provide support for victims of sexual violence
•  Acted as supervisor when office was closed
•  Provided direct service on 24 hour hotline

•  Supervised advocates providing direct services to survivors of sexual violence
•  Coordinated services with volunteers, hospital staff and police departments in order to provide services to

survivors of sexual violence

Direct Service Advocate-Criminal Justice, YWCA Crisis Service, May 2008-March 2009
Manchester, NH

•  Completed 40 hours of state certification training
•  Provided direct service advocacy to clients through criminal court proceedings, bail hearings and

restraining order violation hearings
•  Assisted and supported clients in throughout duration of restraining order process
•  Attended weekly domestic violence project meeting to foster community collaborations with police

sergeants, prosecutors, and victim/witness advocates

•  Provided quarterly roll call training to officers at the Manchester Police Department
•  First responder to police accompaniments and follow up interviews related to domestic and sexual violence
•  Assisted with and presented at core volunteer training
•  Co-Chaired Greater Manchester Domestic Violence Council

•  Provided accompaniments to hospitals and child advocacy centers
•  Assisted with overnight staff back up shifts and 24 hour crisis line
•  Provided crisis counseling and domestic violence shelter support when necessary



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of Hew Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IdentificQtioD and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hempshire Department of Justice

L2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. SubrecipieotName
The Granite State Children's Alliance

1.4. Subrecipient Address

72. South River Road, Suite 202, Bedford, NH 03110

1.5 Subrecipient Phone #

(603) 864-0215

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-200010-2601-0

73-500581

1.7. Completion Dhte

06/30/2023

1.8. Grant Limitation

$

74,000.00

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,.
inbluding If.applicable RSA 31:95-b.."

1.11. Subrecipient Signature 1 1.12. Name &Title-of Subrecipient Signor I

tjUs^

Subrecipient Signatur^ IfAp^lioqble

wl
Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 1 If Applicable

lik:
13. Acknowlcdgm^t: State of NcW Hampshire, County of f//

before the undersigned officer, personaliy appeared the person ideitiified ibefore the undersigned ofTicer, personally appeared the ̂ fson iderll^ified in block 1.12,, known to me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be the person vdiose name is signed in block 1.11., and acknowledged that he/she executed this
document In foe capacity indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1. 'Signature ofNotary Public or Justice of foe Peace

(Seal) ̂
LINDA T..LAFLEUR

Notary Public
Stata of N«w Harmhiro
My Commisalon &pirM

July31.a03A

l.'i3.2;'h^e &^it!e of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

1.14. State Agency Signature(s)

Kfitbken Carr

I.IS. Name & Title Qf State Agency SignoKs)

Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance, and Execution) (if G & C approval'required)

Attorney General, On: ̂^2^/2021

1.17. Approval by Governor and-Council (ifappllcable)

•By: On: /  /

2.SCQPE OP WORK: In exchange for grant ftinds provided by the State of Hew Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as ̂'the State"), the Subrecipient Identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred td as
"foe Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project"). VT*——
Rev.9/2013 Page i of 8 SubrecipientInitialCi):

Date:



4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

12.

8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except bs otherwije specifically provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTTVE DATE- COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become 9.3,
eflective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block I.I7X or upon 9.4.
signature by the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the effective date").
Except as otherwise specifically' provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Elate").
GRANT AMOUNT: LTMrTATION ON AMOUNT: vnilCHERS: PAYMENT 9.5.

The Grant Amount Is identified and more particularly described in EXHEBn* B,
attached hereto. 10.
The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBrT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfiaclory performance of the Project, as determined by the Slate, end as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall'pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
Otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. I^A 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever natura, IT.
itwurred the Subrecipient in the performaiKe hereof^ and shall be the only, il.l.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Giant Amount
Notwithstanding ar^dhing in this Agreement to the coiitraiy, and U.I.I
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation 11.1.3
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 11.2;

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply
with ell statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or 11.2.1
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient. including the acquisition ofany a^ all necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incuimd in 11.2.2
connection with the Project, including but not limited to, costs of
adminisualion, transportation, insurance, telephone calb, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other.similar documents.

Between the Efl*ective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any lime during the Subrecipient's normal business hours, and as often 11.2.3
as the Slate shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered 17 thb AgreemenL The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit the Stale to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracU, bvoices, metcriab, payrolb, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that terni is hereiriafier defined), and other, information relating to all matters 12.1.
covered by this AgreemenL As used in this paragraph, "Subrecipient" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with,.controlled by, or und^ common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrecipient mrrants that ell personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, end slull be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.
subgrantee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it b engaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
rebiionship with the State, or viho is a State officer cr employee, elected or
appointed.
lite Grant Officer shall'be the representative ofthe State hereunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dbpute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA-RETENTION OF DATA- ACCESS.

As used, in thb Agreement, the Nwrd "data" shall mean all information and 13.
things developed or obtained during the performance oC or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited.to, all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic represeniations.
computer programs, corhputer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, ail whether finished or unfinished.

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient. shall
grant to the State, or any person dcsignated.by it, unrestricted access to ell data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other then the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received fitrni the State or purchased with ftinds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shell be returned to the
Stale upon demand or upon termination, of thb Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.

The Stale, and anyone it shall designate, shell have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute end otherwise use, in whole or in part, ell data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding ariything in
thb Agreement to the contrary, all obligauons of the State hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercurider, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
Stale be Ibbic for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated flmds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those ftinds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such ftinds become
available, if ever, and shall have the rî t to terminate this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acb or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an eyent of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satis&ctorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder, or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder, or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of (his Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of De&ult, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Defnull and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) dq? from the date, of the notice; and if the
Event of Defouit b not timdy.rem^iefd, terminate thb Agreement, cfifoctive two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination: and
Give the Subrecipient a Nvritten notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that.the
portion ofthe Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the Stale
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Defhult shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient, and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State sufiers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.
TERMINATION.

In the event of any early tarnation of this AgrMtnent for any reason other than
the completion of the F^ject, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifieen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the 'Termination ReporT) describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.-

in the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by (he State shall entitle
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Giant amount eamed to and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provbions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of this Subrecipient's breach of ib obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or ofthe governing body of the.locality or localities in which the
Project b to be perfonned, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate In any decision relating to thb Agreement which affbcb hb or her

Rev. 9/2015 Page 2 of 8 m.Subrecipient Initial(s):

Date: \lU\l0



14.

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

pcnonal interest or the interest of any corporation, paitner^ip, or association
in which he or she b directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.
SUBRECIPIENT'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any' subcontractor or
subgrontee of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contractors, and
are neither agents nor employees of (he State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its offtceis, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor ere they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compenution or emoluments provided by the State to its
ernployces.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in thb Agreement vrithout the.prior written
consent of the State. None of the- Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by (he Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its ofBccrs end employees, flom end against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its ofBcen arxl employees, aixJ any and oil elaims,
liabilities or penalties assert against the State, its ofRcers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrontee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing Iwrein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the terminetion of
this agreement.
INSURANCE AND BOND.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or
shall require any subcontractor, subgrontee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain end maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:
Statutory woricmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for afl
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insunmce against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than {1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, end
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and

17.2.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23,

24.

The policies described in sul^)eragraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
stondiud form employed in (he State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain o clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OP BREACH. No fhllurc by the Stale to enforce any provisions
hereof after eny Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enfbrce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any ftirther or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly deliver^ or given at the time of moiling by certified rhail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at (he
addresses first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by en instrument in writing signed by the porties hereto and only after approv^
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State ofNew Hampshire, ifrequired or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and. their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "si&ject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be consider^ a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to iKnefil any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such beneftl
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, \shich may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The edditionai provisiotu set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporated as pan of this agreement.

Rev, 9/2015 Page 3 of 8 Subrecipient lniti&l(s):

Date:



F.YKTOTT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Granite State Children's Alliance as Subrecipient shall.receive a subgrant from the
New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services
provided for forensic child advocacy interviews and direct victim services provided by
the Subrecipient.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award thai begins on January 1, the first quarterly
report is due on April 15"' or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon.request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation shall be maintained for at least three (3) years after the close of the grant

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for
review and compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street
Concord, NH 03301

603-271 -1261 or Tanya.pitman(gdoj .nh.gov

Page 4 of 8
Subrecipient Initials

Date:ijkpz/



F YHTBTT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrccipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $37,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/21,

whichever is later, until 06/30/22, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued.state funding appropriation and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $37,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/22,
whichever is later, until 06/30/23, with approved expenditure reports. Thjs shall

be contingent on continued state funding appropriation and program performance.

!

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred

under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval.

Page 5 of 8
Subrecipient Initials

Date



EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.

Page 6 of 8
Subrecipient Initials (L

Date



F.YHTRTT C

DOJ State Funding

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Subrccipient authorizes the DOJ and its representatives, access to and the right
to examine all records, books, paper or documents related to this subgrant.

2. Discrimination Findings - The Subrecipient assures that in the event that a Federal or
State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground of race, religion, national
origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of victim assistance formula funds under
this award, the recipient will forward a copy of the fmdings to the DOJ.

3. The Subrecipient understands that subgrants are funded for the grant award period noted
on the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in
future years.

4. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the DOJ,
that employee or their relative, shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal of

state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised
while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the DOJ.

5. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims

unless a program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission to generate
program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding scale
that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant

allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

6. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrccipient on the
agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,
percentage of state funds, and location.

7. The Subrecipient. agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it

be an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit .

and any associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit. The
Single Audit report must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months
after the Subrecipient's year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit.

Page 7 of 8
Subrecipient Initials

Date



EXHIBIT C

8. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements
available online (either on the Subrecipient's website, or the DOJ's, or another publicly

available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are considered
in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that

such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as
several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial

statements.

9. The Subrecipient, if a.non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by

submitting a statement to DOJ: 1) aflirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non
profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available

upon audit one of the following:

A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

•  A letter from the State of NH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit
organization operating within the state, or:

•  A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates

its non- profit status

Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should
also have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non

profit affiliate.

I have read and understand all 9 special conditions contained in this document:

rroX -rkUl
N^e and Title of Authorized Representative . ,

lature Date

.:iAain'ih.%JcL CJud.inxJn'S,
Name and Address of Agency

Page 8 of 8
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify dtat THE GRANITE STATE

CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

November 24, 2003.1 farther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and

is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID. 456237

Certificate Number: 0005405372

A'

o r©

%♦r
Si

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be ufTixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of July A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretory of Stote
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ren's Alliance'
NewWmpd>ln^.N«twoAof
OiOdAdv^cai^Ceiiten

72 South Rlv^ Road, Suite 202
Bedf^NH 03110

Certificate of Authority

I, AdrianThomes. Chofrman of the ̂ fd of Director* of tho Grwilte State Children'* AWance; do hereby
certify th^

L I am a dulv electftd offlcar of the Granite State Children'* AHlance.

2. The following b true of the adopted state of ofRcen elected St fi meeting of tho Granite State
Children'* Ainanoe held on

Resolved: That ̂  Chief-Executive OfBarr i* hereby authod^ on behalf of Granite State

Instfiunehfii, and any airntn^^ or rr^lRcatlora tlwrate, as he/U^
necessary,'4«ltebieorapprd^late.

3; Ttw forgoing re^Aidops have not been amei^ded or revoked and ramain in hilifoite and effect
as of the'^Sa^davcof Ju]v^2021;;thls Suthoi^ shall remain yatid for Mrty f30) days ftom the dstb

.  ofthlsderttfti^bf.^ithorlty

4

i.

Adrian Thoihaf

Board Chaihnan, Granite State Children's AIDahce

STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of HIIlsborbugH

The foiynlnfinitfujnentwM acknowledged before we en l^i2'02-l bv ftfllOAn'^ATIUftS
ih V w; "

mjei
UgnaM'ofNotsnri

flAcUsA #.

Cnmmtolon PxnlrM

ItsM^'tU* ofNotl^ pufate.eNdiiiiU 6TDi*>eaei
uniM

•.*



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/rYYY)

7/7/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATWELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tha cartlflcate holdar la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tha pollcy(]as) must hava ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or ba andorsad.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tha terms ar>d conditions of tha policy, cartaln policies may require an endorsement A statampnt on
this cartlflcata does not confer rights to the certMcats holdar In lieu of such ondorsementls).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03061

KImberN Gutelcunst

r®». R..,. 603^82-2766 1 T-w. hoI: 603-888-4230
SmwpM- kdutflkun8tQs8tonberube.com

MSUReWSI AFFORDINa COVERAOS NAKf

MSURER A! Sslflctlve lnsurar>C8 Group Inc. 14376
MSUREO ORAST27

Granite State Children's Alliance
72 South River Road
Suite 202

Bedford NH 03110

MSURER B t

MSURER C :

MSURER 0 :

MSURER a:

MSURER P:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 413883515 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUQES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NbTWnHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WFTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTinCATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH P0UCIE8. UMfTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IMSR

ItTR TYPCOPCNSURANCa
M.I.HI

iPM'irAv POUCY NUMBER Loirrs

A X COMMERCIAL 01JIERALUABSJTY

>B OCCUR

Y S 2333438 3/1/2021 3/1/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000,000

CLAIMS MAI
DAMAQbtOfUINTUb
PREMISES fEaMCumnM) 11.000.000

MED EXP (Any on* p*ncn) S 20.000

PERSONAL a AOV MA/RY 11.000,000

oem. AOORSQATB LIMIT APPUES PER: GENERAL AOOREOATE i 3,000,000

h POLICY 1 1 j!^ I 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO S 3.000.000

s

A iIa^UOBU UABIUrY S 2333435 3/1/2021 3/1/2022 C0UfiMBfi8IM6LElJU/r 11.000.000

ANY AUTO

IHEOULEO
nos
}N-OWNEO
ITOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par panon) s

OWNED 1
AUTOS ONLY 1
HIRED 1
AUTOS ONLY 1

sc
AL BODILY INJURY (Par aeclSant) s

X X N(
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
t

s

A IT UMBRELLA UAB

excess UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

S 233343S 3/1/2021 3/1/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000

AGGREGATE $2,000,000

1DED 1 1 RETENTIONt 1 s

A WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABtLirr y/N
ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNEWEXECUTIVE rvn
OFF1C6RACM6EREXCLUOEP7 '
(MtndstorylnNH) ' '
irvM, dMcrlM vndtr
OES^IPTION OP OPERATIONS telow

HIA

WC 80SB573 3/1/2021 3/1/2022 ^ 1 sfJruTE 1 1 ̂
EJ. EACH ACCIDENT s 500.000

El. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE SSOOiOOO

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT s 600.000

DSSCRlPnON OP OPCRATtONSr LOCATIONS/VCWCLE8 (ACORO IM. AMIUenN RamwtoSdwteN.may b« attMhsd If mora tpM*
Workers Compensation Information: Coveraae forNH: no excluded officers. Addldonal'lnsured status epplles w^n required try written contract per Selective
Insurance GL BItePac Endorsenwnt CG7300 (1/16).
New Hampshire Department of Justice Is additional Insured with regard to General liability.

New Hampshire Department of Justice
33 Capitol Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIE8 BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVS

ACORO 28 (2016/03)
01988*2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights rsservsd.

Ths ACORO nams and logo era roglstsrsd marlts of ACORO
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CINCINNATI

Service Center

OH A5999V0 038

In reply refer toi 02565219A4

Mar. 16, 2020 LTR A168C 0
7A-3186259 000000 00

0001A152
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THE GRANITE STATE CHILDRENS
ALLIANCE

K JOY BARRETT
72 S RIVER RO STE 2.0 2
BEDFORD NH 05110

■ Vr -
• ; I •/

005739

Employer ID number:
Form 990 required:

Dear Taxpayeri

7A-3186259
Yes

We're respqnding to your request dated Mar. 09, 2020 , about yoiir
tax-exempt status.

We Issued you det^e'r.mif'Q^tlpn .letter in October 2006, recognizing
you as tax-exempt tinder Internal-'Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)
(3:)^. .' •Ir:; .- h -I O '

We also show you're not a private foundation as defined under IRC
Section 509Ca) because you're described in IRC Sections 509Cb)C1) and
17DCb) CD (A) (vi).

Donors can deduct contributions they make to you as provided In IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRC Sections 2055, 2106,
and 2522.

In the heading of this letter, we indicated whether you must file an
annual information return. If you're required to file a return, you
must file one of the following by the 15th day of the 5th month after
the end of your annual accounting period:

- Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
- Form 990EZ, Short Form Return of Organization Exempt From Income

Tax
- Form 990-N, Electronic Notice Ce-Postcard) for Tax-Exempt

Organizations Not Required to File Form 990 or Form 990-EZ
- Form 990-PF, Return of Private Foundation or Section A9A7(a)(l)

Trust Treated as Private Foundation

According to IRC Section 6033Cj), If you don't file a required annual
information return or notice for 3 consecutive years, we'll revoke
your tax-exempt status on the duo date of the Srd required return or
notice.

You can get IRS forms or publications you need from our website at
www.irs.gov/forms-pubs or by calling dOOr^TAX-FORM (800-829-5676).

If you have questions, call 877-829-5500 between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.,

5'S
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local time, Monday through Friday (Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific
time).
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Melanson

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite State Children's Alliance

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Granite State Children's Alliance, which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management's ResponsiSjlltyypr the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation land fair presentation of" these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generAllViacceKtelJTirvthe'UDited States of
America; this includes the design, lmpIementation,^a4id^^if;itenSce of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of firf^cial/sstatements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errorrtjs r "

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opjnjon),on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordancl^jft; auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standargSTapplicable to financial audits contained In Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the'iiGprnptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perfoyni^ejaudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free frorfiimaterial misstatement.

rT}
1  If" IAn audit involves performing pjpcedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial stkehrTents. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assess^ie'ntT'of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to frajid\i0j4 error. In making those'risk assessments? the.-auditor
considers internal control relevahfi'f^^the 'enthy].'s preparation and 'fair preseh'tafiqn bf'the'
financial statements- in order jS' 'd^gn ^'djt (pfocedures thalarei iapprbpflate In .the
circumstances; !but not for\the/purpo;pCof^expresslng an opinion ron the etfectiveness of^the,
entity's internal control. AccordihglY^e;,expres's no such op'ihioh. An audlfalso'Includes

^

Merrlmack, New Hampshire

Andover; Massachusetts

Greenfield, Massachusetts

Ellsworth. Maine 800.282.2440 I rrielansoncpas.com

■ u.



Melanson

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. •

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial stateme_nts referred to above present fair[v, in all material respects,

the financial position of Granite State Children's Alliance as of June 30; 2020, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash fiows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Granite State Children's Alliance's fiscal year 2019 financial statements,

and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report

dated March 12,2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative financial Information presented

herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019 is consistent, in all material respects, with the

audited financial statements from which it has been derived^^'Tr/

Other^Matter .rf
Our audit was conducted for the purpose^f'forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The Schedule of Child Advocaci^^eriter Expenses by Location is presented for the
purposes of additional analysis andJls/not''a required part of the financial statements. Such
information Is the responsibility o^^nagementand was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and otheji'l^cords used to prepare the financial statements. The
Information has been subjectedjfoVthl?auditing procedures.applied In the audit 'of the.financiai
statements and .certajn, :ad_,d^io!ialgprjocedures, includingj comparing *and recpncilirig such
informatibn directly"to Jthe un^rj^ing al:c£uhtjng:ancl 5therreco?cJs uTedTO p/ega/e yie-financlal
statements or to the fihan'ciaJj^Xatements theifiselYes, and other additibnai! procedures' m
accordance with auditing standa\ds-generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fajriy^^tated in all material respects in relation to the financialstatements as a whole. ^ ^
Other Reporting Required by Goverritfient Auditing Standards

' v\
In accordance with Government Audjtin'g^Stondards, we have also issued our report dated March 17,
2021 on our consideration of Granite State Children's Alliance's internal control over financial

reporting and on our tests of Its compllancg-with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, and other matteriJ^ejpurpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over flnahciaJ;reporting and compliance and the results of that

800"282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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ELANSON

testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite State Children's Alliance's
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral.part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Granite State

Children's Alliance's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Merrlmack, New Hampshire

March 17, 2021
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALL|ANCE

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2019)

2020

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets;

Investments

Grants and contributions receivable^

Property and equipment, net

Security deposits

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Refundable advances

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board-designated

With donor restrictions:

Time or purpose restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities ahd.Net Aissets

Without Donor

Restrictions

$  746,964

311,441

8,328

1,066,733

10,320

921,250

^-■4.060,^

935,630

With Donor

. Restrictions

35,000

2020

Total

35,000

20,000

20,000.

746,964
346,441

8,328

1,101,733

10,320
,20,0M

921>2S.0
^4,060.

955,630

$  2,002,363 S 55,000 S 2,057,363

$  36,868
41,067
49,777

127,712

1,853,939
20,712

1,874;651

55,000

$  36,868
41,067

,  49,77.7 ■

127,712

1,853,939
20,712

55,000

2019
Total ^ ..

$  695,883
374,658

8,371

1,078,912

17,490
30,000

945,510
^4,060..

. 997,060.

$  2,075,972

S  50,567
47,793

98,360

1,892,612

85,000

55,000.. .1,929,651 '1,977,612

2,0.02';363.. $ 55;000_ C$„^;057,363.. .'$L 12,075,972...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2019)

2020

VYithout Donor With Donor 2020' 2019

Restrictions Restrictions ,Total. .Total.

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Support;

Government grants S  1,018,272 S S  1,018,272 S  1,327,902

Grants and contributions 260,440 92,000 352,440 472,098

Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) grant 160,500 160,500 r

In-kind contributions 25,723 -
25,723 120,906

Special events:

Gross special events revenue 99,940 99,940 314,168

Less cost of special events (15,703) ,  (15,703), <_„.(101,948)..

Net special events revenue SA',23ir
.  ̂ -^'237"

[212,220

Revenue;

Training and education 51,585 51,585 5,300

Investment income (loss) (3,084) (3,084) 2,430

Other revenue 900 - 900 900

Net Assets Released From Restriction 122,000 (122,000) •

Total Support and Revenue 1,720,573 (30,000) 1,690,573 2,141,756

EXPENSES

Program Services:
Statewide education and outreach 259,262 - 259,262 207,327

Child advocacy centers 972,459 r 972,459 875,003

Total Program Services 1,231,721 • 1,231,721 1,082,330

Supporting Services:

General and administrative 410,527 410,527 291,308

Fundraising .  - .96,286 . ._96,286.. .112,153 .

Total Supporting Services 506,813 • 506,813 403,461

Total Expenses 1,738,534 1,738,534 1,485,791

Change In Net Assets (17.961) (30,000) (47.961), 655,965

Net Assets, Beginning of Year , .1,892,612- ---.^85,000.^, ..^i,977;6i2;.. !_1;321,647^,

Net Assets, End of Year '$ - .1,87.4,651 . $. :55,000.., $„. 1,929,651, S .„1,977,612

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements..
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GRANFTE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30. 2019)

2020

'Statewide ' "Child " Total -  - Toor

Education and AcKocacy Program Gerteral and Supporting 2020 2019

.Outreach Centers Servire* Administrative Fundraisirw Services Total. Total

Persorvtel expertse:

Salaries and wages S  146,571 S  547,249 S 693,820 S  164,998 $  84.460 $ 249,458 S  943,278 S  809,639
Payroll taxes 10,944 40,862 51,806 12,320 6,306 18,626 70,432 62,647

Emptoyee berwfits 14,265 53,266 67.532 16,060 8,221 24,281 91,813 91,567

Bank charges .1-: .. i- 3,214 4,488 7,702 7,ro2 6,866

Contracted serwces:

Account]rtg - ■- 135,900 ■: 135,900 135,900 61,300
Marfceting 30,544 . 30,544 673 150 823 31,367 25,632
Other 536 20,557 21,093 604 309 913 22,006 19,341

Depreciation 7,806 31.667 39,473 4,297 •: 4,297 43,770 28,847
Dues and subscriptions 941 10,115 11,056 8,393 1,188 9,581 20,637 15,870
Equipment, repairs, and maintenance ... 18,666 18,666 1,000 1,000 19,666 11,734
Grants -• 70,610 70,610 r:

. 70,610 66,121
Irrsurar^ce 1,130 7,986 9,116 4,632 4,632 13,748 13,148
Meetings 869 869 -■ 869 4,049
Miscelianeous 50 497 547 212 f. 2U 759 3,210
Occupancy 17,473 56,482 73,955 22,239 22.239 96,194 100,963
Office expenses 17,626 42,228 59,854 21,014 '3,066 24,080 83,934 70,753
Staff development . 1,754 18,884 20.638 -I.SIO 1,510 22,148 32,131
Supplies i- •  vy. '2.816 2,816 2,816 91,561
Telephorre and internet 1.929 17,096 19,025 4,312 360 4,672 23,697 20,284
Travel 4,745 22.942 27,687 4,406 625 5,031 32,718 31,892
Utilities 2,947 12.483 15,430 4,743 _ =-.^.4,7.43. - -..20,173 20.184_.

Total fursctional expertses 259,262 972,459 1.231,721 410,527 iii3^ 522,516 1,754,237 1,587,739

Less expenses Included on the Statement
of Activities for the cost of s peclal events .. . (1S",703) (15.703) (15,703) 11013481

Total repotted on the Statement of Activities S  259,262 S  972,459 S 1,231,721 S  410,527 S  96,286 '$ 506,813 S 1,738,534 S 1,485,791

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S AUIANiCE

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2019)

2020 2019

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Unrealized (gain) loss

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Refundable advances

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

$  (47,961)

43,770

7,170

38,217

43

(13,699)i

49,777

70,591

$  655,965

28,847

(2,265)

(94,878)

21,131

11,877

6,139

626,816

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Payment of security deposit

Purchase of property and equipment

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(19,510)

(19,510).,

51,081

(2,060)

(719,950)

(722,0.10)

(95,194)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

695,883

$  746,964

791,077

$  .695,883.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE STAJE CHILDREN'S ̂^LLIANCEi

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

1. Organization

Granite State Children's Alliance (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization that provides |
coordinated services through a multi-disciplinary team approach to support the >

Investigation and prosecution of child abuse cases. The Organization serves as the New ^

Hampshire chapter organization providing training, technical assistance and statewide j
representation for the network of Nationally Accredited Child Advocacy Centers (CACs) in •

New Hampshire. The Organization also operates CACs in Keene (Cheshire'County - 4

Monadnock Region CAC), Manchester/Nashua (Hillsborough County CAC North/South) '1
and Laconia (Belknap County - Greater Lakes CAC). The Organization impacts the lives of j
children and families through two program priorities:

Statewide Education and Outreach

The Organization provides CAC membership services, training, professional development,

technical assistance, and jstatewide representation !to the: network of'eleven Nationally
Accredited'ChHd Advocacy Centers (CACs) In New Hampshire and the'ir n^lti-dlsciplihary
teams. KNOW & TELL iS'a professional' development program of the^ Granite State
Children's Alliance. It is all our responsibility to protect children from abuse. KNOW & TELL

educates all adults to KNOW the signs of abuse and TELL responsible authorities when

they recognize a child needs help. It is based on three elements: Educate-learn the signs

of neglect, physical, and sexual abuse to identify a child victim and understand your

responsibility as a mandated reporter; Inform - know how and when .to report suspected

abuse when a child needs your help; Protect - recognize your role in the child protection

system. The KNOW & TELL training Is conducted in-person or online.

Child Advocacy Centers

Child Advocacy Centers (CACs) are designed to be a child/family friendly, victim centered,

neutral setting for joint investigations and forensic Interviews of child victims of-crime
involving sexual abuse, felony level physical abuse, and child witnesses to violence such

as a homicide or a serious domestic assault. CACs also provide child/family support

services to ensure children receive appropriate mental health assessments, treatment

and specialized medical evaluations. Last year over 2,100 children were referred for
services to CACs across New Hampshire.



2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in preparing and
presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Change In Accounting Principle

ASU 2014-09 and ASU 2018-08 Revenue Recognition

The Organization has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS) Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic

606}, as amended,-and ASU No. 2018-08 Not-forrProfit Entitles (Toplc'958}: Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made

(Topic SOS), as management believes these standards improve the usefulness and

understandability of the Organization's financial reporting. ASU 2014-09 and 2018-08
have been implemented in fiscal year 2020, and the presentation In these financial
statements has been adjusted accordingly. Analysis of various provisions of these
standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the Organization recognizes

revenue and, therefore, no changes to the previously Issued audited financial statements

(presented in these financial statements as comparative financial information) were
required on a retrospective basis. The presentation and disclosures of revenue have been '
enhanced in accordance with the new standards.

ASU 2016-01 Equity Investments

In fiscal year 2020, the Organization has adopted PASS ASU 2016-01, Financial

instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities, which relates to the accounting for equity investments,

financial liabilities under the fair value option, and the presentation and disclosure

requirements for financial instruments. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant
impact on the financial statements.

ASU 2018-13 Changes to. the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value'Meosuremerit

In fiscal year 2020, the Organization has adopted FASB ASU 2018^13; Fair Value
Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure
Requirements for Fair Value Measurement, which modifies the disclosure requirements

for fair value measurements, and removes disclosures related to transfers between

Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the policy for timing transfers between
levels, the valuation process of Level 3 fair value measurements, and a roll forward of
Level 3 investments. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should



be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2019, from which the summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial Instruments with original maturities of three months or
less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, are

considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Grants and Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one,, year are
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be

collected in future years are ihitially recorded at fair value using present value techniques
Incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years, amortization of the
discounts is included in contribution revenue in the Statement of Activities. The allowance

for uncollectable contributions is based on historical experience, an assessment of
economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Contributions are written

off when deemed uncollectable. Management has determined that no allowance is
necessary.

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a
right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been
substantially met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable
federal and state contracts and grants, which the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses and/or the performance of certain requirements have been met or performed.
The allowance for uncollectable grants receivable Is based on historical experience and a
review of subsequent collections. Management has determined that no allowance is
necessary..

Investmeiits

Investment purchases are-recorded'at cost, or If do,nated, at ̂ ir vajue'on the date of
donation. Thereafter, Investments are re'ported at their fair values In the'Statement of
Financial Position. Net Investment return/(loss) is reported in the Statement of Activities
and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and unrealized gains and losses,

less external investment expenses. Investments include equity securities of public
companies which are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $2,500 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at
fair value at the date of donation. If donated. Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from 3 to 39 years, or

in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful
life of the asset or the leascrterm. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost

and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included In the
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Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend

the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for Impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and

eventual disposition.; When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the
extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no Indicators of asset

impairment In fiscal year-2020 or 2019.

Net Assets \
Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence [
of donor-Imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor- (or certain
grantor-) restrictions. The Board has designated, from net assets without donor

restrictions, net assets for the Manchester GAG development project.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
i

Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-

Imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the

passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-Imposed restrictions

are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in

perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is,
when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the

resource was restricted hasibeen fulfilled, or both.j

Revenue and Revenue Recognitlon

A portion of the Organization's revenue Is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and
state contracts and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received

are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenditures in

compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring

qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the Statement of Financial
Position.

Gontributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional
promise to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Gondltional promises
to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of
return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been
substantially met.
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Special events revenue is comprised of an exchange element based upon the direct
benefits donors receive and a contribution element for the difference. Special events

revenue is recognized equal to the fair value of direct benefits to donors when the special

event takes place. The contribution element of special event revenue Is recognized

immediately, unless there is a right of return if the special event does not take place.

Revenue from training and education programs Is recognized when the performance

obligations of providing the services are met. The performance obligation of delivering

training and education is simultaneously received and consumed by the registrants;

therefore, the revenue is recognized when the program occurs.

Donated Services and [n-KInd Contribution^
Volunteers.contribute, significant amounts of time to program services-;administration,

and fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not
reflect the value of these contributed services because they do no't meet recognition
criteria prescribed by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only if (a) the services

create or enhance nonfinancial assets and (b) the services would have been purchased If

not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by Individuals

possessing those skills. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair
values of the services received. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date

of donation and as expenses when placed In service or distributed. Donated use of

facilities is reported as a contribution and as an expense at the estimated fair value of

similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the use of the space is promised

unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the amount is reported as a

contribution and an unconditional promise to give at the date of the gift, and the expense

is reported over the term of use.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the Organization's various programs and activities have been

summarized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. Th_e Statement of

Functional Expenses presents the natural classiflcatTon detail of expenses by function.

Certain categories of expenses are attributed toimore than,one progfam.oftsupporting
function. Accordingly.: certain: costs hayej been allocated among tHej programs and,
supporting services benefited on a reasonable ba'sisfhafls consistentlyipplied. Expenses
that relate solely to the functional categories are directly charged, however, there are

certain expenses that are allocated. Personnel expenses, including salaries and wages,

employee benefits, and payroll taxes, and certain Insurances are allocated based on time

and effort estimates. Occupancy, utilities, depreciation on certain assets, and certain

insurance costs are allocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organization has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service {IRS} as exempt

from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section SOl(a) as an
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organization described In IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution
deductions, and has been determined not to be a private foundation. The Organization Is

annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990)
with the IRS. In addition, the Organization Is subject to Income tax on net Income that Is
derived from business activities that are-unrelated to its exempt purpose. In fiscal years

2020 and 2019, the Organization was not subject to unrelated business Income tax and
did not file an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the
IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from
those estimates, and those differences could be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk Is managed by placing cash with financial institutions believed to
be creditwofthyr At times, amounts Oji deposit may exceed Insurance llm'lts. To date, no
losses have been expeflencedi In'any of theses accounts., Credit Tisk' associated with]
receivables Is considered'to be'llmlted-d'ue to high historical collection rates. Investm'ents
are currently monitored by the Board of Directors. Although the fall* values of Investments
are subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Board of Directors believe that its

investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the

Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair

value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an

orderly transaction In the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement

date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly

observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair

value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use In pricing the

asset or liability, Including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or

unobservable. Observable Inputs are Inputs that reflect the assumptions market

participants would use In pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources Independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable Inputs are Inputs that reflect
the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best Information available. A three-.tler
hierarchy, categorizes .the Inputs as follows:!

•  Level 1 - Quoted 'prices (unadjusted) In active majkets for Identical assets or

llabliitles that are accessible at the measurement date.
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Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or Indirectly. These Include
quoted prices for sirhilar assets or liabilities in active rnarkets, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, Inputs other than quoted ^
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, arid marketicorrdborated {Inputs. I

•  Level 3 - Unpbservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations; inputs |
are developed using the best information avaiiabie In the circumstances. I

in some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a ilabiilty might be
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy, in those cases, the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as
the lowest level input that is significant to the .entire measurement. Assessing the
significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into
account factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset within the
hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and does not necessarily
correspond to the assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted In the Future

Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

in September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2020-07rNot-fpr-Profit_Entities (Topic ̂ 958): Presentatipn and
Disclosures by Ndt-for-Prqflt Entities for Contributed Nonfiriancial Assets, Intended to
Improve transparericyin the: repprtlrig of contrib.uted nQnflnancj£!|asseJs,.aiso known as
gifts-ln-kind, for not-for-profit organizations: Examples 6fcojitri_but'ed nonfiriancial assets
include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment; the use ofi fixed assets or
utilities; materials and supplies, such as food, clothing, or pharmaceuticals; Intangible
assets; and recognized contributed services. The ASU requires a not-for-profit
organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item In the
Statement of Activities, apart from contributions of cash or other financial'assets. It also
requires certain disclosures iFor each category of contributed nonfinancial assets
recognized. The amendments In this ASU should be applied on a retrospective basis and

will be effective for the Organization for the year ending June 30, 2022. Early adoption Is
permitted. The Organization is currently In the process of evaluating the impact of
adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases with
lease terms more than 12 months to be capitalized as a righfof use asset and lease-liability
on the Statement of Financial Position at the date of lease commencement. Leases will

be classified as either finance leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant
for the pattern of expense recognition in the Statement of Activities. This ASU will be
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effective for the Organization for the year ending June 30, 2023. The Organization Is

currently In the process of evaluating the Impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial
statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial

Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (Including trade receivables) measured at
amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. Thus,
the Statement of Activities will reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly-

recognized financial assets as well as the expected Increases or decreases of expected
credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be effective for the
Organization for the year ending June 30, 2024. The Organization is currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

3. Liquidity and. Ayailability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that Is, without donor or other

restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the Statement of Financial Position, are

comprised of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents

Grants and contributions receivable

Investments

Total financial assets

2020

746,964

366,441

10,320

1,123,725

2019

$  695,883

404,658

17,490

1,118,031

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Board-designated reserve

Grants and contributions receivable In more than one year

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next year

(20,712)

.(20,000).. (30,000)

$ , 1,083,013 . S _ 1,148,031

The Organization ̂regularly monitors liquldrty required to. nie.et jts. operating, needs and'
other contractu'al 'commitments,, while also stfjving to' rnaTdmize'tfie inyesfrheht'of its
available funds. In.additibn'to financial assets available to meet'general expenditures over

the next year, the Organization operates with balariced budget and anticipates
collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-
restricted resources.
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4. Grants and Contributions Receivable

Grants and contributions receivable are estimated to be collected as follows at June 30,

2020 and 2019:

2020. 2019

Land

Buildings and improvements

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment

Software

SuBtbtal

Less accumulated'depreclation

Total

2020 2019-
_ 'J

15,500 $  15,500

829,637 829,637

62,534 62,534

86,204 77v244

_ 43,550 , 33,000

1^037^425 iljOT71915-

(116,175) .  . (72;405)

_921,250 $_945,510

Depreciation expense totaied $43,770 and $28,847 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Within one year $ 346,441 $ 374,658 \
Two to five years 20,000 30,000 |
Total $. 366,441 . $. ..404,658.. ?

Discount to net present value has not been recorded for contributions to be collected In j
more than one year, as it has been determined to be immaterial. |

5. Investmeiits

Investments, measured at fair value on a recurring basis and categorized i.n.the fair value

hierarchy as Level 1, consist of U.S. common stocks at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organization recognized ${7,170) and $2,265,
respectively, of unrealized gains (losses) on Investments in equity-securities.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019:
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7. Refundable Advances

The Organization receives grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenditures. Amounts

received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances.
At June. 30, 2020 and 2019, $15,377 and $0, respectively, of grant funds-are r^efle.cted as
refundable advances.

In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of.$194,900 under-
the Small Business Administration (SBA) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP,
established as part of the Coronavlrus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act),
which was enacted March 27, 2020, provides for loans to qualifying organizations for

amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses. The loan and accrued

interest may be forgiven after 24 weeks providing the Organization uses the loan

proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent, and utilities, and

maintains certain payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the

Organization terminates employees or reduces salaries during the 24 week period.

Any unforgiven portion of the PPP loan Is payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%
with deferral of payments for the first ten months. The Organization intends to use the

proceeds for purposes consistent with the PPP requirements. In accordance with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles"; the Organization has recognized $160,500 of
the PPP loan as revenue as a result of qualifying expenses incurred in fiscal year 2020. The

remaining balance of the PPP loan. In the amount of $34,400 Is reflected as a refundable
advance in the Statement of Financial Position. Subsequent to year-end, the Organization

was approved by the SBA fo/100% forgiyeness of the PPP loan.

8. Net Asset's

Board-designated Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions include board-designated net assets which may be
accessed only with prior approval of the Board. Board-designated net assets at June 30,

2020 and 2019 are designated for the Manchester CAC development project.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net asset with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at June 30,»2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Time restrictions $ 55,000 $ 85,000
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Net assets were released from donor restrictions by Incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or the occurrence of the passage of time as follows for the years ended
June 30,2020 and 2019;

2020, 2019,

Expiration of time restrictions S 90,000 $ 90,030
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions ..32,000 39,416 .

Total $. 122,000. $..129,446 .

9. Grants

The Organization has been awarded cost-reimbursable grants of $77,671 that have not
been recognized: at.June 30, 2020 because qualifying expendjtures have not yet been

,  incurred.

Grant revenue from federal-agencies Is'subject to independent audit under the Office o*f
Management and Budget's Uniform Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. This

review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or

reductions of future grant funds. Based pri prior experience, the Organization's
management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially affect

the financial position of the Organization.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Contingent Liability

In fiscal year 2017, the New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority

(CDFA) awarded $325,000 in state tax credits to be used by the Organization to support
the renovation and expansion of the Organization's Greater Lakes Child Advocacy Center

in Laconia, New Hampshire. Under this program, the Organization received 80% or

$260,000. The CDFA requires a performance mortgage on the project property, up to the
net amount of the funding. The Organization, or another nonprofit entity approved by
the CDFA, must remain In ownership of the property for a period of ten years from the
contract start date. Additional requirements includer adequate insurance coversge and

timely payment .of all taxesiand.assessments. Th.eiCOFA pejlpjinancesmpjlgage;wil| self-
amortize over I'O years. If the'Organization doessndt' m'eet'ajl'requirrmert^^ the
agreement, the unamortized balance will be immediately due and payable'to the CDFA.

In fiscal year 2018, the New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
(CDFA) awarded $455,000 in Community Development Block.Grant Funds.(CDBG) to the
County of Belknap, New Hampshire (the County), $430,000 of which was passed through
to the Organization. The grant funds were used to support the renovation and expansion
of the Organization's Greater Lakes Child Advocacy Center in Laconia, New Hampshire.
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The CDFA requires a mortgage deed In the amount of $430,000 on the property that self-
amortizes over 20 years. The mortgage deed, granted by the Organization to the County,

secures to provide service benefits to a minimum of 76% lowand moderate income
persons, the project be completed in accordance with the contract, and that the property

remain in the ownership of the Organization, or another nonprofit entity approved by the
County, for a period of at least 20 years from the contract start date. Upon default of
these conditions, the County shall have the right, on behalf of the CDFA, to recover the
unamortized balance expended on the project. Unless previously discharged by the

County, its successors and assigns, the mortgage deed will be void and automatically
terminate after 20 years.

COVlD-19

The COVID-19 outbreak In the United States has resulted In economic uncertainties. The

disruption is expected to be temporary, but there Is conside.rAbj.e uncertainty around the
duration and scope: The extent of the impact of Cd\l'ID:19 or^ our_qpera'tibnal and
financial performance wlil depend on certaln'.d'evelbpmerits; including'tlie durat'ion arid
spread of the o.utbreak, impact on those we,serve, our funders, employees,, and vendors

all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At thiis point, the extent to which

COVID-19 may impact our financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.

11. Operating Leases

The Organization leases i office space under the terms of non-cahcellable lease
agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through fiscal year 2024. The
Organization also rents additional facilities on a month to month basis. Rent expense

under these agreements, which is included in occupancy in the Statement of Functional

Expenses, totaled $96,194 and $100,963 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Estimated future minimum lease payments are as follows:;

Fiscal Year Amount

2021 $' 57303

2022 " S_i212,
2023 ' '43,287'

2024 25;687_^.

Total future minimum rental payments $ „ 179,089_,

"'in October 2020, the Organization extended the Nashua CAC lease set to expire on
October 31, 2022 for an additional 2 years. In January 2021, the Organization amended

the Keene CAC lease, commencing on June 1, 2021, to occupy additional space and to
extend the term until June 30, 2026.
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12. Retirement Plan

The Organization provides a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of
the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to participate in the plan on their

first day of employment as long as they work 20 or more hours a week. The Organization

does not contribute to the plan.

13. Concentration's of Risk

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources,

the loss of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the State of New Hampshire accounted for 56% and

59%, respectively, of total revenues. ■

14. Reclassiflcatlons

Certain reclassiflcatlons of amounts previously reported have been made to the

accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented.

The reclassiflcatlons had no impact on previously reported net assets.

15. Subsequent Events

In February 2021, the Organization received a second Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)
loan in the amount of $194,900 from the Small Business Administration.

Subsequent events Have been evaluated through March 17,,2021-, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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GRANITE STATE CHILDREN'S ALLIANa

Schedule of Child Advocacy Center Expenses by Location

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Child Advocacy Center

Personnel expense:

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes

Employee benefits ~

Contracted services:

Other

Dues and subscriptions

Equipment, repairs, and maintenance

Grants

Insurance

Meetings

Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Office expenses

Staff developmer^t

Telephorre and inteTnet

Travel

Utilities

Total expenses before depred^ation
and administrative expanses

Depreciation

Administrative expenses allocation

Total Expenses

Keene.

121,821

9,096

11,857

3,629

2,943

5,739

17,653

960

■  338

25

9,600

4,386

3,669

2,589

4,112

2,409

200,826

1,357

61,746

263,929

Laconia

$  155,310

11,596

15,118

7,715

3,370

12,286

17,653

3,433

498

462

2,919

23,531

6,323

4,011

6,090

5,969

276,284

26,838

92,706

$  395,828

.s

Manchester

178,009

13,292

17.326

6;717

1,901

372

17,653

•2,044

10

22.327

'6,584

5,338

-4,789

10,462

4,105

!290,929

:2,494

89,184

$->1382,607

Nashua

92,109

6,878

8,965

2,496

1,901

269

17,653

1,549

33

21,636

7,727

3,554

5,707

2,278

172,755

978

53,019

$  226,752 .

Total

$  547,249

40,862

53,266

20,557

10,115

18,656

70,610

7,986

869

497

56.482

42,228

18,884

17,096

22,942

12.483

940,792

31,667

296,655

S _1.269,114-

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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Granite State
'•^^Children's Alliance"

.*» New Hampshire's Network of
0 Child Advocacy Centers

Director of Program Services
Job Description

REPORTS TO: Executive Director

NATURE AND SCOPE;

The Director of Program Services oversees the coordination and administration of forensic
interviewing, family advocacy and case management services in all GSCA CAC programs
(Hillsborough CAC, Monadnock Region CAC and Greater Lakes CAC). Provides oversight for
the scheduling of interviews and ensures adequate staffing of the center(s). Responsible for peer
review and ensuring forensic interview specialists are utilizing interview protocol and
incorporating best practices from the field. Shall provide support services to children and family
members; assist participants in the Center's multidisciplinary team; assist in the coordination of
multi-agency case review; conduct forensic interviews when applicable and provide comrnunity
education, outreach and prevention of child maltreatment.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

•  Provide direct supervision to program coordinators and Americorps Advocates ensuring
quality services are provided to participating agencies including child protection, law
enforcement, prosecutors, medical and mental health personnel.

• Organize and facilitate an agency-wide peer review process. Provide constructive
feedback to forensic interview specialists.

•  Ensure that program activities operate within the policies and procediires'bf the
organization. Develop protocols, policies and procedures for hew programs or initiatives.

•  Familiarize self with trends in, the field, best practice and current research through
attendance at training events, reading literature and participating in on-line blogs or list
serves.

•  Consistently demonstrates professional behaviors and leadership skills that are in support
of the vision, mission, and philosophy of the Granite State Children's Alliance at both the
organizational and community level.

• Works with the executive director to research the need for new initiatives or programs.
Develop and implement new initiatives or programs, utilizing best practices, with support
from executive director, program staff and collaborating partners.

• Communicates effectively and functions in a collaborative manner within all levels of the
organization, with participating agencies and within the community.

•  Performs such other duties as assigned by the executive director.



•  Participate in community collaboratives for agency recognition and resource
development.

• Maintains a positive relationship with Multidisciplinary team members so as to ensure
program success. Offers training to Multidisciplinary team members as needed.

• Assists in the gathering and reporting of program data, quality assurance ̂ d outcome
evaluation as assigned.

•  Participates in agency fimdraising activities and projects.
•  Facilitates Pre and Post Interview meetings with MDT members and families on an as

needed basis.

•  Conducts Forensic Interviews of Children ages 3 to 17 on an as needed basis.

MINirvrUM KNOWLEDGE. SKILLS AND ABILITIES REQUIRED:

•  Bachelor's degree in social work, criminal justice, psychology or related field.

•  Three years previous experience in a child advocacy center setting.

•  Strong communication and interpersonal skills so as to maintain strong, positive relationships
with individuals of diverse backgrounds, cultures and experiences.

• Demonstrated ability to give and receive feedback from peers and team members.

• Demonstrated writing skills to develop internal written communication such as policies and
procedures and external educational or informational materials.

• Advanced knowledge of the child forensic interview, .including but not limited to, a working
knowledge of dynamics of child sexual abuse, working knowledge of law enforcement,
ability to engage children of all ages in an interview-type setting, protocol required for a
valid interview defensible in court.

•  Strong relationships with community members especially members of the multidisciplinary
team.

• Demonstrated strong and creative problem solving skills.

•  Strong organizational skills.

In accordance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, the above is intended to summarize tbe
essential functions of and requirements for the performance of this job. It is not meant to be an
exhaustive list of miscellaneous duties and responsibilities that may be requested in the
performance of this job. >



MEGHAN E.NOYES

PERSONAL ATTRIBUTES/CAPABTLITIES

Strong communication skills-Honest-Dependable
Enthusiastic-Dedicated-Accountable-Patient

Empathetic-Flexible-Multi-Tasking

t

•  Very hard working and eager to be involved in victim services
•  Inspired to excel and able to perform best with others
•  Proven excellence in verbal communication skills with past and present jobs
•  Able to handle high-intensity situations, with quick physical and mental responses
• Motivated to obtain persona! goals and assist others in reaching IheirS'

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts Degree in Criminal Justice. Plymouth State University, May 2006
3.7 GPA on 4.0 basis

Associates Degree in Criminal Justice, Mclntosh College, Dover NH, May 2004
3.87 GPA on 4.0 basis

Certified Part-time NH Police Officer. December 2008.

Nationally Trained Forensic Interviewer. January 2007.

Conducted over 2000 interviews of. child abuseMctims as of J' 2/3-i/2dJ8.

CPR/First Aid Certified. May 2012

AWARDS

•  City of Laconia, Debra Bieniarz Outstanding Service to Youth Award. 2010.
• Academic Award. 254^ NH Part-time Police Academy. December 2008.
• Excellence in Criminal Justice Award, Mclntosh College. May 2004

CIVIC AFFILIATIONS

Family Violence and Prevention Council. Belknao County. 2010-Present
Aloha Phi Siema-Vice President Honor Society. 2005-2006

Big Brothers and Big Sisters. 2000-2002 Present

MEGHAN NOYES Page 2



RELATED EXPERIENCE

Director, of Program Services. Granite State Children*s Alliance January 2007-Present
Laconia, NH

• Daily procedures include conducting forensic interviews of child abuse victims,
providing training to Multi-Disciplinary Team members in the areas of child
abuse/interviewing, supervision and support to direct service staff, grant writing and
training and prevention outreach within the community.

Special Deputy. Belknap County Sheriffs Department June 2016-Present
• Ddly procedures include transportation of inmates to court hearings, transportation of

lEA individuals to psychiatric facilities, responding to emergency and non-emergency
calls, execution of warrants and extraditions throughout the Nordieast/Country and
participating in on-going law enforcement trainings.

Patrol Officer. Part-time. Plymouth State University Police August 20.08-0ctobcr 2017
•  Daily procedures include responding to emergency and non-emergency calls, issuing

parking violations, participating in University Police trainings and participating in
University events/trainings,

Communitv Service Officer. Laconia Police Department May 2006-January 2007
LaConia, NH

• Daily procedures include responding to non-emergency calls, issuing parking
violations, and attending community events

REFERENCES- Available upon request



ilf.
;^Granite State
" Children's Alliance

POSITION TITLE: Director of Education and Outreach

REPORTS TO: GSCA Executive Director

The Director of Education and Outreach for the GSCA is responsible for organizing
statewide training and outreach efforts, implementing marketing initiatives and
managing statistical data collection and reporting. The Outreach Coordinator will also
assist with fundraising activities within the GSCA's tri-county CAC Programs.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILIITES

•  Manage the GSGA Marketing Committee and help implement the statewide

Marketing Plan with respect to maintaining branded GSCA/CAC materials,,
•  implementing social media campaigns and acting as administrator for online
marketing tools to promote awareness of the GSCA/CAC membership mission.

•  Build relationships with the GSCA membership and develop a thorough
understanding of the status of all CACs in NH to support ongoing and long-term
outreach/marketing activities and objectives associated with GSCA and its CAC

members.

•  Collect and analyze statewide statistical data from our GSCA membership on a
bi-annual basis.

•  Collect and compile monthly GSCA membership reports for the Executive

Director and the GSCA Board, of Directors.

• Oversee the statewide QMS (Outcome Measurerhent System) and
measure/collect other meaningful data to develop repdrtable outcomes to
demonstrate Impact for funders, legislators and other key stakeholders.

•  Implement a local and statewide outreach and education campaign: to include but
not limited to; school districts, sport groups, youth serving organizations, religious
organizations and businesses.

• Assist, the Executive Director and Director of Resource Development with. the.
development of grant proposals relative to statewide educational initiatives and

statewide outreach efforts.

•  Assist the Executive Director with various administrative duties.

• Assist the tri-county CACs with various fundraising events.



REQUIREMENTS

1. Bachelors Degree with at least 2 years of relevant experience

2. Preferred knowledge and experience with CACs and/or the dynamics of child

sexual abuse

3. Experience providing training and technical assistance to professionals
4. Experience with various fundraising activities such as event planning, grant

development and campaigns

5. Strong skills in public speaking

6. Excellent written and communication skills

7. Engaging, energetic with strong organizational skills, consistent follow through

and self motivation

8. Knowledge and experience working with social media (Facebook, Constant

Contact, Twitter etc.) for business purposes

9. Ability to work with a diverse structure of member agencies, communities and

professionals

10. Strong leadership skills and a solid work ethic

Please send resume and cover letter-to Joy Barrett at

Granite State Children's Alliance

2 Wellman Ave Suite 140

Nashua, NH 03064

Or

Jbarrett@cac>nh.orQ



Mesan Malla Ollviero

OBJECTIVE: To broaden my impact as an advocate for children.

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS:

•  Dedicated advocate for child victims of crime

•  An excellent communicator, collaborator and team player

•  A natural leader; thoughtful, organized and energetic

EXPERIENCE:

5/15-present

9/06-S/lS
l/ll-present

9/14-4/15

8/13-5/14

12/10-present

1/06-9/06

Education & Outreach Director

Granite State Children's Alliance, Nashua, NH

Responsible for training, outreach and education activities for the Chapter organization-
Including organize training and professional development opportunities for CAC Staff &
MOT members, implementation and creation of the KNOW & TELL program, oversight of
the outcome measurement survey collection.

Stay athome'mother, Bedford, NH
Volunteerwork includes:

Secretary, Board of Directors, Granite State Children's Alliance
Board meeting minutes, serve on the Executive Council, Chair Key Stake Holders
Committee, Gala Committee planning member, attend and participate in events. Organize,
plan agenda for committee meetings, actively communicate and engage with stakeholders
and volunteers.

NH Leadership Series-attend once monthly weekend leadership intensives for
development of leadership & teamwork skills, collaborate with action group, advocate &
organize on legislative bills, attend legislative and budget hearings.
LEND Family Fellow
Durham, NH
Leadership Education in Neurodevelopmental and Related Disabilities.
Participate in weekly seminar classes. Leadership.in Action Placement at Community
Crossroads, advocate and organize members of policy partners program fa legislative
advocacy engagement program). Initiated one to one conversations with community
leaders, participated in child development clinics, communicate with parents and child
development team.
NH LEND Advisory Board Member-Participate in.annual meeting to strengthen
supports for people with developmental disabilities & the;misslon of the: LENI) Program.

Executive Director

Foothills Child Advocacy Center, Charlottesville, VA
Responsible for management of agency; including grant writing and implementation,
reports to funding agencies, conduct forensic interviews, case management and responsible
for MDT case tracking meetings, hired staff, information and referral services. Facilitated
prevention, education and outreach trainings on child sexual abuse to various community
stakeholders.

9/03-1/06 Child Advocacy Program Coordinator
Sexual Assault Resource Agency, Charlottesville, VA



Provide direct services to school aged children and non-offending family members;
including crisis Intervention, confidential counseling and support groups. Created
outreach material, organized and presented material at outreach and education events.
Coordinated Child Assault Prevention Program; including outreach to school staff and
parents, trained and supervised volunteers, secured additional funds to expand program.

9/01-9/03 Victim Witness Advocate
Middlesex District Attorney's Office, Somerville, MA
Collaborate with Assistant District Attorney, Forensic Interviewer, and law enforcement
in the investigation and prosecution of child abuse cases. Provide support, information,
and referrals to victims and their families during the criminal justice process. Assist with
victim impact statements. Participated in case tracking meeting. Outreach presentations
to schools and other community members.

Professional Development and Training:
NH Leadership Series, September 2014-present
LEND Program, August 2013-May 2014
Stewards of Children Facilitator Training, Darkness to Light April, 2014
NH Center for Non-Profits, Building a Confident Fundraising Board, March & April 20,12
Child Advocacy Center Management Training, May 2006
Forensic Interviewer Training, February 2006
Child Assault Prevention Program Trainer, August 2005

Education:

1999 Graduate of The University of New Hampshire, Bachelor's Degree Psychology cum laude



Granite State
"-^il^Chiiclren's Alliance

New Hampshire's Network
Child Advocacy Centers

Executive Committee

Dr. Adrian Thomas, MD (joined 2014)

Chairman of the Board

New Hampshire NeuroSplne Institute

4 Hawthorn Drive, Bedford, NH 03110

AdrianThomasMD(S)gmail.com

Jarad Vartanlan (Joined 9/2018)
Treasurer

Vachon Clukay and Company

608 Chestnut Street, 2nd Floor

Manchester, NH 03104

Jvartanian@vachonciukay.com

Attorney Nick E. Abramson (Joined 9/2017)
Secretary

Abramson, Brown & Ougan, PA

1819 Elm Street

Manchester, NH 03104

nabramson@arbd.com

Andy Crews (joined 2013)

immediate Past Chairman

AutoFaIr

acrews@autofalr.com

Granite State Children's AH

Board of pirectors^ fiscal Year 2022

Revised 07-2021

(20 Board Members)

(11 Quorum)

Dan Bennett (Joined 12/2020)

NH Automobile Dealers Association

507 South Street, Bow NH 03304

dbennett@nhada.com

Cathy Brittis (Joined 2012)

The CAC of Grafton/Sullivan County at DHMC
One Medical Drive

Lebanon, NH 03756

Cathy.b.bean@hItchcock.org

Kelly Cohen Uolhed 1/2021)

Cohen Closing & Title

334 Route 101, Bedford, NH 03110

kroosacohen@cohencloslng.com.com

Dr. Matthew Dayno (Joined 5/2020)

Elliot Health System

One Ellio.t Way, Manchester, NH 03103

Matthew.daynb@gmall.com
mdayno@elllot-hs.org

Lieutenant Patrick Hannpn .(Joined 9/2020)

Nashua Pplice DepajtrTie.nt j
28.0fncer James Roche Driye,.Nashua, NH 03060

HannohP@Nashuapd.com

Phannl63@gmail.com
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Sherry Hausmann (joined 5/2020)
SoiutionHeaith

360 Route 101, Unit 8, Bedford, NH 03110

Sherry.Hau$mann@)soiutlonhealth.org

Chris Hodgdon (joined 2007)

Comcast

54 Regional Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Chrl$_hodgdon@cable.comcast.com

Stephen Langan (joined 2010)

Fidelity Management and Research

One Spartan Way - TS2J Merrimack, NH 03054

bedford[angans(S)gmail.cbm

Lt. Matthew Larochelle (joined 11/2018)

Manchester NH Police Department

mlarochelle(S> manchester.nh.gov

Attorney Chris McLaughlin (joined 7/2020)

Cheshire County Attorney's Office

12 Court Street) Keerie, NH 034M.

cmclaughlln(S)co.cheshire.nh.us

cmclaughlin829(g) icloud.com

Teresa Rhodes Rosenberger (joined 2017)

Bernstein Shur

15 N. Main Street

Concord, NH 03301

Teresa.rosenberger(g>gmaII.com

trosenberRer@bernstelnshur.com

Attorney David Rotman (joined 1/2018)
NHDOJ- Attorney General's Office

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

David.Rotman@doj'.nh.g6v J

Brad Russ (joined 2012)

internet Crimes Against Children

lowest Edge Drive

Durham, NH 03824

Brad.ru $s(S>unh.edu

Attorney Philip Taub (joined.2009)

Nixon Peabody

900 Elm Street fll400

Manchester, NH 03101

ptaub@nixonpebody.com

Kristin Vartanlan (joined 12/2020

Rockingham County Attorney's Office
no.Route 125, Brehtwood,-:NH:03833I

kvartanian@rcao.net

Marga Patterson (joined 2017)

WZID

181 PInebrook Place

Manchester, NH 03109

margabessette@comcast.net
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GRANT AGREEMENT

V

The State of New Hampshire.anil the Subrecipicnl hereby
Muiuallyagree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Idcntincation and beHnidons.

I.I. iStatc Agency Name

New Hamp^shire Department of Justice

1 .'2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord,,NH 03301

1.3. Stlbrccipient'Ndm^''*"
"THE.CHILD ADVOCACY-CENTER OFGARROLL

•COUNTY; (CA'GCC):

1.4.(SubrecjpJent/A'dd^

56. Union Stfeet.'Wolfebord, NH 03894

7|"5 S^jSrwipie'ht Phone #

603-569-98:40

1.6; AccountjNumbcr

0'2-20-20-2d0010-2601-0

73-500581

1.7..Completion Date:

06/30/2023

riS^GraritXiniitatioh
's"- -

18,000

1.9. Graht.Officer for State Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 3l:9S»b."

Subrccipient Signature 1

r

Si^jfccipient Signature 2 If Applicable

1.12. Naitie & Title of Subrccipient Sighor I

<£; I, oicA £^'Cc^h\f<^trccl,/-

Natnc & Title of Subrccipient Signor

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of ,
on , befbre.the undersigned ofTiccr, jjersonally appeared the person identified in block 1.1-2., known to me (or
satisfactorily provM) to beMie person whose name is.signed in block 1. 1 1., and acknowledged that he/shc executed this
document in the.cap'acity indlcated;in.block 1.12.

ir. l3;r. •Si^at'urc ofNoXary^l^ubliVor^JusticeiOrthe.Peace

,(Scal)

.13.2. Name;& Title opNotary. Public or Justice of.thc Peace -

Sc-;IrJk "Fd f

1.14. State Ajgency Signatures)

"KfltdUen Carr

MY

99mssK)tii:\[ 't
x.-EXPIHtSr- J ■ r-

;  j I

.15. Name & Tib^|^i^^^^^!sign6rts)
Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and'Execution) (if G,& C approval required)

7/^8/2021
1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By; On: /  /

2;SC0PE' OF^WORK: In exchange fpr;graht funds provided by the State: of'Ncw Hampshire.'^acting througK.the Agency,
identified.ih block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to w "the State"), the Subrccipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly'described in the.scope of worka^ch'ed'hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work Iwing hercinafter.referred to.as'hhc.Project").
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A.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

ARRA COVERED. E.xccpl OS oihcn«se specifically provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrccipient shall perform the Project in. and with respect to. the State of New
Hampshire.
RFFRCTIVR DATE: CQMPLRTIQN QP PRQJRCT,

This Agreement, and all obligatioiis of the parties hcreunder. shall become 9.3.
effective on the dale on the date .of approval of this Agrccmcnt by the Governor
and CourKil of the State of New Hampshire if reqiiircd (block 1.17), or upon 9.4.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the cfTcciivc date**),
lycccpt as otherwise specifically provided herein., the Project, including oil
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in PI'S entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hcrcinnficr referred to as "the Completion Dale").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAVMRNT. 9.5.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in RXHIBIT B,
Btuiehcd hereto. 10.

lite manner of. and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in RXMIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT D. and in consideration
of the satisfactory pcrformttncc of the Project, as determined by the Slate, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrccipient the Cram Amount. The State shall withhold IVom the.amount
oiheruise pa)'able to the Subrccipient undcr this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to'N.H: RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The pa>meni by the State of the .Grant amount dtall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient'for all expenses, of whatever nature. II.
incurred by the Subrccipient in the performance hereof, ond shall be the only. I I.I.
and the complete, compcnsatjcm to the Subrecipicm The State,
shall have no liabiliiicstpt^'Subrccipicnt;pl}iCT.than:the Gra^
Nowilhstanding; nnyihing, in • this .Agrcerncrit; to" die. conir^, and d.l'.J.l^
notwithstanding uncxpccltxl circ^s^ccs.':in no event shafi jhc twal prs;all.<,il.l'.2
payments authorized,'^ orDCtiiaily.iinadp,.hcmndcr cxeced^thc Grant ilmitaiion; .J l"1.3
set forthih blockjl.S'oflhcso'gcncrnl'provisibns; _ iri.4
COMPLIANCE BY SUDRECIPli-NT WITH LAWS AND REGULAlidNS. il 1.2.^
In connection with Ihc pcrformaricc'df the Proj«!Ci;:ihe Subi*clpiem shaJLcbmpiy
with all siatuics, laws regulations; and orders of federal, state, county, or 11.2.1
municipal authorities which shall impose any obli^iiohs or duty upon the
Subrecipient; including the ocquisilioh of any andall necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOIWTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years aficr the Completion
Date the Subrccipient shall kcq) de'tailed'accounts of all expenses incurred in 11.2.2
connection with the Project, including, but not - limited to, costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
atvl services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years aficr the Completion
Date, at any lime during the Subrccipient's normal business hours, and as oficn 11.2.3
OS the State shall demand, the Subrccipient shall make avoilablc to the State all
records pertaining to mutters covered by this Agiecment. The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit the State to audit, c.xaminc, and raproducc such records, and .to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, mmcrials. payrolls, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that term is hcrcinafier defined), and other Information relating to alj matters 12.1.
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, Subrccipient" includes
alt persons, natural or fictional, afTiiioled with, cpntrollcd by. or under common
ownership with, the entity Identified ttS:lhc Subrccipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Subrccipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrccipient warrants that all pcr^nhcl engaged in the <
Project shall be qualified.to i^ormrsuch Project^ and sKali be properly, licensedr
and authorized to pcrfonh such Prbjcct'undd- all oppltcabic laws.
The- Subrccipieht sKall ̂ rwi ihirc,; arid.^it' shall niM.^p«mit.>dny subeohtiiutor, :l2.3.v
lubgrantee,'- or blhcrr pctMn, 'firm or MrpQbtibh>with .w-hpm it.is engaged in a.
combined effort to perfbrm.ihe'Prbjcc0b'hire'ehy person cbntraciiial'-
relationship'with thc'Staic,> or is b.StaterofTiccr'W cmpioyMi^ciected or"
oppoinied.
TTic Grant Officer shail be the rcprcscniaiivc of the State hcrcundcr. In the event '12.4.
of any dispute hercundcr. the mtcrprctalion of this. Agrccttienl by the Grant
Oniccr. and his/her decision on any dispute, shall bc final.
DATA: RE-mNTlON OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in-this Agrccmcrit,'the; word ■••data" ihall mcan oil-informmion ond 13..
things developed or obtained .during the performance-of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but noi limitcd to, oil sludics.
rcpons, files, formulae, surveys, maps, cherts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Between the Elfcctivc Date and ihe-'Compleiipn.Date'ihe Subrccipient shall
grant to thc State, or any person desigriatcd by li unrestricted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publicalibn. tnmslatipn, sale, disposal, or for any
other purporw whatsoever.
No data shall bc stibjcct to copyright in thc United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and afier the EITcctivc Date all data, and any property which has been
received from iHc State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of thc State, and shall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shuirilrst occur.
Thc State, and anyone it shall designate, shall hove unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in port, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR ACREEMRNT Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hcreunder, ineluding,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued apprt^riaiion of funds, and in no event shall the
State be lioble for any payments; hcreunder in excess rof such'available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those fiinds. the
State shall have the right to withhold, payment until such furtds become
available, if ever, and shall have thc ri^t to terminate this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT- REMEDIF,S
Any one or rnore of the following acts or omiuions of the Subrecipient shall
coiwiiuie on .event bf.dclbiilt Kaeunder/(hercinailer refen^.tb u "Events of
Pcfeuit^t
Failufe;to^perfonn.the;Projccvsatlsfnctorilyoron-schedu)e;or
Fbilure:,lo.subm.it"'my rcpoif;_f^tjilrt hercundcr,'.Wi
Failurei^io miilntnini'.orp^li.^css.tp, thc.wortsrcquj^hc^^
Tailurc'io pcrlbrm'any'ofiho oihcrcoyenantsud;oonditions:ofihls Agreement.
Upon'the:;pccurrencc of:8ny Evcnt:ofiDcfculC'ibe;'State may take any one, or
'more, or all| of the fbllbwing actions: .
Give-thc Subrccipient a~written notice specifying; the Event of Dcfbull and
requiring it to be remedied' withiiv in -the "iibs^e of a greater or lesser
spMificoliori of ume.'thirty' (30) 'da;^.fi^''thc datc-of the ndtiu; and if the
Event of Oefbull is nol.timely.rdnedied; lerihiridle'this Agreement, cfTcctivc two
(2).days afler ^ving the Sidirccipient notice of termination; and
Give the Subrccipient a, written notice ^specifying'the Event of Dcfisult and
suspending oil paymcntS'lo be made under this Agreement and ordering Ihot the
portion of the Grant Amouni'which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the dote of such notice until such time as the Stole
determines that the Subrecipient has cured thc Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrccipient; and
Set off ogainst any other oblignlion the State may owe to the Subrccipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Dcfaulli and
Treat thc-agrccmcm as breachtxJ and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.
TERMINATION.
In the event of ony early icrminiition of,this Agreement for any reason other than
the cqmpieiion of the F^pjcct, ihe Subrccipient slul.l defiver to the Grant Omcer,
not Inter than fiflecn (15) days afier the date of tenninatipn,.a report (hereihafier
referred lo:as the "Termination Report") dcwribingun detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination,
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions,-the approval of such a Terminal^c>n'Repo^^by'the State shall entitle
the''Subrccipient.to recdvc that portion of the'Grant:amount earned to and
iiKliiding thb'date of tniiiinatiori;
lndthe1Cvcnl'.'of^Tcrminat^on! tinder iparographs <10 or ;i2.4 of these general
'piovisionsi the itpprbvididf stichla Termihim'<mrReport^by;the^Stnte shall in no
eVehLrc1ievc,the*Subrecipicnt (h)m:Briy'Bndrmi'Iiabjlify.'for,damagcs'sustaincd or
iiicui^ by the Stue 'u-a;.r<^lt of tKe Submipimt's^brcach of its obligations
hereuiider.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agrberrichi'io the'^ntrwy, either the State or.
cx^t where notice default has been given to the-Subrecipicnt.hereunder, thc
Subrccipient, may'ierminate lhis Agreement .without cause'upon thirty (30) days
wTiitcnnoiicc.
CONFLICT OF INTERE.ST. No lomcer, mcmlxr of employee of thc
Subrecipient. and no represcniaiiye, ofTic^ oriemplbyee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing'body,^of 'the' locafity or localities in -^lich the
inject is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of thc undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her
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u.

15.

16.

19.

20.

17,

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

personal micrcst or (he imeresi of any corporation, partnership,- or associmion 17.2.
in N^-hich he or she is directly or indirixily interest^, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds ihcrcor.
SURRRCIPII-NT'S RI-LATIQN TO THK STATC. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subreeipient. its qnployccs, and .any. -subcontractor or
subgmniee of the:Subrccipient.Qre.in.Bll. respeccs'indcpendcm contmtors. and 18.
are neither agents nor employees of the State, . Neither the Subreeipient nor any
of its ofTiccrs, employees; agents, members, subcontractors-or subgrantecs,
shall have authority to bind thb State nor arc'th'ey.mtitlcd ibai^ of the benefits,
M-orlrmen's com'pchstion or-embliiments provide by the State to its
employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrwipicnt shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior Mtitten
consent of the State. None of the .frojcci Worl shall be sutKontrncicd or
subgrantcd bythc Subreeipient other than.us.scl forth in ^hibit A \*nihout the
prior written consent of the State.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subreeipient shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its olticcrs and employees. iVom and against any and all
losses sufTcrcd by the State, its ofTicers and employees, and any and all claims,
liubiliiics or penalties asserted against the State, its ofHccrs and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of. based oa resulting from, arising out 21.
of (or u-hteh may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Subreeipient or subcontractor, or subgrantcc or other agent of the Subreeipient.
NoiwiiKstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE AND nOND.

The Subreeipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or 23.
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantcc or assignee performing Project
work to obtain end maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:
Statutory workmen's compensation and employees Ibbility insumnce for all -24.
employees engaged in the pefformancc of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability iiisumnce against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amount^npt Icss.than $1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000.aggregate for M.ijy injury or'death any one incident,-aitd
.$500,000 rorproperty.damage.m anyonc incident; and.

The pbliciis described' in subpdiagiaph 17.1 of this psuagniph shall be the
stondahj form employed iri the Stale of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, arxl ituthorizcd to do business in the Suite of New
Hampshire. Ibch policy shall contain a clauM prohibiting cancellation or
modificalipn of the pojicy earlier ihan-icn (10) days oRer written notice thereof
has been received by the Slate.
WAIVER OF RREACH. _N6 failure by-lhelSlale to enforce any provisions
hereof aOer any Event of-DefauIi shalljbc deemed a^waiver of its rights with
regard'to'that Event,,or any'suhscquenfrEvent; No'exprcss wiiivcr of any Event
of Default shall bc 'dnm'cd a waivcr'of any. provisions hereof.- No'ttich failure of
wiiivcr^il bc'dccmol a 'wnivcr'of the right of the'State to ehfbrce'cach and ell
of'thc provisions hereof upon-any funher or other defaijlt'on the-part of the
Subreeipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto ip the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly deliver^ or given ai-ihe time of.maijing.by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United Sutcs Post Omce.addressed to the ponies at the
addresses first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived.or discharged only
by on instrument in writing signed by the panics hereto and only alier ai^roval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon end inures to the benefit of'the panies and their rcsp^live
successors and assignees. The' captions end contents of the "subject" blank arc
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be consider^ a pan of this
Agreement or to be used in dctcrmining .thc intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIE.S. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third.panics
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrccmcnt, which may be executed in a number
of counterpans, each of which shall.be'deemed tin original, constittncs the entire
agreement and understanding between-'the .panies, and supersedes all prior
agreements and uiidersumdings relating hereto.
.'SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Hie additional provisions set fonh in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporetiid-as"pan'of this agfc^ent
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1 . The "THE CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF CARROLL COUNTY" (CACCC) as

Subrecipient shall receive a subgrani from the New Hampshire Department of Justice

(DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for forensic child advocacy interviews

and victim services provided by the Subrecipient.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgefed.expenditures

described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred.expenses for,

reimbursement'on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports-shall be.-submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15).days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditurereports submitted later

than thirty (30) days following the end ofthe quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an cnvard that begins on January J, the,first.quarterly
report is due on April! 5''^ or 15 days afier the closeof the first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both

state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this

office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting

documentation shall be maintained for at least three (3) years after the close of the

project.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for

review and compliance.

5. Subrecipient.shall.be subject to periodic desk audits-arid.prbgram reviews by DOJi Siich.

desk^audits;andprqgramTeyiews shall be scheduIed wjthiSubrecipXent^ap^
shall be made^byiSubfecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice:

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1261 or Tanya.pitman@doj.nh.gov

Page 4 of8
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EXKTBIT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipienl shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as.described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures. Said paytpent shall be made to the Subrecipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Flampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000 of the.fotal

Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval through 06/30/22, with

approved-expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued ;state funding
appropfiatibh arid:program,-pefformance.

3b; Tbe Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not:tboxceed-,$9i0^0p,of the total

Grant;Limitation ff6m Governor and Councilappfovalor 07/01/22,.whichever is
later; until 06/30/23, with approved expenditure reports. This shalU'be contingent
on continued state funding appropriation and program performance.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred^
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval nor after 06/30/23.

Page 5 of 8
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and

specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject'to annual review.

Page 6 of 8
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EXHIBIT G

DOJ State Funding

SPECIAL CONDJTIOm

1. The Subrecipie,nt authorizes the New. Hampshire Department of Justice (NHD.OJ)
and its representatives, access to and the right to examine all records, books, paper or
documents related to this subgrant.

2. Discrirnination Findings - The Subrecipient assures that in the event that a Federal or
State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes.a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground of race, religion, national
origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of victim assistance formula funds under
this award, the recipient will forward a copy of the findings to the DOJ.

3. The Subrecipient understands that subgrants are funded for the grant award period noted
on the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequentifunding in
future years'

4. The Subrecjpierit agericy agrees that, shbu]d they^employ'a,form'er'me^
DOJ, that-emp^lqyee.or-.their..relatiye shall npt;perf6rm work on:or,be:billed'toiany
federal or state subgranfor monetary award that thc'emplpyee djrectly managed or
supervised while a't the NHDOJ for the .life of the subgrant without the express
approval of the NH DOJ.

5. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no.charge to victims
unless a program income waiver is obtained from-the NHDOJ. If permission to

generate program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a

sliding scale that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on
grant allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

6. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the
agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,

percentage of state funds, and location.

7. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it

be an^audit under 2 CFR or.not, the Subrecipient agreesto proyide.'a copy, pf the audit

and any .asspciated mariagement letters to, the'NHDOJ-, Grants Managemeht jUpit; Th®'
Single: AuditTepbrtrnust-be;,submitted.'to;tb'e:Grarite M^agementUhit y/ithih.'9^^^^
after the-'Subrecipient's year-end or one month after the issuance of tHe audit..

PagcTofS ir<// '
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EXHIBIT C

8. The Subrecipient, if a nonTprofitvorganizationKagrees/to .make its flnancial.statements
available online (either on^th'e.Subrecipient's website" or the.NHDOJ's,.of another

publicly available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are

considered in.co.mpliance with this requirement, with no further action heeded,,to,the
extent that such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar.tax documenti(e.g., 990-
EZ), as several sources already provide searchable online databases ofsuch financial

statements.

9. The Subrecipient, if a nonrprofit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to NHDOJ: I) affirmatively asserting that the recipient Is a non

profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available
upon audit one of the following:

•  A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

A letter from the State ofNH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit
organization operating within the state, or:

A copy o.fthe subrgrantce's state certificate of incoi^jpration that substantiates
•its hop- profit,status,

Subrecjpients that;arc lpcaI;non-profit affiliates of state or-na^^^ npn-projfityshould
alsahavcra statemeht.by the pareht.'organizatibh that'the Subrecipient is a local •non
profit affiliate.

1 have read and understand all 9 special conditions contained-in ihis documeni:

Nprne and Title of Ainhorized Representative

(ignaiure Date

Name and Address of Agency /
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE CHILD ADVOCACY

CENTER OF CARROLL COUNTY" (CACCQ Is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact biisiness in

New Hampshire on June 17,2004.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and Is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business 10:476858

Certificate Number: 000S4O9S67

A

H.

%

Ba.

A
%

5^
sT

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hartd and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

thU 19th day of July A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



I, June Connors, hereby certify that I am the duly elected Secretary of The Child Advocacy
Center of Carroll County. At a meeting of the Board of Directors, held electronically on July 19,
2021, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting. VOTED: That Elizabeth
Kelley-Scott, Executive Director, is duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on
behalf of The Child Advocacy Center of Carroll County with the State of New Hampshire and
any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any documents which may
in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. I hereby certify
that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect. I further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as
evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they
have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority
of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all
such limitations are expressly slated herein.

This authority shall remain valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of
Authority.

Julvl9. 2021

Date // Attest
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

JANAStERAD

OATB<¥iroomrm

THIS CERTinCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLOER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATTVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUaES
BELOW. THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(8), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the eortfflcato holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the po{lcy(ios) must have ADOmONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, sut^eet to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain poncles may require an sndorsemonL A wttitemiml on
this coftmeata does not confer rights to the certlflcats holder in lieu of such endorsementfsl.

PROoucen

NFP Property A Casualty Services, Inc.
POBox8l9
17 Bay Street
Wolfoboro, NH 09894

aaiif^LorleHopkliw

(603) 841-8088 I 548.«.):(803) 68841788
kMHi— lorfe.hopkinsAnfp.com

mSUREWSI APRJftOtKO COVERAOa NAlCf

meuRBiAsPhliadolohla Indemnltv Insurance Comoanv 18058

MtURGD

Child Advocacy Center of Carroll CounN
PO Box 948

68 Union Street
Wolfeboro, NH 09894

iNsuRSRB:Wesco Inturancs Comoanv 26011

INSURBRC;

INttmeAO:

weURCTi:

■NSUReRP:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTVWTHSTANDINO ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUaSS. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

(Nsn
jiL TYFaOPMSUIMNCa POUCY NtMBBR POUCYEW

LOOTe
A X COMMSRCUU. Oi«ERAL UABtUTY

X  OCCUR

!

PHPK222618e 1/11/2021 1/11/2022
KACHORfllRPFNOS 1  1,000,000

1 CLAlimM t  100,000
t  6,000

PERAONAL A AOV rKUl IRY 1  1,000,000
Qg)

x_
^AQQR6QATe^MH APPUES PER:

ft Uloc
GENERAL AQOREQATB S  2,000,000

POUCY 1 ISi PROOUCTS. COMPOPAOG t  2,000,000
OTHER: >

At/1roitoaaa uAsniTY CpUatNED 61N0L£ UltfT
1

ANY AUTO eODtLY INJURY fPer oenonl •

—

2S?SWy
aIIII&only

2 BOOLYIRIURY (Pw acddentt t

2 ^RwSiWAoe
rereocKMno 1

•

1
—

UKBREUAUAB

excauuAB

OCCUR

CLAIM8-MA06
eACHOCCURRENCS t

AOOfiEOATE 1

oeo 1 1 RETENnONI 1 1
B

R MA 0Mcrfe« under
rfseWPnON OP OPCRATIONS bekM

N/A
WWC9489910 10/19/2020 ION9/2021

gfSmrE m
E-LEACHACOOENT s  100,000
6.L OrSEASE - EA EMPLOYEE .  100,000

e.L DtEEASE . POLJCY UUfT I  666,660

DBSCRtPTIONOPOraRATtONe/LOCATIONe/VDUCiaa (ACOROiai.AMmeMlRnmrtoaeiwdid«.iMytoittetwdVaen»p«c*lii«qut>i«)

NH Department of Juetlce
99 Capitol Street
Concord, NH 09901

1

8HOULO ANY OF THE ABOVE DEaCRIBED POUCISa BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WIU BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVttlONa.

AUTMORSED RSPRBSENTA-nVB

ACORO 28 (2016/09) e 1088-2016 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reMrv^.
The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORO
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The Child Advocacy Center of Carroii County
Job Description

Executive Director

The Child Advocacy Center of Carroll County New Hampshire (CACCC) is a child-friendly,
family-focused non-profit organization Camoll County New Hampshire. The Center works in
collaboration with law enforcement, medical personnel, social service agencies, child advocacy
agencies, and the county Attorney's Office to provide a coordinated system of response and
care to children who are victims of sexual and/or physical abuse and their non-offending family
members through a full utilization of a multi-disciplinary team.

Position Summary: The Executive Director is responsible for the overall administration and
management of the Child Advocacy Center of Carroll County as well as the day to day activities
of the Center. The Executive Director Is ultimately accountable to the Board of Directors and
reports directly to the President of the Board.

Case Management Responslbllltlea:

1. Schedule and coordinate Joint forensic interviews of alleged child/adolescent sexual
abuse with multi-disciplinary team members.

2. Conduct forensic Interviews of alleged child/adolescent victims of abuse, as requested,
on behalf of the muiti-disdplinary team members.

3. Oversees the maintenance of case files and the Child Advocacy Center of Camoll
County's statistical tracking database.

4. Oversees the Multi-disciplinary Team Case Review, coordinate relevant case review
information with multi-disciplinary team members.

5. Testify in civil and criminal court proceedings, as appropriate or requested, on the
interview process and techniques as well as on specific interviews in individual cases.

6. Participate in quarterly Peer Review meetings; provide training and consultation as
requested regarding interview protocols and child development areas of interest.

7. Consult with muiti-disdplinary team members as requested or as deemed necessary.
8. Sen/e as a liaison to ail muiti-disdplinary team agendas and collaborating partners.
9. Provide limited telephone crisis inten/ention.
10. Provide community education regarding the prevention of child maltreatment.
11. Serve as a steward of the Child Advocacy Center of Carroii County In the community.

Program Administration ResDonslbllltles:

1. Working with the Board of Directors, maintains a shared vision for the future of the
organization and develops appropriate goals and strategies to advance the
organization's mission.

2. Recommends operational objectives that support the strategic plan and leads the staff In
the implementation of the strategic plan and any operational objectives.

3. Provides leadership In developing programs, organizational and finandai plans with the
Board of Directors and staff, and carries out plans and policies authorized by the Board.

4. Maintains official records and docurrients and assures compliance with federal, state and
local regulations.

Page 1 of 3



5. Maintains a working knowledge of emerging issues and significant developments in the
field of child abuse investigations.

6. Keeps the Board of Directors fully Informed on the condition of the organization and all
Important issues Influencing It.

7. Responsible for ongoing program evaluation including outcome measures.
8. Maintains a positive working relationship with the Board of Directors and partner

agencies.

Financial Management ResDonsiblllties;

1. Chief grant writer, who also monitors the grants and prepares required reports.
2. Responsible for Center bookkeeping and developing and maintaining sound finandai

practices.
3. Works with the staff, Finance Committee and the Board of Directors to prepare a budget

and sees that the Center operates \Arithln budget.
4. In partnership with the Board of Directors, the Fundraising Committee and appropriate

staff and volunteers the Director is responsible for developing and implementing
appropriate fundraising strategies to help fund the mission of the Center.

5. Searches for new and changing funding opportunities.

Community Outreach and Education Responsibilities:

1. The Director serves as the primary spokesperson for the Child Advocacy Center and
chief liaison to community groups and the media.

2. Publicizes the activities of the Child Advocacy Center and its programs and goals.
3. Develops and provides professional training for community agencies on Issues related to

child abuse and the role of the Child Advocacy Center.
4. Creating and providing community education to civic organizations...
5. Maintains a positive professional reputation in the community and is a good ambassador

for the Center.

Supervlsorv ResponslblHtlee:

1. Responsible for ensuring personnel have appropriate training and direction and acts as
day to day administrative supervisor.

2. Responsible for coordinating volunteers.
3. Responsible for hiring and disciplinary actions involving of all personnel In conjunction

with the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors.
4. In conjunction with specialty specific consultants or employees facilitates the preparation

and delivery of the performance management for the organization.

Other Responsibilities:

1. Any and all other duties as may be assigned by the Board or Directors.

Job Quallficatlons

The following qualifications are preferred for the candidate.
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1. The Executive Director is a professional position and preferably holds an advanced
degree in business, certified fund raising, social work, psychology, criminal Justice,
mental health or a related field with associated work experience.

2. A minimum of four years of experience in non-profit management including program
development and advocacy, grant writing, fund development, financial
management/bookkeeping and supervisory responsibilities is preferred.

3. A minimum of two years of professional experience In working virlth children and families
where abuse and violence are Identified issues is preferred.

4. Previous experience working with the criminal justice or child welfare system and as a
member of a multi-disciplinary team Is preferred.

5. A working knowledge of non-profit management and board development.
6. Experience in grant writing, grant monitoring, fund development and fund raising.
7. A working knowledge of bookkeeping (preferably with QuIckBooks), the budgeting

process and finandal management.
8. Knowledge and skills in human resources and staff development.
9. Ability to work as part of a multi-disciplinary team.
10. A working knowledge and understanding of family violence, substance abuse and the

dynamics of child abuse.
11. Strong public speaking skills.
12. Computer skills including Microsoft Office, PowerPoint and Publisher.
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Elizabeth R Kelley-Scott

Qualification Highlights

•  Able to work independently and as a collaborative team member
•  Experience and knowledge in buildmg and maintaining relationships with key stakeholder
•  Proven fUndraisIng success

Work Experience:

December 2009-present: Executive Director, Child Advocacy Center of Carroll County,
Wolfeboro, NH

Coordinate programmatic efforts with multi-disciplinary team members
Conducted numerous public awareness activities
Serve as program administrator for statistical case tracking system
Implement and develop training for multi-disciplinary team members
Provide on-going support and supervision to employees and other multi-disciplinary team
members

Serve as the primary liaison for the organization in the community and with all partner agencies
Responsible for all day to day management activities at the Child Advocacy Center
Working with the Board of Directors, maintains a shared vision for the future of the organization
and develops appropriate goals and strategies to advance the organization's mission.
Recommends operational objectives that support the strategic plan and leads the staff in the
implementation of the strategic plan and any operational objectives.
Provides leadership in developing programs, organizational and financial plans with the Board of
Directors and staff, and carries out plans and policies authorized by the Board.
Maintains official records and documents and assures compliance with federal, state and local
regulations.
Keeps the Board of Directors fUlly Informed on the condition of the organization and all important
issues influencing it.
Responsible for ongoing program evaluation including outcome measures.
Maintains a positive working relationship with the Board of Directors and partner agencies
Chief grant writer who also monitors the grants and prepares required reports.
Responsible for Center bookkeeping and developing and maintaining sound financial practices.
Responsible for preparing a budget and ensuring that the program operates within budget
Responsible for developing and implementing appropriate fund raising strategies to help fUnd the
mission of the Center.

February 2007 to December 2009: Program Coordmator, Child Advocacy Center of
Carroll County, Wolfeboro, NH
•  Provided over 450 neutral, fact-finding forensic interviews to alleged child abuse victims
•  Coordinate and identify services for non-offending caregivers and victims
•  Facilitate monthly case review meeting with multidisciplinary partners
•  Created numerous written materials for dissemination to community paitners and non-offending

caregivers
•  Coordinate scheduling with multi-disciplinary team members
•  Provide monthly statistical data to Boa^ of Directors
•  Coordinate clinical, dase management and medical services for alleged child victims
•  Serve as program administrator for statistical case tracking system
•  Provide on-going support and case coordination to all multi-disciplinary team members
•  Created numerous written materials for dissemination to community partners and non-offending

caregivers



Education

Plymouth State University
2006

Plymouth State University
2013

B. A. Mtuor; Psychology Craduated with honors

M.ED Self-designed program, focus :Organizational Leadership

SPECIALIZED TRAINING

Northeast Regional Qiildren's
Advocacy Center

National Children's Alliance

National Chiidren's Aliiance

National Children's Advocacy Center

National Children's Advocacy Center

National Children's Alliance

Council on Fundraising

National Children's Alliance

The Chadwicic Center

For Children and

Families

National Children's Advocacy Center

National District

Attorneys Association

Northeast Regional Children's
Advocacy Center

Leadership Exchange
and Coaching Project

Leadership Conference

Leadership Conference

Extended Forensic Interviewing

International Child Abuse Symposium

Leadership Conference

NH Grants Institute

Leadership Conference

22"^ Annual San Diego
Intematlona] Conference on

Child and Family Maltreatment

Advanced Forensic Interviewing

Child Abuse Summit

Multldiscipiinaiy Team Training
Academy

National Children's Advocacy Center Forensic Interviewing

2018-19

2019

2017

20IS

2013

2011

2010

2010

2009

2009

2008

2008

2007
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Ti-lr Name Employer Mailing Address

President

1- . - •■•v-

Diane Cleary
'  -*•

Secretary- iune Connors

treasurer Ray;MitcheII

Director Patricia Anderson

Director Scott Kinmond

Director Christine Stevens

-

Executive Director' Elizabeth Kelley-Sco! GACGC
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Key personnel: Elizabeth Kelley-Scott, Executive Director Salary: $87,247:68
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GRANT AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and^the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord. NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipient Name

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

1.4. Subrecipient Address

One Medical Center Drive, Lebanon, NH, 03756

1.5 Subrecipient Phone #

603-653-9012

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-200010-2601-0

73-500581

1.7. Completion Date

06/30/2023

1.8. Grant Limitation

S

36,000.00

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.1 1. Subrecipient Signature 1
OocuSlgntd by;

Barbara Moskalenko

1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 1
Barbara Moskalenko

Director Research Operations

Subrecipient Signature 2 If Applicable Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of ,
on , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11., and acknowledged that he/she executed this
document in the capacity indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(Seal)

1.13.2. Name & Title of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace |

14. State Agency Signature(s)

"KfitliCeen Corr

1.15. Name & Title of Slate Agency Signor(s)

Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: I  /

2.SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

Rev. 9/2015 Page 1 of 9 Subrecipient Initial(s): ,

Date:
7/15/2021
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in. and with respect to, the Slate of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obliplions of the parties hercunder. shall become 9.3.
efTeciive on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the Slate of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17). or upon 9.4.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the effective date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT. 9.5.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B,
attached hereto. 10.

The manner of. and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B. and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nature. 11.
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, 11.1.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and 11.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation 11.1.3
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions. 1 1.1,4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 1 1.2.

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply
with all statutes, lass's regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or 11.2.1

■municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient. including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.
Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in 11.2.2
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to. costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services, Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipienl's normal business hours, and as often 11.2.3
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit the Stale to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of ell contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters 12.1.
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph. "Subrecipient" irKludes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by. or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
PERSONNEL.
The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.
subgrantee. or other person, firm or corporation with uhom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project, to hire any person ^^ho has a contractual
relationship with the State, or who is a State ofTlcer or employee, elected or
appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hereunder. the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.
As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and 13.
things developed or obtained during the performance of. or acquired or
developed by reason of. this Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 2 of 9

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant to the Slate, or any person designated by it. unresuicted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.
The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in pan. all data.
CONDmONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Suite hereunder, including,
without limiuition. the continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever, and shall have the right to tenninate this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT QF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.
Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder. or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one. or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.
TERMINATION.
In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant OfTlcer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
rcfeired to as the 'Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipienl's breach of its obligations
hereunder.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or.
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient. may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient. and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement uhich affects his or her

Subrecipient Initial(s):

Date:
771572021
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14.

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association 17.2.
in ss^tich he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof
SUBRECIPIENT'S RELATION TQ THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgrantee of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent conuactors, and 18.
are neither agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its
employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS, The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written 19.
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgninted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold 20.
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its ofTiccrs and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out 21.
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notvrithsianding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE AND BOND.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or 23.
shall require any subcontractor, sub^ntee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:
-Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than $ 1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE, Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given.
AMENDMENT, This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only al^er approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not inteiKl to ixnefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT, This Agreement, vdiich may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an ori^nal, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 3 of 9 Subrecipient Initial(s):

Date:
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DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 8DF12E36-O235-45D1-8213-4FFF0DC9AF47

EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital as Subrecipient, for itself and on behalf of

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire
Department of Justice (DOJ) for the Child Advocacy Center expenses and services

provided for forensic child advocacy interviews.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, thefirst quarterly
report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
3J.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least three (3) years after the close of the grant
award.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for
review and compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit
33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1261 or Tanya.pitman@doj.nh.gov

...Tb"Subrecipient Initials —

7/15/2021
Date
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EXHIBIT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form F-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $ 18,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval through 06/30/22,
with approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued state
funding appropriation and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $18,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/22,
whichever is later, through 06/30/23, with approved expenditure reports. This
shall be contingent on continued state funding appropriation and program
performance.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, nor after 06/30/23.

Page 5 of 9
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and

specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.

2. The terms outlined in the General Terms and Conditions of the Grant Agreement are

modified as set forth below:

a. Provision 5.3 is deleted and replaced with the following:

In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration of

the satisfactory performance of the Project, with satisfactory having the meaning

of meeting the requirements of this Agreement, and as limited by subparagraph

5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the Subrecipient the Grant

Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise payable to the

Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or permitted,

b. Provision 8.1 is deleted and replaced with the following:

The Subrecipient certifies that all personnel engaged in the Project shall be

qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized to

perform such Project under all applicable laws.

c. Provision 8.3 is deleted in its entirety as inapplicable

d. Provision 9.1 is deleted and replaced with the following:

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things

developed by Subrecipient in its performance of this Agreement, including, but
not limited to, all studies, reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound

recordings, video recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters,

memoranda, paper, and documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

e. Provision 9.2 is deleted and replaced with the following:

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall grant

to the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for

examination, duplication, publication, translation, or disposal.

f. Provision 9.3 is deleted in its entirety as inapplicable

g. Provision 11.2.3 is deleted in its entirety as inapplicable

h. Provision 12.1 is deleted and replaced with the following:

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than

the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,

not later than thirty (30) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter

referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of

termination.

Page 6 of 9
Subrecipient Initials^—
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i. Provision 17.1 is deleted and replaced with the following:

Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all

employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and

Commercial general liability insurance against all claims.

j. Provision 17.1.2 is deleted and replaced with the following:

of bodily injuries, death or property damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000

per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one

incident, and $500,000 for property damage in any one incident, except for

property damage due to fire which has a $100,000 coverage limit per occurrence;
and

k. Provision 17.2 is deleted and replaced with the following:

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the

standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters

acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New

Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than thirty (30) days after written notice thereof

has been received by the State.

Page 7 of 9

Subrecipient Initials'

7/15/2021
Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DF12E36-O235^5D1^213-4FFF0DC9AF47

EXHIBIT C

DOJ State Funding

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Subrecipient authorizes the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) and its
representatives, access to and the right to examine all records, books, paper or
documents related to this subgrant.

2. Discrimination Findings - The Subrecipient assures that in the event that a Federal or
State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground of race, religion, national
origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of victim assistance formula funds under
this award, the recipient will forward a copy of the findings to the DOJ.

3. The Subrecipient understands that subgrants are funded for the grant award period noted
on the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in
future years.

4. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the DOJ

that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal or

state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised
while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the DOJ.

5. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims
unless a program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission to generate
program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding scale
that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant
allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

6. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the

agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,
percentage of state funds, and location.

7. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it
be an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit
and any associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit. The
Single Audit report must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months
after the Subrecipient's year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit.

Page 8 of9
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EXHIBIT C

8. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements

available online (either on the Subrecipient's website, or the DOJ's, or another publicly

available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are considered

in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that

such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as

several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial

statements.

9. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by

submitting a statement to DOJ: 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non

profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available

upon audit one of the following:

•  A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

•  A letter from the State of NH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit

organization operating within the state, or:

A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates

its non- profit status

Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should
also have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non
profit affiliate.

/ have read and understand all 9 special conditions contained in this document:

Barbara Moskalenko Director Research Operations

Name and Title of Authorized Representative
7/15/2021

Barbara Moskalenko
i-rlUOMIMWUI- ^

.ignature Date

Dartmouth Hitchcock 1 Medical center Drive, Lebanon, NH 03756

Name and Address of Agency

Page 9 of 9 ^
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MARY HITCHCOCK

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

August 07, 1889. 1 further cenify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is

in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 68517

Certificate Number: 0005357410

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Dartmouth-Hitchcocl^

Oarlmoulh-Hdchcock

Dartmouth'Hitchcock Mtdical Cenler

1 Medical Center Drive

Lebanon, NH 03756

Dartmouth-Hitchcock org

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Edwaid H. Stansfield. Ml. of Dailmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Maiv Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, do hereby ceitify that:

1  I am the duly elected Chair of the Board of Tiustees of Dailmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Maiy Hitchcock

Memoi iai Hospital;

2. The following is a tiue and acciiiate excerpt fiom the December 7"', 2012 Bylaws of Daitmoutli-Hitchcock Clinic

and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital:

ARTICLE I - Section A. Fiduciary Duty. Stewardship over Corporate Assets

"In exercising this [fiduciary] duty, the Boaid may, consistent with the Coiporation's Aiticles of Agreement and

these Bylaws, delegate authoiity to the Boaid of Governois, Boaid Committees and vaiious officers the right to

give input with lespect to issues and stiategies, incur indebtedness, make expendituies, enter into contracts and

agreements and lake such other binding actions on behalf of the Corporation as may be necessaiy oi desirable."

3  Aiticle I - Section A, as referenced above, provides authoiity foi the chief officeis, including the Chief Executive

Officer, the Chief Clinical Officer, and other pfficeis, of Daitmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Maiy Hitchcock

Memoi iaI Hospital to sign and deliver, eithei individually or collectively, on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic

and Maiy Hitchcock Memorial Hospital.

4  Edward J. Meriens, MD is the Chief Clinical Officer of Daitmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Maiy Hitchcock Memorial

Hospital and .therefore has the authoi ity to enter into contiacts and agreements on behalf of Daitmouth-Hitchcock

Clinic and Maiy Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Chan of the Boaid of Tiustees of Daitmouth-Hitchcock

Clinic and Marv Hitchcock Memorial Hospital this / 9 day of cSO-> l.

Edwafd H.*StaQtfi€Td~lII, BtsTid Chan

STATE OFNH

COUNTY OF GRAFTON

The foregoing instiument was ackno\yledged befoie me this dav of . by Edwaid Stansfield

(4^ ^
Nolaiy Public /
My Commission Expires. A exS'rIs^'^ \ 1

/  1 : SEPT. 2J,202J ; §



Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Oartmouth'Hitchcock Medical Center

Office of Research Operations

1 Medical Center Dnve

Lebanoa NH 03756-1000

DELEGATION OF SIGNATURE AUTHORITY

RESEARCH CONTRACTS AND SPONSORED PROGRAM AGREEMENTS

The authority to sign contracts, grants, consortia, center, cooperative and other research and
sponsored program agreements ("Contracts") on behalf of Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital and
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (together, "Dartmouth-Hitchcock") is delegated by the Chief Executive
Officer of Dartmouth-Hitchcock to the Executive Vice President, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center
(and, in her absence or unavailability, to another Chief Officer of Dartmouth - Hitchcock).

The authority to sign Contracts on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock which have a funding amount not to
exceed $1,000,000 and which have a term of less than five (5) years is hereby sub- delegated by the
Executive Vice President, DHMC to the Director of Research Operations and Interim Director of Research
Finance

A Contract means an agreement between two or more persons that creates a legally
binding obligation to do or not to do a thing A Contract may be titled as an agreement, a
memorandum of understanding, memorandum of agreement, a promise to pay, or may
use other terminology A Contract may or may not involve the payment of money

Additional sub-delegation of signature authority may only be made upon written authorization of the
Executive Vice President, DHMC

An individual with delegated/sub-delegated signature authority who signs a Contract on behalf of
Dartmouth-Hitchcock has the responsibility to ensure that the Contract follows Dartmouth- Hitchcock
policies, rules and guidelines and all applicable laws and regulations.

The effective date of this sub-delegation shall be the date executed by the Executive Vice President,
DHMC, as set forth below, and shall continue until revocation by the Executive Vice President, DHMC

^
Susan A Reeves, EdD, RN

Executive Vice President, DHMC

Date June 30, 2021



GERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DATE: July 19, 2021

COMPANY AFFORDING COVERAGE

Hamden Assurance Risk Retention Group, Inc.
P.O. Box 1687

30 Main Street, Suite 330

Burlington, VT 05401
INSURED

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic

One Medical Center Drive

Lebanon, NH 03756
(603)653-6850

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only
and confers no rights upon the Certificate Holder. This
Certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage
afforded by the policies below.

COVERAGES

The Policy listed below has been issued to the Named Insured above for the Policy Period notwithstanding any
requirement, term or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued. The
insurance afforded by the policy is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of the policy. Limits shown may
have been reduced by paid claims.

TYPE OF

INSURANCE
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY

EFFECTIVE

DATE

POLICY

EXPIRATION

DATE

LIMITS

GENERAL

LIABILITY

0002021-A 7/1/2021 7/1/2022 EACH

OCCURRENCE
$1,000,000

DAMAGE TO

RENTED

PREMISES

$1,000,000

X CLAIMS MADE
MEDICAL

EXPENSES
N/A

PERSONAL &

ADV INJURY
$1,000,000

OCCURRENCE GENERAL

AGGREGATE

OTHER PRODUCTS-

COMP/OP AGG
$1,000,000

PROFESSIONAL

LIABILITY

0002021-A 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 EACH CLAIM $1,000,000

X CLAIMS MADE
ANNUAL

AGGREGATE
$3,000,000

OCCURENCE

OTHER

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES/SPECIAL ITEMS (LIMITS MAY BE SUBJECT TO RETENTIONS)
CcrtlHcate is Issued as evidence of insurance.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

NH Department of Justice
33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

CANCELLATION

Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date
thereof, the issuing company will endeavor to mail 30 DAYS written notice to the
certificate holder named below, but failure to mail such notice shall impose no
obligation or liability of any kind upon the company, its agents or representatives.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
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DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK (D-H) | DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK HEALTH (D-HH)
BOARDS OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

Effecrive: Tanuarv 1.2021

Geraldine "Polly" Bednash, PhD, RN, FAAN
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Adjunct Professor, University of Vermont

Jonathan T. Huntington, MD, PhD, MPH
MHMH/DHC (Lebanon Physician) Trustee
Acting Chief Medical Officer, DHMC

Mark W. Begor, MBA
MHMH/DHCTrustee
Chief Executive Officer, Equifax

Laura K. Landy, MBA
MHMH/ DHC/ D-HH Trustee
President and CEO of the Fannie £. Rippel Foundation

Jocelyn D. Chertoff, MD, MS, FACR
MHMH/DHC (Clinical Chair/Center Director)
Trustee

Chair, Dept. ofRadiolof^y

Jennifer L. Moyer, MBA
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Managing Director & CAO, White Mountains Insurance
Croup, Ltd

Duane A. Compton, PhD
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Ex-Officio: Dean, Ceisel School ofMedicine at Dartmouth

David P. Paul, MBA

MHMH/DHCTrustee
President & COO, JSC SMITH

Joanne M. Conroy, MD
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Ex-Officio: CEO & President, D-H/D-HH

Charles G. Plimpton, MBA
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Boeirds' Treasurer & Secretary
Retired Investment Banker

Paul P. Danos, PhD

MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Dean Emeritus; Laurence F. Whittemore Professor of
Business Administration, Tuck School of Business at
Dartmouth

Richard J. Powell, MD

D-HH Trustee

Section Chief, Vascular Surgery; Professor of Surgery and
Radiology

Carl "Trey" Dobson, MD
MHMH/DHC Trustee
ChiefMedical Officer, Southwestern Vermont Medical
Center

\

Thomas Raffio, MBA, FLMI

MHMH/DHCTrustee
President & CEO, Northeast Delta Dental

Elof Eriksson, MD, PhD

MHMH/DHC Trustee
Professor Emeritus, Harvard Medical School and
Chief Medical Officer, Applied Tissues Technologies, LLC

Kurt K. Rhynhart, MD, FACS
MHMH/DHC (D-H Lebanon Physician Trustee
Representative) Trustee
DHMC Trauma Medical Director and Divisional Chief of
Trauma and Acute Care Surgery

Gary L. Freed, Jr., MD, PhannD
MHMH/DHCTrustee
Plastic Surgeon, DHMC and Assistant Professor of
Surgery for Ceisel School ofMedicine at Dartmouth

Edward Howe Stansfield, III, MA
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Senior VP, Resident Directorfor the Hanover, NH Bank of
America/Merrill Lynch Office

Thomas P. Glynn, PhD
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Pamela Austin Thompson, MS, RN, CENP, FAAN
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Chiefexecutive officer emeritus of the American
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DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK CLINIC

JOB BRIEF

JOB TITLE CAC Program Manager POSITION CODE 002460

DEPARTMENT Child Advocacy Center DATE 10/15/07

JOB SUMMARY: Reporting to the CAPP Medical Director, with consultation from the CAC Advisory Board,
coordinate center services with participating agencies, including child protection, law enforcement, prosecutors,
medical and mental health personnel. Schedule and coordinate interviews, refer for medical exams and other
referrals and consultation, as necessary. Conduct forensic interviews of children who have made allegations of
sexual abuse and/or exploitation or severe physical abuse. Consistently demonstrate professional behavior and
leadership skills that support the vision, mission and philosophy of the CAC and abide by confidentiality policies
of all involved agencies.

JOB RESPONSIBILITIES:

1. Perform the following program development responsibilities which include, but are not limited to:
Administration of the Child Advocacy Center:
a. Manage day-to-day operations of CAC including budgets, finances, personnel management, coordinating

multi-disciplinary, multi-agency response of child abuse cases.
b. Assume responsibility for program development including needs assessment, prioritization,

operationalizing and management of additional CAC locations.
c. Maintain and support processes and procedures to improve accessibility, use and functioning of CAC.
d. Screen referrals and determine priority levels according to referral information and CAC protocols.
e. Participate in pre and post interview multidisciplinary case meetings.
f. Participate in case reviews.
g. Assist in the coordination of services for children and their families, as needed.
h. Work with and make recommendation for appropriate community referrals for the child victim and their

non-offending family members.

2. Conduct forensic interviews:

a. Using a solid knowledge base related to child sexual abuse, exploitation, physical abuse, severe neglect
and investigation, interview children three to sixteen years of age, and individuals with special
circumstances.

b. Provide court testimony when required.

3. Agency and community outreach:
a. Function as liaison for Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center in relation to the Child Advocacy Center

with outside agencies, including but not limited to County Attorneys, State and local Police, Child
Protective Services, and NH Network of Child Advocacy Centers.

b. Meet with all member agencies to ensure personnel are aware of the CAC and its purpose, process,
criteria and procedures.

c. Conduct agency orientation meetings.
d. Facilitate the establishment of satellite sites, as directed by the Advisory Board.
e. Represent the CAC in center related activities, including fundraising initiatives.

4. Grant and report writing:
a. Develop, procure, and manage outside funding arrangements such as Federal and State grants, and

private and foundation donations.
b. Submit grants for program funding and develop quarterly reports of grant activity.
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c. Provide reports to funding sources, as required by grants.

5. Financial management:
a. Prepare and present financial and operational reports to Advisory Board on a monthly basis.
b. Prepare finance reports and statements of budgeting needs and recommendations.
c. Maintain financial and accountability records.

6. Perform other duties as required or assigned.

MfNIMUM EDUCATION & EXPERIENCE: Master's degree in relevant field with a minimum of 2 years of
experience or the equivalent required. Relevant professional licensure desirable. Knowledge of the dynamics of
child development, child abuse and investigating procedures required. Prior experience working with abused
children and their families preferred. Prior specialized forensic interview training desired, or must complete
forensic training within three months of hire. Must possess the ability to engage children of all ages in forensic
interviews and respond to cultural differences present among organizations, population and staff. Valid driver's
license, proof on insurance and a criminal background check required.

APPROVED BY:
Department Director Date

Job Analyst Date



Cathy Britlis,MSW

Summary Master's level social worker with strong work experience in the area
children protection and family support. Strength based approach in
working with children, adolescents and families. Strengths include;
assessment, crisis intervention, case management, support, advocacy,
mediation skills, collaborative teamwork, and forensic interviewing skills

Education 1993 - 1995 University of Vennont,

Masters of Social Work

1987 -1991 St. Michael's College

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology

Burlington, Vermont

Colchester, Vermont

Professional

experience
Child Advocacy Center Program Director, Child Advocacy

Center of Grafton and Sullivan Counties at Dartmouth Hitchcock

Medical Center, Lebanon, NH (9/0&present)

" Oversee all aspects of the development and functioning of the Child
Advocacy Cer^ter (CAC) to Include financial management, sustainabillty
needs, agency and community outreach, needs assessments and
facilitation of CAC related meetings.

" Coordinate center services with participating agencies including child
protection, law enforcement; prosecution, crisis services, medical and
mental health professionals.

■ Oversee and conduct forensic interviews of children who have t)een

referred to the CAC for evaluation of child abuse.

" Coordinate referrals to needed services for families who have come to the

CAC.

• Supervise staff of forensic interviewers and intake coordinators

Interim Investigative Supervisor, Department for Children and

Families, State of Vermont, White River JcL, VT (7/05 - 9/05)

" Responsible for screening all intakes of child abuse and neglect.

• Assign reports to investigators and provide ongoing guidance and
supervision through the investigation process to the investigator.

" Oversee that investigative policy and procedures are being followed by all
employees.

• Provide training on mandated reporting and child abuse and neglect to
community agencies.

Social Work Investigator, Department for Children and Families,

State of Vermont, White River Jot, VT (8/95 - 7/05)

" Responsible for investigating reports of child abuse and neglect

• Conduct interviews with children and families around allegations of child
abuse and neglect. Assessing the strengths, risk factors, and safety
concems for the families. Providing crisis Intervention, mediation and
support services to these families.



• Facilitate/Support meetings with family members and community service
providers.

• Member of the Orange East Family Support Team and the Child Advocacy
Center at the Family Place, working collatxDratively with community
providers and families to ensure the safety of children.

• Support and Empower families in accessing necessary services to ensure
the safety of their children and maintain family unity.

■ Serve as Statevflde Trainer of forensic interviewing and investigative skills
workshop.

• Provide ongoing education and support to area school staff and other
community providers in regards to reporting and investigating child abuse.

Spectrum Outreach Worker/Intern, Spectrum Youth and
Famity Services, Burlington, VT (9/94 - 5/95)

■ Provided screenings, intakes, assessments and referrals to adolescents
who were homeless or runaway. Promoted family reunification when
appropriate.

" Case managed and supported homeless youth through independent living
programs.

■ Co-facilitated an independent living skills group for youth, enhancing skills
for youth to live on own.

■ Provided supervision to Peer Outreach Workers (youth who provided
outreach services to kids "at risk" on the streets of Burlington)

• Assisted in the development of a shelter for run-avray and homeless youth.
Created rules, intake forms, consents, waivers, and other forms pertinent
to procedural development.

■ Provided crisis inten/ention via drop-in center and twenty-four hour hotline.
Assessed crisis calls and provid^ appropriate interventions and safety
plans.

Social Work investigator intern, SRS, Burlington, Vermont

(9/93-5/94)

" Conduct interviews with children and families around allegations of child
abuse and neglect Assessing the strengths, risk factors, and safety
concems for the families. Providing crisis inten/ention, mediation and
support services to these families.

Crime Victim Advocate, Family Services of the Mid-Hudson

and Harlem Valleys, Poughkeepsle, NY (5/92-8/93)

■ Provided 24 hour emergency rape/domestic violence crisis counseling via
walk-ins, hotline, and police/hospital assistance

" Established and supervised an emergency financial assistance program for
victims of crime.

■ Prepared victims for the court process and advocated on behalf of the
victim.

■ Provided group treatment to victims of crime. Co-facilitated a support group
for victims of domestic violence. Facilitated a sexual harassrrient group for
female adolescents.

" Created and presented outreach programs and crime prevention
workshops for the schools of Dutchess County.



" Gathered pertinent data and responsible for submitting quarterly and
annual reports to funding sources. Assisted in the writing of grant proposals
to promote services, which were needed in the community.

Placement Prevention Worker/Intern, Baird Center for Children

and Families, Burlington, VT (1/91-5/91)

■ Worked with children and families "at risk" to promote safety and family
unity.

• Provided intensive therapeutic services in the home.

• Provided counseling, education, and support to parents to improve their
child management skills, prevent family dissolution, maximize the utilization
of family resources towards improving parents ability to adequately meet
the social, emotional, educational, and physical needs of their children.

Relevant Research Child Abuse; Domestic Violence; Emotional Maltreatment of Children
and Adolescents; Foster Care Vs. Kinship Care for culturally diverse
populations; Mental Health Issues Related to Youth Homelessness

Awards received Susan P. LaGasse Award for Excellence in Casework Practice for the
Sate of Vermont, Department of Social and Rehabilitation Sen/ices,
(2000)

Lebanon Police Department, Citizen of the Year Award - 2009

References will be furnished upon request
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and subsidiaries

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and
its subsidiaries (ttie "Health System"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and of
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the ConsoHdated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated ftnanclal statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Health
System's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, loi Seaport Boulevard, Suite 500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617) 530 5000, F: (617) 530 5001, www.pwc.com/us
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and its subsidiaries as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations, changes in net assets and their cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Health System changed the manner
in which it accounts for revenue recognition from contracts with customers and the manner in which it
presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial statements as a not-for-profit entity in 2019.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The consolidating information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves
and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The consolidating information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to
present the financial position, results of its operations, changes in net assets and cash flows of the
individual companies and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the financial position, results of operations, changes in net assets and cash
flows of the individual companies.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30,
2019 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
The information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional

procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
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our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, In all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 26,
2019 on our consideration of the Health System's Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2019. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in
considering the Health System's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Boston, Massachusetts

November 28, 2019



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 143,587 $ 200,169
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectible of
$132,228 at June 30,2018 (Note 4) 221,125 219,228
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 95,495 97,502

Total current assets 460,207 516,899

Assets limited as to use (Notes 5 and 7) 876,249 706,124
Other investments for restricted activities (Notes 5 and 7) 134,119 130,896
Property, plant, and equipment, net (Note 6) 621,256 607,321
Other assets 124,471 108,785

Total assets $ 2,216,302 $ 2.070.025

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current iiabilities

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 10) $ 10,914 $ 3,464
Current portion of liability for pension and other postretirement
plan benefits (Note 11) 3,468 3.311
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 13) 113,817 95,753
Accrued compensation and related benefits 128,408 125,576
Estimated third-party settlements (Note 4) 41,570 41,141

Total current liabilities 298,177 269,245

Long-term debt, excluding current portion (Note 10) 752,180 752,975
insurance deposits and related liabilities (Note 12) 58,407 55,516
Liability for pension and other postretirement plan benefits,
excluding current portion (Note 11) 281,009 242,227
Other liabilities 124,136 88,127

Total liabilities 1,513,909 1,408,090

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4. 6, 7, 10, and 13)

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions (Note 9) 559,933 524,102
Net assets with donor restrictions (Notes 8 and 9) 142,460 137,833

Total net assets 702,393 661,935

Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,216,302 $ 2,070,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Operating revenue and other support
Patient service revenue $  1,999.323 $ 1,899,095

Provision for bad debts (Notes 2 and 4) - 47,367

Net patient service revenue 1,999,323 1,851,728

Contracted revenue (Note 2) 75,017 54,969

Other operating revenue (Notes 2 and 5} 210,698 148,946

Net assets reieased from restrictions 14,105 13,461

Total operating revenue and other support 2.299,143 2,069,104

Operating expenses
Salaries 1,062,551 989,263

Employee benefits 251,591 229,683

Medical supplies and medications 407,875 340,031

Purchased services and other 323,435 291,372

Medicaid enhancement tax (Note 4) 70,061 67,692

Depreciation and amortization 88,414 84,778

Interest (Note 10) 25,514 18,822

Total operating expenses 2,229,441 2,021,641

Operating income (loss) 69,702 47,463

Nonoperating gains (losses)
Investment income, net (Note 5) 40,052 40,387

Other losses, net (Note 10) (3,562) (2,908)

Loss on early extinguishment of debt (87) (14,214)

Loss due to swap termination - (14,247)

Total nonoperating gains, net 36,403 9,018

Excess of revenue over expenses $  106,105 $ 56,481



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses

Net assets released from restrictions

Change in funded status of pension and other postretirement
benefits (Note 11)
Other changes in net assets
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps (Note 10)
Change in interest rate swap effectiveness

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

$  106,105 $ 56,4

Net assets with donor restrictions

Gifts, bequests, sponsored activities
Investment income, net

Net assets released from restrictions

Contribution of assets with donor restrictions from acquisition

Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets

Beginning of year

End of year

81

1,769 16,313

(72,043) 8,254

- (185)
- 4,190
- 14,102

35,831 99,155

17,436 14,171

2,682 4,354

(15,874) (29,774)
383 -

4,627 (11,249)

40,458 87,906

661,935 574,029

$  702,393 $ 661,935

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(In thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 40,456 $ 87,906

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating and nonoperating activities
Change In fair value of interest rate swaps -

(4.897)

Provision for bad debt -
47,367

Depreciation and amortization 88,770 84,947

Change in funded status of pension and other postretirement benefits 72,043 ' (8,254)

(Gain) on disposal of fixed assets (1.101) (125)

Net realized gains and change in net unrealized gains on investments (31,397) (45,701)
Restricted contributions and Investment earnings (2,292) (5,460)

Proceeds from sales of securities 1,167 1,531

Loss from debt defeasance -
14,214

Changes in assets and liabilities
Patient accounts receivable, net (1.803) (29,335)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,149 (8,299)

Other assets, net (9.052) (11,665)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17,898 19,693

Accrued compensation and related benefits 2,335 10,665

Estimated third-party settlements 429 13,708

Insurance deposits and related liabilities 2,378 4,556

Liability for pension and other postretirement benefits (33,104) (32,399)

Other liabilities 12,267 (2,421)

Net cash provided by operating and nonoperating activities 161,145 136,031

Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (82,279) (77,598)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment 2,188 -

Purchases of investments (361,407) (279,407)

Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 219,996 273,409

Cash received through acquisition 4,863 •

Net cash used in investing activities (216,639) (83,596)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from line of credit 30,000 50,000

Payments on line of credit (30,000) (50,000)

Repayment of long-term debt (29,490) (413,104)

Proceeds from issuance of debt 26,338 507,791

Repayment of interest rate swap -
(16,019)

Payment of debt issuance costs (228) (4,892)

Restricted contributions and investment earnings 2,292 5,460

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1.088) 79,238

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (56,582) 131,671

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year 200,169 68,498

End of year $ 143,587 S 200,169

Supplemental cash flow information
Interest paid $ 23,977 $ 18,029

Net assets acquired as part of acquisition, net of cash aquired (4.863) -

Noncash proceeds from issuance of debt
\

- 137,281

Use of noncash proceeds to refinance debt - 137,281

Construction in progress included in accounts payable and
accrued expenses 1,546 1,569

Equipment acquired through issuance of capital lease obligations -
17,670

Donated securities 1,167 1,531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Organization and Community Benefit Commitments

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health (D-HH) serves as the sole corporate member of the following entities;
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Subsidiaries (DHO), Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital and
Subsidiaries (MHMH), (DHO and MHMH together are referred to as D-H), The New London
Hospital Association and Subsidiaries (NLH), Windsor Hospital Corporation (d/b/a Mt. Ascutney
Hospital and Health Center) and Subsidiaries (MAHHC), Cheshire Medical Center and Subsidiaries
(Cheshire), Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital and, effective July 1, 2018, Subsidiary (APD), and
the Visiting Nurse and Hospice for Vermont and New Hampshire and Subsidiaries (VNH). The
"Health System" consists of D-HH, Its members and their subsidiaries.

The Health System currently operates one tertiary, one community and three acute care
(critical access) hospitals In New Hampshire (NH) and Vermont (VT). One facility provides
inpatient and outpatient rehabilitation medicine and long-term care. The Health System also
operates multiple physician practices, a nursing home, a continuing care retirement community,
and a home health and hospice service. The Health System operates a graduate level program for
health professions and is the principal teaching affiliate of the Geisel School of Medicine (Gelsel), a
component of Dartmouth College.

D-HH, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic, Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, The New London Hospital
Association, Cheshire Medical Center, and Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital are NH not-for-profit
corporations exempt from federal incorne taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code (IRC). Windsor Hospital Corporation and the Vislting Nurse and Hospice of VT and NH are
VT not-for-profit corporations exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of
the IRC.

Community Benefits
The mission of the Health System is to advance health through clinical practice and community
partnerships, research and education, providing each person the best care, in the right place, at the
right time, every time.

Consistent with this mission, the Health System provides high quality, cost effective,
comprehensive, and integrated healthcare to individuals, families, and the communities it serves
regardless of a patient's ability to pay. The Health System actively supports community-based
healthcare and promotes the coordination of services among healthcare providers and social
services organizations. In addition, the Health System also seeks to work collaboratively with other
area healthcare providers to improve the health status of the region. As a component of an
integrated academic medical center, the Health System provides significant support for academic
and research programs.

Certain member hospitals of the Health System file annual Community Benefits Reports with the
State of NH which outline the community and charitable benefits each provides. VT hospitals are
not required by law to file a state community benefit report. The categories used in the Community
Benefit Reports to summarize these benefits are as follows:

•  Community Health Services include activities carried out to improve community health and
could include community health education (such as classes, programs, support groups, and
materials that promote wellness and prevent illness), community-based clinical services (such
as free clinics and health screenings), and healthcare support services (enrollment assistance
in public programs, assistance in obtaining free or reduced costs medications, telephone
information services, or transportation programs to enhance access to care, etc.).



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

•  Health Professions Education includes uncompensated costs of training medical students,
Residents, nurses, and other health care professionals.

•  Subsidized health sen/ices are services provided by the Health System, resulting in financial
losses that meet the needs of the community and would not otherwise be available unless the
responsibility was assumed by the government.

•  Research support and other grants represent costs in excess of awards for numerous health
research and service initiatives awarded to the organizations within the Health System.

•  Financial Contributions include ftnancial contributions of cash, as well as in-kind contributions

such as time, supplies, and expertise to local organizations to address community health
needs.

•  Community-Building Activities include expenses incurred to support the development of
programs and partnerships intended to address public health challenges as well as social and
economic determinants of health. Examples include physical improvements and housing,
economic development, support system enhancements, environmental improvements,
leadership development and training for community members, community health improvement
advocacy, and workforce enhancement.

•  Community Benefit Operations includes costs associated with staff dedicated to administering
benefit programs, community health needs assessment costs, and other costs associated with
community benefit planning and operations.

•  Charity Cere and Costs of Government Sponsored Health Care includes losses, at-cost.
Incurred by providing health care services to persons qualifying for hospital financial
assistance programs, and uncompensated costs of providing health care services to patients
who are Medicaid Beneficiaries.

•  The uncompensated cost of care for Medicaid patients reported in the unaudited Community
Benefits Reports for 2018 was approximately $139,683,000. The 2019 Community Benefits
Reports are expected to be filed in February 2020.

The following table summarizes the value of the community benefit initiatives outlined in the Health
System's most recently filed Community Benefit Reports for the year ended June 30, 2018:

(in thousands of dollars)

Government-sponsored healthcare services $ 246,064
Health professional education 33,067

Charity care 13,243
Subsidized health services 11.993

Community health services 6,570
Research 5,969

Community building activities 2,540
Financial contributions 2,360

Community benefit operations 1,153

Total community benefit value $ 322,959
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
have been prepared consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 954, Healthcare Entities, which addresses the accounting for
healthcare entities. The net assets, revenue, expenses, and gains and losses of healthcare
entities are' classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, net assets without donor restrictions are amounts not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations and are available for operations. Net assets with donor restrictions are those whose
use has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose, or whose use has been
restricted by donors to be maintained in perpetuity. All significant intercompany transactions have
been eliminated upon consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. The most significant areas that are
affected by the use of estimates include implicit and explicit pricing concessions, valuation of
certain investments, estimated third-party settlements, insurance reserves, and pension
obligations. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include the excess of
revenue over expenses. Operating revenues consist of those items attributable to the care of
patients, including contributions and Investment income on investments of net assets without donor
restrictions, which are utilized to provide charity and other operational support. Peripheral
activities, including contribution of net assets without donor restrictions from acquisitions, loss on
early extinguishment of debt, loss due to swap termination, realized gains/losses on sales of
investment securities and changes in unrealized gains/losses in investments are reported as
nonoperating gains (losses).

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from the excess of revenue
over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets
(including assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purpose of acquiring such assets), change in funded status of pension and other postretirement
benefit plans, and the effective portion of the change in fair value of interest rate swaps.

Charity Care
The Health System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under their financial
assistance policies without charge or at amounts less than their established rates. Because the
Health System does not anticipate collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they
are not reported as revenue.
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The Health System grants credit without collateral to patients. Most are local residents and are
insured under third-party arrangements. The amount of charges for implicit price concessions is
based upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections, business and
economic conditions, trends in federal and state governmental healthcare coverage, and other
collection indicators (Notes 1 and 4).

Patient Service Revenue

The Health System applies the accounting provisions of ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (ASC 606). Patient service revenue is reported at the amount of consideration to which
the Health System expects to be entitled from patients, third party payors, and others for services
rendered. Including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-
party payors and implicit pricing concessions. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
estimates change or final settlements are determined (Note 4).

Contracted Revenue

The Health System has various Professional Service Agreements (PSAs), pursuant to which
certain organizations purchase services of personnel employed by the Health System and also
lease space and equipment. Revenue pursuant to these PSAs and certain facility and equipment
leases and other professional service contracts have been classified as contracted revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Other Revenue

The Health System recognizes other revenue which is not related to patient medical care but is
central to the day-to-day operations of the Health System. Other revenue primarily consists of
revenue from retail pharmacy, which the Health System records as customer revenues in the
amounts that reflect the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the
prescription. Other revenue also includes joint operating agreements, grant revenue, cafeteria
sales and other support service revenue.

Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid investments with maturities of three months
or less when purchased, excluding amounts where use is limited by internal designation.or other
arrangements under trust agreements or by donors.

Investments and investment Income

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values, mutual funds and
pooled/commingled funds, and all investments in debt securities are considered to be trading
securities reported at fair value with changes in fair value included in the excess of revenues over
expenses. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (Note 7).

Investments in pooled/commingled investment funds, private equity funds and hedge funds that
represent investments where the Health System owns shares or units of funds rather than the
underlying securities in that fund are valued using the equity method of accounting with changes in
value recorded in the excess of revenues over expenses. All Investments, whether held at fair
value or under the equity method of accounting, are reported at what the Health System believes to
be the amount they would expect to receive if it liquidated its investments at the balance sheet
dates on a nondistressed basis.
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Certain members of the Health System are partners in a NH general partnership established for the
purpose of operating a master investment program of pooled investment accounts. Substantially
all of the Health System's board-designated and assets with donor restrictions, such as endowment
funds, were Invested in these pooled funds by purchasing units based on the market value of the
pooled funds at the end of the month prior to receipt of any new additions to the funds. Interest,
dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses earned on pooled funds are allocated
monthly based on the weighted average units outstanding at the prior month-end.

Investment income or losses (including change in unrealized and realized gains and losses on
investments, change in value of equity method investments, interest, and dividends) are included in
the excess of revenue over expenses and classified as nonoperating gains and losses, unless the
income or loss is restricted by donor or law (Note 9).

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

The Health System estimates fair value based on a valuation framework that uses a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The three levels of fair value hierarchy, as defined by ASC 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, are described below:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices |n active markets that are accessible at the measurement
date for assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Prices other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the date of measurement.

Level 3 Prices or valuation techniques that are both significant to the fair value measurement
and unobservable.

The Health System applies the accounting provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2009-12, Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or its
Equivalent) (ASU 2009-12). ASU 2009-12 allows for the estimation of fair value of investments for
which the investment does not have a readily determinable fair value, to use net asset value (NAV)
per share or its equivalent as a practical expedient, subject to the Health System's ability to redeem
its investment.

The carrying amount of patient accounts receivable, prepaid and other current assets, accounts'
payable and accrued expenses approximates fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.'

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment, and other real estate are stated at cost at the time of purchase or
fair value at the time of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Health System's policy is to
capitalize expenditures for major improvements and to charge expense for maintenance and repair
expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. The provision for depreciation
has been determined using the straight-line method at rates which are intended to amortize the
cost of assets over their estimated useful lives which range from 10 to 40 years for buildings and
improvements, 2 to 20 years for equipment, and the shorter of the lease term, or 5 to 12 years, for
leasehold improvements. Certain software development costs are amortized using the straight-line
method over a period of up to 10 years. Net Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the
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period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring
those assets.

The fair value of a liability for legal obligations associated with asset retirements is recognized in
the period in which it is incurred, if a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the obligation can be
made. When a liability is initially recorded, the cost of the asset retirement obligation is capitalized
by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted
to its present value each period and the capitalized cost associated with the retirement is
depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the obligation, any
difference between the actual cost to settle the asset retirement obligation and the liability recorded
is recognized as a gain or loss in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets.

Gifts of capital assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as support, and excluded
from the excess of revenue over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the
donated assets must be used. Gifts of capital assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire capital assets
are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those capital
assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired capital assets are placed in service.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs, classified on the consolidated balance sheets within long-term debt, are
amortized over the term of the related bonds. Amortization is recorded within interest expense in
the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets using the straight-line method
which approximates the effective interest method.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill
The Health System records within other assets on the consolidated balance sheets goodwill and
intangible assets such as trade names and leases-in-place. The Health System considers trade
names and goodwill to be indefinite-lived assets, assesses them at least annually for impairment or
more frequently if certain events or circumstances warrant and recognizes impairment charges for
amounts by which the carrying values exceed their fair values. The Health System has recorded
$10,524,000 and $2,462,000 as intangible assets associated with its affiliations as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Health System applies the provisions of ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, to its derivative
instruments, which require that all derivative instruments be recorded at their respective fair values
in the consolidated balance sheets.

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Health System designates the derivative as a
cash-flow hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid
related to a recognized asset or liability. For all hedge relationships, the Health System formally
documents the hedging relationship and its risk-management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the
hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed, and a description
of the method of measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking cash-flow hedges to
speci^c assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, specific firm commitments or
forecasted transactions. The Health System also formally assesses, both at the hedge's Inception
and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly
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effective in offsetting changes in variability of cash flows of hedged items. Changes in the fair
value of a derivative that is highly effective and that is designated and qualifies as a cash-flow
hedge are recorded in net assets without donor restrictions until earnings are affected by the
variability in cash flows of the designated hedged item. The ineffective portion of the change in fair
value of a cash flow hedge is reported in excess of revenue over expenses in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets.

The Health System discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined: (a) the
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged Item; (b) the
derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; (c) the derivative is undesignated as a
hedging instrument because it Is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur; (d) a hedged firm

commitment no longer meets the definition of a firm commitment; and (e) management determines
that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

In all situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued, the Health System continues to carry
the derivative at its fair value on the consolidated balance sheets and recognizes any subsequent
changes in its fair value in excess of revenue over expenses.

Gifts

Gifts without donor restrictions are recorded net of related expenses as nonoperating gains.
Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give to the Health System are reported
at fair value at the date the gift Is received. Gifts are reported with donor restrictions if they are
received with donor stipulations that lirnit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported
in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released
from restrictions.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606)
and in August 2015, the FASB amended the guidance to defer the effective date of this standard by
one year. ASU 2014-09 affects any entity that either enters into contracts with customers to
transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets unless
those contracts are within the scope of other standards. The core principle of the guidance in ASU
2014-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Health System adopted ASU 2014-09
effective July 1, 2018 under the modified retrospective method, and has provided the new
disclosures required post implementation. For example, patient accounts receivable are shown net
of the allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $132,228,000 as of June 30, 2018 on the
consolidated balance sheet. If an allowance for doubtful accounts had been presented as of
June 30, 2019, it would have been approximately $121,544,000. While the adoption of ASU 2014-
09 has had a material effect on the presentation of revenues in the Health System's consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets, and has had an impact on certain disclosures,
it has not materially impacted the financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Refer to
Note 4, Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable, for further details.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 - Leases (Topic 842), which requires a lessee to
recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments, on its balance sheet. The standard also requires a lessee to recognize a single
lease cost, calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the lease term, on a generally
straight-line basis. The guidance also expands the required quantitative and qualitative disclosures
surrounding leases. The ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, or
fiscal year 2020 for the Health System. The Health System is evaluating the impact of the new
guidance on the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01- Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities, which address certain aspects of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. This guidance allows an entity to choose,
investment-by-investment, to report an equity investment that neither has a readily determinable
fair value, nor qualifies for the practical expedient for fair value estimation using NAV, at its cost
minus impairment (if any), plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in
orderly transactions for the identical or similar investment of the same issue. Impairment of such

investments must be assessed qualitatively at each reporting period. Entities must disclose their
financial assets and liabilities by measurement category and form of asset either on the face of the
balance sheet or in the accompanying notes. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018 or fiscal year 2020 for the Health System. The provision to
eliminate the requirement to disclose the fair value of financial instruments measured at cost (such
as the fair value of debt) was early adopted during the year ended June 30, 2017.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14 - Presentation of Financial Statements forNot-for-
Profit Entities. The new pronouncement amends certain financial reporting requirements for not-
for-profit entities. It reduces the number of classes of net assets from three to two: net assets with
donor restrictions includes amount previously disclosed as both temporarily and permanently
restricted net assets, net assets without donor restrictions includes amounts previously disclosed
as unrestricted net assets. It expands the disclosure of expenses by both natural and functional
classification. It adds quantitative and qualitative disclosures about liquidity and availability of
resources. The ASU is effective for the .Health System for the year ending June 30, 2019. The
Health System has adopted this ASU on a retrospective basis, except for the presentation of
expenses based on natural and functional classification and the discussion of liquidity, as permitted
in the ASU. Please refer to Note 14, Functional Expenses, and Note 15, Liquidity.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958), Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The new
pronouncement was intended to assist entities in evaluating whether transactions should be
accounted for as contributions or exchange transactions and whether a contribution is conditional.
This ASU was effective for the Health System on July 1, 2018 on a modified prospective basis and
did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Health System.

3. Acquisitions

Effective July 1, 2018, Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital became the sole corporate member of
APD LifeCare Center Inc. (LifeCare). LlfeCare owns and operates Harvest Hill, an assisted living
facility, the Woodlands, a residential living community and the Elizabeth S. Hughes Care Unit,
which provides hospice care.
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in accordance with applicable accounting guidance on not-for-profit mergers and acquisitions, Alice
Peck Day Memorial Hospital recorded goodwill related to the acquisition of LifeCare of
approximately $5,131,000. Restricted contribution income of $383,000 was recorded within net
assets with donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated statement of changes in net
assets. Included in the transaction was LifeCare's cash balance of $4,863,000. No consideration
was exchanged for the net assets assumed and acquisition costs were expensed as incurred.
LifeCare's financial position, results of operations and changes in net assets are included in the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

4. Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable

The Health System reports patient service revenue at amounts that reflect the consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from
patients, third-party payers (including managed care payers and government programs), and
others; and they include variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to
settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the Health System bills patients and
third-party payers several days after the services were performed or shortly after discharge.
Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied under contracts by providing
healthcare services to patients.

The Health System determines performance obligations based on the nature of the services
provided. Revenues for performance obligations satisfied over time are recognized based on
actual charges incurred in relation to total expected charges as this method provides a reasonable
estimate of the transfer of services over the term of performance obligations based on inputs
needed to satisfy the obligations. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to
patients receiving inpatient acute care services. For inpatient services, performance obligations
are measured from admission to the point when there are no further services required for the
patient, which is generally the time of discharge. For outpatient services and physician services,
performance obligations are recognized at a point in time when the services are provided and no
further patient services are deemed necessary.

Generally, the Health System's patient service performance obligations relate to contracts with a
duration of less than one year, therefore the Health System has elected to apply the optional
exemption provided in ASC 606-10-50-14a and, therefore, we are not required to disclose the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. This generally refers to inpatient services
at the end of the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally
completed when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks of the
end of the reporting period.

Established charges represent gross charges. They are not the same as actual pricing, and they
generally do not reflect what a hospital is ultimately entitled to for services it provides. Therefore,
they are not displayed in the Health System's consolidated statements of operations and changes
in net assets.

Hospitals are paid amounts negotiated with insurance companies or set by government entities,
which are typically less than established or standard charges. Gross charges are used to calculate
Medicare outlier payments and to determine certain elements of payment under managed care
contracts. Gross charges are what hospitals charge all patients prior to the application of
contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions.
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Explicit Pricing Concessions
Revenues for the Health System under the traditional fee-for service Medicare and Medicaid
programs are based on prospectively determined rates per discharge or visit, reasonable
(allowable) cost, or prospective rates per episodic period, depending on the type of provider.

•  Inpatient acute care services provided to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid using the
prospective payment system ("PPS") to determine rates-per-discharge. These rates vary
according to a patient classification system ("DRG"), based on diagnostic, clinical and other
factors. In addition, inpatient capital costs (depreciation and interest) are reimbursed by
Medicare on the basis of a prospectively determined rate per discharge. Medicare outpatient
services are paid on a prospective payment system, based on a pre-determined amount for
each outpatient procedure (APC), subject to various mandated modifications. Retrospectively
determined cost-based revenues under these programs, such as indirect medical education,
direct graduate medical education, disproportionate share hospital, transplant services, and
bad debt reimbursement are based on the hospital's cost reports and are estimated using
historical trends and current factors. The Health System's payments for inpatient services
rendered to New Hampshire ("NH") and Vermont ("VT) Medicaid beneficiaries are based on
PPS, while outpatient services are reimbursed on a retrospective cost basis or fee schedules
for NH beneficiaries. VT outpatient beneficiaries are paid on a prospective basis per
outpatient procedure.

•  Inpatient acute, swing, and outpatient services furnished by critical access hospitals ("CAH")
are reimbursed by Medicare at 101% of reasonat)|e costs, subject to 2% sequestration,
excluding ambulance services and inpatient hospice care.

•  Providers of home health services to patients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are
paid on a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is
based on the scoring attributed to the acuity level of the patient at a rate determined by federal
guidelines.

•  Hospice services to patients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per diem
basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the aggregate annual Medicare
reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate.

•  The Health System's cost based services to Medicare and Medicaid are reimbursed during the
year based on varying interim payment methodologies. Final settlement is determined after
the submission of an annual cost report and subject to audit of this report by Medicare and
Medicaid auditors, as well as administrative and judicial review. Because the laws,
regulations, and rule interpretations, governing Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement are
complex and change frequently, the estimates recorded could change over time by material
amounts.

•  Revenues under Managed Care Plans (Plans) consist primarily of payment terms involving
mutually agreed upon rates per diagnosis, discounted fee-for service rates, or similar
contractual arrangements. These revenues are also subject to review and possible audit.
The Plans are billed for patient services on an Individual patient basis. An individual patient's
bill is subject to adjustments in accordance with contractual terms in place with the Plans
following their review and adjudication of each bill.
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The Health System is not aware of any claims, disputes, or unsettled matters with any payer that
would materially affect its revenues for which it has not adequately provided In the accompanying
Health System's consolidated financial statements.

The Health System provides charity care to patients who are unable to pay for healthcare services
they receive as determined by financial conditions. Patients who qualify receive partial or full
adjustments to charges for services rendered. The Health System's policy is to treat amounts
qualified as charity care as explicit price concessions and as such are not reported in net patient
service revenue.

During fiscal year 2016, Vermont state legislation passed changes to the tax base for home health
providers from 19.30% of core home health care services (primarily Medicaid services) with a cap
of 6% of net patient service revenue to 3.63% of net patient revenue for fiscal year 2017 and fiscal
year 2018. Home health provider tax paid, which is included In other operating expenses, was
$628,000 and $737,000 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

On June 30, 2014, the NH Governor signed into law a bi-partisan legislation reflecting an
agreement between the State of NH and 25 NH hospitals on the Medicaid Enhancement Tax
(MET) Senate Bill 369. As part of the agreement, the parties have agreed to resolve all pending
litigation related to MET and Medicaid Rates, including the Catholic Medical Center Litigation, the
Northeast Rehabilitation Litigation, 2014 DRA Refund Requests, and the State Rate Litigation. As
part of the MET Agreement Effective July 1, 2014, a "Trust / Lock Box" dedicated funding
mechanism will be established for receipt and distribution of all MET proceeds with all monies used
exclusively to support Medicaid services.

On May 22, 2018, the State of New Hampshire and all New Hampshire hospitals (NH Hospitals)
signed a new settlement agreement and multi-year plan for Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH)
payments, with provisions to create alternative payments should there be federal changes to the
DSH program by the United States Congress. The agreement may change or limit federal
matching funds for MET when used to support DSH payments to hospitals and the Medicaid
program, or change the definition of Uncompensated Care (UCC) for purposes of calculating DSH
or other allowable uncompensated care payments. The term of the agreement is through state
Hscal year (SPY) 2024. Under the agreement, the NH Hospitals forgo approximately $28,000,000
of DSH payment for SPY 2018 and 2019, in consideration of the State agreeing to form a pool of
funds to make directed payments or otherwise increase rates to hospitals for SPY 2020 through
2024. The Pederal share of payments to NH Hospitals are contingent upon the receipt of matching
funds from Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) In the covered years. In the event
that, due to changes in federal law, the State is unable to make payments in a way that ensures the
federal matching funds are available, the Parties will meet and confer to negotiate in good faith an
appropriate amendment to this agreement consistent with the intent of this agreement. The State
is required to maintain the UCC Dedicated Pund pursuant to earlier agreements. The agreement
prioritizes payments of funds to critical access hospitals at 75% of allowable UCC, the remainder
thereafter is distributed to other NH Hospitals in proportion to their allowable uncompensated care
amounts. During the term of this agreement, the NH Hospitals are barred from bringing a new
claim in federal or state court or at Department of Revenue Administration (DRA) related to the

constitutionality of MET.
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During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Health System received DSN payments of
approximately, $69,179,000 and $66,383,000, respectively. DSN payments are subject to audit
pursuant to the agreement with the state and therefore, for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, the Health System recognized as revenue DSH receipts of approximately $64,864,000 and
approximately $54,469,000, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Health System recorded State of NH
Medicaid Enhancement Tax ("MET") and State of VT Provider tax of $70,061,000 and
$67,692,000, respectively. The taxes are calculated at 5.5% for NH and 6% for VT of certain net
patient service revenues in accordance with instructions received from the States. The Provider
taxes are included in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets.

Implicit Price Concessions

Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payer contracts are responsible for related co-
pays, co-insurance and deductibles, which vary depending on the contractual obligations of
patients. The Health System also provides services to uninsured patients and offers those patients
a discount from standard charges. The Health System estimates the transaction price for patients
with co-pays, co-insurance, and deductibles and for those who are uninsured based on historical
collection experience and current market conditions. The discount offered to uninsured patients
reduces the transaction price at the time of billing. The uninsured and patient responsible
accounts, net of discounts recorded, are further reduced through implicit price concessions based
on historical collection trends for similar accounts and other known factors that impact the
estimation process. Subsequent changes to the estimate of transaction price are generally
recorded as adjustments to net patient service revenue in the period of change.

The implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference
between amounts billed to patients and the amounts the Health System expects to collect based on
collection history with similar patients. Although outcomes vary, the Health System's policy is to
attempt to collect amounts due from patients, including co-pays, co-insurance and deductibles due
from insurance at the time of service while complying with all federal and state statutes and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act
(EMTALA). Through various systems and processes the Health System estimates Medicare and
Medicaid net patient service revenue and cost report settlements and accrues final expected
settlements. For filed cost reports, the accrual is recorded based on those filings, subsequent
activity, and on historical trends and other relevant evidence. For periods in which a cost report is
yet to be filed, accruals are based on estimates of what Is expected to be reported, and any trends
and relevant evidence. Cost reports generally must be filed within five months of the closing
period.

Settlements with third-party payers for retroactive revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely amount. These
settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payer,
correspondence from the payer and historical settlement activity, including assessments to ensure
that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment Is subsequently resolved.
Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known, or as years
are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews or investigations. As of June 30, 2019
and 2018, the Health System had $52,470,000 and $52,041,000, respectively, reserved for
estimated third-party settlements.
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For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2016, additional increases (decreases) in revenue of
$1,800,000 and ($5,604,000), respectively, was recognized due to changes in its prior years
related to estimated third-party settlements.

Net operating revenues for the hospital operations of the PPS and CAH, and other business
segments consist primarily of patient service revenues, principally for patients covered by
Medicare, Medicaid, managed care and other health plans as well as patients covered under the
Health System's uninsured discount and charity care programs.

The table below shows the Health System's sources of net operating revenues presented at the net
transaction price for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

2019

(in thousands of dollars) PPS CAH Total

Hospital
Medicare $ 456,197 $ 72,193 $ 528,390
Medicaid 134,727 12,794 147,521
Commercial 746,647 64,981 811,628

Self pay 8,811 2,313 11,124

1,346,382 152,281 1,498,663

Professional

Professional 454,425 23,707 478,132
VNH 22,528

Other revenue 285,715

Total operating revenue and other support $ 1,800,807 $ 175,988 $ 2,285,038

2018

(in thousands of dollars) PPS CAH Total

Hospital
Medicare $ 432,251 $ 76,522 $ 508,773
Medicaid 117,019 10,017 127,036

Commercial 677,162 65,916 743,078
Self pay 10,687 2,127 12,814

1,237,119 154,582 1,391.701

Professional

Professional 412,605 24,703 437,308
VNH 22.719

Other revenue 203.915

Total operating revenue and other support $ 1,649,724 $ 179,285 $ 2,055,643
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Accounts Receivable

The principal components of patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as
follows;

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Patient accounts recivable $ 221,125 $ 351,456

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ^ (132,228)

Patient accounts receivable $ 221,125 $ 219,228

The following table categorizes payors into four groups based on their respective percentages of
gross patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Medicare 34 % 34 %

Medicaid 12 14

Commercial 41 40

Self pay 13 12

Patient accounts receivable 100% 100%
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5. Investments

The composition of investments at June 30, 2019 and 2018 is set forth in the following table:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Assets limited as to use

Internally designated by board
Cash and short-term investments $  21,890 $ 8,558

U.S. government securities 91,492 50,484

Domestic corporate debt securities 196,132 109,240

Global debt securities 83,580 110,944

Domestic equities 167,384 142,796

International equities 128,909 ■ 106,668

Emerging markets equities 23,086 23,562

Real estate investment trust 213 816

Private equity funds 64,563 50,415

Hedge funds 32,287 32,831

809,536 636,314

Investments held by captive Insurance companies (Note 12)
U.S. government securities 23,241 30,581

Domestic corporate debt securities 11,378 16,764

Global debt securities 10,080 4,513

Domestic equities 14,617 8,109

International equities 6,766 7,971

66,082 67,938

Held by trustee under indenture agreement (Note 10)
Cash and short-term investments 631 1,872

Total assets limited as to use 876,249 706,124

Other Investments for restricted activities

Cash and short-term investments 6,113 4,952

U.S. govemment securities 32,479 28,220

Domestic corporate debt securities 29,089 29,031

Global debt securities 11,263 14,641

Domestic equities 20,981 20,509

Intemational equities 15,531 17,521

Emerging markets equities 2,578 2,155

Real estate investment trust - 954

Private equity funds 7,638 4,878

Hedge funds 8,414 8,004

Other 33 31

Total other investments for restricted activities 134,119 130,896

Total investments $  1,010,368 $ 837.020
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Investments are accounted for using either the fair value method or equity method of accounting,
as appropriate on a case by case basis. The fair value method is used for all debt securities and
equity securities that are traded on active markets and are valued at prices that are readily
available in those markets. The equity method is used when investments are made in
pooled/commingled investment funds that represent investments where shares or units are owned
of pooled funds rather than the underlying securities in that fund. These pooled/commingled funds
make underlying investments in securities from the asset classes listed above. All investments,
whether the fair value or equity method of accounting is used, are reported at what the Health
System believes to be the amount that the Health System would expect to receive if it liquidated its
investments at the balance sheets date on a nondistressed basis.

The following tables summarize the investments by the accounting method utilized, as of June 30,
2019 and 2018. Accounting standards require disclosure of additional information for those
securities accounted for using the fair value method, as shown in Note 7.

2019

(in thousands of dollars) Fair Value Equity Total

Cash and short-term investments $ 28,634 $ _ $ 28,634

U.S. government securities 147,212 - 147,212

Domestic corporate debt securities 164,996 71,603 236,599

Global debt securities 55,520 49,403 104,923

Domestic equities 176,720 24,262 202,982

International equities 76,328 74,878 151,206

Emerging markets equities 1,295 24,369 25,664

Real estate investment trust 213 - 213

Private equity funds - 72,201 72,201

Hedge funds - 40,701 40,701

Other 33 - 33

$ 652,951 $ 357,417 $ 1,010,368

2018

(In thousands of dollars) Fair Value Equity Total

Cash and short-term investments $ 15,382 $ $ 15,382

U.S. government securities 109,285 • 109,285

Domestic corporate debt securities 95,481 59,554 155,035

Global debt securities 49,104 80,994 130,098

Domestic equities 157,011 14,403 171,414

International equities 60,002 72,158 132,160

Emerging markets equities 1,296 24,421 25,717

Real estate investment trust 222 1,548 1,770

Private equity funds - 55,293 55,293

Hedge funds - 40,835 40,835

Other 31 - 31

$ 487.814 $ 349,206 $ 837,020
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Investment income is comprised of the following for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions

Interest and dividend income, net $  11,333 $ 12,324

Net realized gains on sales of securities 17,419 24,411

Change in net unrealized gains on investments 12,283 4,612

41,035 41,347

Net assets with donor restrictions

Interest and dividend Income, net 987 1,526

Net realized gains on sales of securities 2,603 1,438

Change in net unrealized gains on investments (908) 1,390

2,682 4,354

$  43,717 $ 45,701

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 investment income is reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as operating revenue of
approximately $983,000 and $960,000 and as nonoperating gains of approximately $40,052,000
and $40,387,000, respectively.

Private equity limited partnership shares are not eligible for redemption from the fund or general
partner, but can be sold to third party buyers in private transactions that typically can be completed
in approximately 90 days. It is the intent of the Health System to hold these investments until the
fund has fully distributed all proceeds to the limited partners and the term of the partnership
agreement expires. Under the terms of these agreements, the Health System has committed to
contribute a specified level of capital over a defined period of time. Through June 30, 2019 and
2018, the Health System has committed to contribute approximately $164,319,000 and
$137,219,000 to such funds, of which the Health System has contributed approximately
$109,584,000 and $91,942,000 and has outstanding commitments of $54,735,000 and
$45,277,000, respectively.
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6. Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are summarized as follows at June 30. 2019 and 2018:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

7.

Land $  38,232 $  38,058

Land improvements 42,607 42,295

Buildings and improvements 898,050 876,537

Equipment 888,138 818,902

Equipment under capital leases 15,809 20,966

1,882,836 1,796,758

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,276,746 1,200,549

Total depreciable assets, net 606,090 596,209

Construction in progress 15,166 11,112

$  621,256 $  607,321

As of June 30, 2019, construction in progress primarily consists of an addition to the ambulatory
surgical center located in Manchester, NH as well as renovations taking place at the various
pharmacy locations to bring their facilities compliant wjth Regulation USP800. The estimated cost
to complete the ambulatory surgical center at June 30, 2019 is approximately $59,000,000 over the
next two fiscal years while the pharmacy renovation is estimated to cost approximately $6,300,000
over the next fiscal year.

The construction in progress reported as of June 30, 2018 for the building renovations taking place
at the birthing pavilion in Lebanon, NH was completed during the first quarter of fiscal year 2019
and the information systems PeopleSoft project for Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital and Cheshire
was completed In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2019.

Depreciation and amortization expense included in operating and nonoperating activities was
approximately $88,496,000 and $84,729,000 for 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis:

Cash and Short-Term Investments

Consists of money market funds and are valued at net asset value (NAV) reported by the
financial institution.

Domestic, Emerging Markets and International Equities
Consists of actively traded equity securities and mutual funds which are valued at the closing price
reported on an active market on which the individual securities are traded (Level 1 measurements).
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U.S. Government Securities, Domestic Corporate and Global Debt Securities
Consists of U.S. government securities, domestic corporate and global debt securities, mutual
funds and pooled/commingled funds that invest in U.S. government securities, domestic corporate
and global debt securities. Securities are valued based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes
where available (Level 1 measurement). If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are
based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments or, if necessary, matrix pricing from a
third party pricing vendor to determine fair value (Level 2 measurements). Matrix prices are based
on quoted prices for securities with similar coupons, ratings and maturities, rather than on specific
bids and o^ers for a designated security. Investments in mutual funds are measured based on the
quoted NAV as of the close of business in the respective active market (Level 1 measurements).

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Health System
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the
use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

Investments are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The following tables set forth the consolidated Hnancial assets and
liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2019 and 2018;

201»

(In thouundi o! doHtrt)

(nvMUiMntt

Cash and ahort tann invattmanta

U.S. govammanl aacurttlaa
Domaatic corporaia dabt aacurttlaa
Glotwl dabi aacurttlaa

Domaatic aquliiaa
InlamaUonal aqultlaa
Emarglng martcat aqultiaa
Raal aatala Invaalmafit trual

Othar

Total invaalmanta

Oafarrad companaatlon plan aaaata
Caah and atiort-tarm Invaalmanta

U.S. oovammant aacurttlaa
Domaatic corporata dabi aacurttlaa
Global dabt aacurttlaa

Domaatic aqultiaa
International aqultiaa
Emarglng markat aqultiaa
Raal aatata

Mulll atratagy fund
Guaranteed contract

Total dafarrad companaatlon plan aaaata

Banaddal intaraat In truata

Total aaaata

Radamption Oaya'
Laval 1 Laval 2 LavalS Total or Liquidation Notica

$  2S.S34 S 3  • 5 28,834 Dally 1

147.212 147,212 Dally 1

34,723 130,273 184.006 Daly-Monthly 1-15

28.412 27.108 55,520 Daly-Monthly 1-15

171.318 7,402 178,720 Dally-Monthly 1-10

78,205 33 76.328 Daly-Monthly 1-11

1.205 - t.203 Daly-Monthly 1-7

213 - 213 Daly Monthly 1-7

33 33 Not applcabta Not applcabia

488,102 184,840 852.051

2,052 2.052

45 45

4.032 4,032

1.300 1,300

22.403 22.403

3.576 3,578
27 27

11 11

48.041 48,041

80 80

84.187 80 84,278 Not applcabia Not applcabia

0.301 0.301 Not applcabia Not applcabia

5  572.280 t  184,840 1  0,300 » 746.528
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2018

Rodomptlon Oaya'
(In OmitMnOi ol doHvt) Lsvsl 1 Ltvsl 2 Lsvsl S Total or Liquidation NoUco

InvMtnwnU

Cith •n<J shod term Invettmcnts 8 15,882 8 ■  8 8  15.382 Daily 1

U.S. govemmeni eecuriUet 100,285 100.285 Dally 1

Oomeilie corporate debt tecurltiet 41,488 53.003 05.481 DaHy-Monihly 1-15

Global debt lecurtUae 32,874 16.230 40.104 Dally-Monthly 1-15

Domeelic eqtjiliee 157,011 157.011 Da>y Month^ 1-10

Inlemaiionat equttite 50,024 76 80.002 Daly<Monihly 1-11

Emargtng market equltiet 1.206 - 1.206 Daly-Monthly 1-7

Real aetata Inveetmant trust 222 - 222 Daly-Month^ 1-7

Ol^or • 31 31 Not appHcaMa Not appUcabIa

Total Irtvestmertts 417,482 70.332 487.814

Oeferrad compensation plart assets
Cash and short-term investments 2,637 2.637

U.S. govemmeni securities 38 38

Domestic corporate debt securities 3,740 3.740

Global debt securities 1,080 1.080

Donwslic equities 18,470 18,470

Iniemallonal equities 3,564 3,584

Emerging market equities 26 28

Real estate 0 0

MulU strategy fund 46,680 46,680

Guaranteed contract 86 86

Total deterred compensation plan assets 76,284 86 76.370 Not appUeabta Not appUcabla

BeneAciel Interest In trusts . 0,374 0.374 Not appOcablt Not appUcatita

Total assets 8 403,766 8 70.332 8 0.460 8  573,558

The following table is a rollfonward of financial instruments classified by the Health System within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy defined above.

2019

Beneficial

Interest In

Perpetual Guaranteed

(in thousands of dollars) Trust Contract Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 9,374 $ 86 $ 9,460

Net unrealized gains (losses) (73) 3 (70)

Balances at end of year $ 9,301 $ 89 $ 9,390

2018

Beneficial

Interest In

Perpetual Guaranteed

(In thousands of dollars) Trust Contract Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 9,244 $ 83 $ 9,327

Net unrealized gains 130 3 133

Balances at end of year $ 9,374 $ 86 $ 9,460

There were no transfers into and out of Level 1 and 2 measurements due to changes in valuation
methodologies during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.
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8. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30, 2019 and
2018:

(in thousands of dollars)

Healthcare services

Research

Purchase of equipment
Charity care

Health education

Other

Investments held In perpetuity

2019 2018

20,140

26,496

3.273

12,494

19,833
3,841

56,383

19,570

24,732

3,068

13,667

18.429

2,973

55,394

$  142,460 $ 137,833

Income earned on donor restricted net assets held in perpetuity Is available for these purposes.

9. Board Designated and Endowment Funds

Net assets Include numerous funds established for a variety of purposes including both donor-
restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments. Net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the
Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Board of Trustees has Interpreted the NH and VT Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Acts {UPMIFA or Act) for donor-restricted endowment funds as requiring the preservation of
the original value of gifts, as of the gift date, to donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit
donor stipulations to the contrary. The Health System's net assets with donor restrictions which
are to be held in perpetuity consist of (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to be held In perpetuity, and (c)
accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund, if any.
Collectively these amounts are referred to as the historic dollar value of the fund.

Net assets without donor restrictions include funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function
as endowments and the Income from certain donor-restricted endowment funds, and any
accumulated investment return thereon, which pursuant to donor intent may be expended based on
trustee or management designation. Net assets with donor restrictions that are temporary in
nature, either restricted by time or purpose, include funds appropriated for expenditure pursuant to
endowment and investment spending policies, certain expendable endowment gifts from donors,
and any retained income and appreciation on donor-restricted endowment funds, which are
restricted by the donor to a specific purpose or by law. When the restrictions on these funds have
been met, the funds are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.
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In accordance with the Act, the Health System considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: the duration and
preservation of the fund; the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment fund; general economic
conditions; the possible effect of Inflation and deflation; the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; other resources available; and investment policies.

The Health System has endowment Investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding for programs supported by its endowment while ensuring that the
purchasing power does not decline over time. The Health System targets a diversified asset
allocation that places emphasis on investments In domestic and international equities, fixed
income, private equity, and hedge fund strategies to achieve its long-term return objectives within
prudent risk constraints. The Health System's Investment Committee reviews the policy portfolio
asset allocations, exposures, and risk profile on an ongoing basis.

The Health System, as a policy, may appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of an
endowment fund as the institution determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes, and
duration for which the endowment is established, subject to donor intent expressed in the gift
instrument and the standard of prudence prescribed by the Act.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment

funds may fall below their original contributed value. Such market losses were not material as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund consists of the following at June 30, 2019 and
2018:

2019

(in thousands of dollars)

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds

Total endowed net assets

(in thousands of dollars)

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds

Total endowed net assets

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ $ 78,268 $ 78,268

31,421 - 31,421

$  31.421 $ 78,268 $ 109,689

2018

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ $ 78,197 $ 78,197

29,506 - 29,506

$  29,506 $ 78,197 $ 107,703
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Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019

Without

Donor

With

Donor

(in thousands of dollars) Restrictions Restrictions Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 29,506 $ 76,197 $ 107,703

Net investment return 1,184 2,491 3,675

Contributions 804 1,222 2,026

Transfers (73) (1.287) (1,360)

Release of appropriated funds - (2,355) (2.355)

Balances at end of year $ 31,421 $ 78,268 $ 109,689

2018

Without With

Donor Donor

(In thousands of dollars) Restrictions Restrictions Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 26,389 $ 75,457 $ 101.846

Net investment return 3,112 4.246 7,358

Contributions - 1,121 1,121

Transfers 5 (35) (30)

Release of appropriated funds - (2,592) (2,592)

Balances at end of year $ 29,506 $ 78,197 $ 107,703
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10. Long-Term Debt

A summaty of long-term debt at June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Variable rate Issues

New Hampshire Health and Education facilities

Authority (NHHEFA) revenue bonds
Series 2018A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2037 (1) $ 83,355 $ 83,355

Fixed rate issues

New Hampshire Health and Education facilities
Authority revenue bonds

Series 2018B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2048 (1) 303,102 303,102
Series 2017A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2040 (2) 122,435 122,435
Series 2017B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2031 (2) 109,800 109,800
Series 2014A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2022 (3) 26,960 26,960
Series 2018C, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2030 (4) 25,865
Series 2012, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through July 2039 (5) 25,145 25,955
Series 2014B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2033 (3) 14,530 14,530
Series 2016B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2045 (6) 10,970 10,970

Total variable and fixed rate debt $ 722,162 $ 697,107
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A summary of long-term debt at June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Other

Series 2010, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2040 (7)* $ - $ 15,498
Note payable to a financial institution payable in interest free
monthly installments through July 2015;
collateralized by associated equipment* 445 646
Note payable to a financial institution with entire
principal due June 2029 that Is collateralized by land
and building. The note payable is interest free* 323 380
Mortgage note payable to the US Dept of Agriculture;
monthly payments of $10,892 include interest of 2.375%
through November 2046* 2,629 2,697
Obligations under capital leases 17,526 18,965

Total other debt

Total variable and fixed rate debt

Total long-term debt

Less: Original issue discounts and premiums, net
Bond issuance costs, net

Current portion

20,923 38,186

722,162 697,107

743,085 735,293

(25,542) (26,862)
5,533 5,716

10,914 3,464

$  752,180 $ 752,975

*  Represents nonobligated group bonds

Aggregate annual principal payments required under revenue bond agreements and capital lease
obligations for the next five years ending June 30 and thereafter are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 $ 10,914

2021 10,693

2022 10,843

2023 7,980

2024 3,016

Thereafter 699,639

$  743,085

Dartmouth'HItchcock Obligated Group (DHOG) Bonds
MHMH established the DHOG in 1993 for the original purpose of issuing bonds financed through
NHHEFA or the "Authority". The members of the obligated group consist of D-HH, MHMH, DHC,
Cheshire, NLH, MAHHC, and, effective August 15, 2018, APD. D-HH is designated as the
obligated group agent.
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Revenue Bonds issued by members of the DHOG are administered through notes registered in the
name of the Bond Trustee and in accordance with the terms of a Master Trust Indenture. The

Master Trust Indenture contains provisions permitting the addition, withdrawal, or consolidation of
members of the DHOG under certain conditions. The notes constitute a joint and several obligation
of the members of the DHOG (and any other future members of the DHOG) and are equally and
ratably collateralized by a pledge of the members' gross receipts. The DHOG is also subject to
certain annual covenants under the Master Trust Indenture, the most restrictive is the Annual Debt

Service Coverage Ratio (1.10x).

(1) Series 2018A and Series 20188 Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A and Series 20188 in
February 2018. The Series 2018A Revenue Bonds were primarily used to refund a portion of
Series 2015A and Series 2016A. The Series 2018B were primarily used to refund a portion of
Series 2015A and Series 2016A, Revolving Line of Credit, Series 2012 Bank Loan and the
Series 2015A and Series 2016A Swap terminations. A loss on the extinguishment of debt of
approximately $578,000 was recognized in nonoperating gains (losses) on the statement of
operations and changes in net assets, as a result of the refinancing. The interest on the
Series 2018A Revenue Bonds is variable with a current interest rate of 5.00% and matures in

variable amounts through 2037. The interest on the Series 2018B Revenue Bonds is fixed
with an interest rate of 4.18% and matures in variable amounts through 2048.

(2) Series 2017A and Series 2017B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A and Series 2017B in December.
2017. The Series 2017A Revenue Bonds were primarily used to refund Series 2009 and
Series 2010 and the Series 2017B Revenue Bonds were used to refund Series 2012A and

Series 2012B. The interest on the Series 2017A Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate

of 5.00% and matures in variable amounts through 2040. The interest on the Series 2017B
Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate of 2.54% and matures in variable amounts

through 2031.

(3) Series 2014A and Series 2014B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A and Series 2014B In
August 2014. The proceeds from the Series 2014A and 2014B Revenue Bonds were used to
partially refund the Series 2009 Revenue Bonds and to cover cost of issuance. Interest on the
2014A Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate of 2.63% and matures at various dates

through 2022. Interest on the Series 2014B Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate of
4.00% and matures at various dates through 2033.

(4) Series 20180 Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2018C in August. 2018. The Series
2018C Revenue Bonds were used primarily to refinance the Series 2010 Revenue Bonds.
The interest on the series 2018C Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate of 3.22% and

matures in variable amounts through 2030.
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(5) Series 2012 Revenue Bonds

The NHHEFA issued $29,650,000 of tax-exempt Revenue Bonds, Series 2012. The proceeds
of these bonds were used to refund 1998 and 2009 Series Bonds, to finance the settlement

cost of the interest rate swap, and to finance the purchase of certain equipment and
renovations. The bonds have fixed interest coupon rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% (a net
interest cost of 3.96%), and matures in variable amounts through 2039.

(6) Series 20168 Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B in July 2016 through a private
placement with a financial institution. The Series 2016B Revenue Bonds were used to finance
2016 projects. The Series 2016B is fixed with an interest rate of 1.78% and matures at
various dates through 2045.

Outstanding joint and several indebtedness of the DHOG at June 30, 2019 and 2018
approximates $722,162,000 and $697,107,000, respectively.

Non Obligated Group Bonds
(1) Series 2010 Revenue Bonds

The Business Finance Authority (BFA) of the State of NH issued Revenue Bonds, Series
2010. Interest is based on an annual percentage rate equal to the sum of (a) 69% of the 1-
Month LIBOR rate plus (b) 1.8975/5. The Health System redeemed these bonds in
August 2018.

The Health System Indenture agreements require establishment and maintenance of debt service
reserves and other trustee held funds. Trustee held funds of approximately $631,000 and
$1,872,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, are classified as assets limited as to use in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (Note 5). The debt service reserves are mainly
comprised of escrowed funds held for future principal and interest payments.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 interest expense on the Health System's long term
debt is reflected In the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets as operating expense of approximately $25,514,000 and $18,822,000 and other
nonoperating losses of $3,784,000 and $2,793,000, respectively.

Swap Agreements
The Health System is subject to market risks such as changes in interest rates that arise from
normal business operation. The Health System regularly assesses these risks and has established
business strategies to provide natural offsets, supplemented by the use of derivative financial
instruments to protect against the adverse effect of these and other market risks. The Health
System has established clear policies, procedures, and internal controls governing the use of
derivatives and does not use them for trading, investment, or other speculative purposes.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there was no liability for interest rate swaps as all remaining swaps
were terminated in February 2018. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Health System
recognized a nonoperating loss due to swap termination of $14,247,000 relating to the swap
termination. The change in fair value during the year ended June 30, 2018 was a decrease of
$4,897,000. For the year ended June 30, 2018 the Health System recognized a nonoperating gain
of $145,000 resulting from hedge ineffectiveness and amortization of frozen swaps.
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11. Employee Benefits

All eligible employees of the Health System are covered under various defined benefit and/or
define contribution plans. In addition, certain members provide postretirement medical and life
benefit plans to certain of its active and former employees who meet eligibility requirements. The
postretirement medical and life plans are not funded.

All of the defined benefit plans within the Health System have been frozen and therefore there are
no remaining participants earning benefits in any of the Health System's defined benefit plans.

The Health System continued to execute the settlement of obligations due to retirees in the defined
benefit plans through bulk lump sum offerings or purchases of annuity contracts. The annuity
purchases follow guidelines established by the Department of Labor (DOL). The Health System
anticipates continued consideration and/or implementation of additional settlements over the next
several years.

Defined Benefit Plans

Net periodic pension expense included In employee benefits In the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets is comprised of the components listed below for the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018;

(in thousands of dollars)

Service cost for benefits earned during the year
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Net loss amortization

Total net periodic pension expense

2019

150

47,814

(65,270)
10,357

2018

150

47,190

(64,561)

10,593

$  (6,949) $ (6,628)

The following assumptions were used to determine net periodic pension expense as of June 30,
2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Discount rate

Rate of increase in compensation

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

3.90 % - 4.60%

N/A

7.50%

4.00 % - 4.30 %

N/A

7.50 % - 7.75 %
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The following table sets forth the funded status and amounts recognized in the Health System's
consolidated financial statements for the defined benefit pension plans at June 30, 2019 and 2018;

(in thousands of dollars)

Change In benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year

2019 2018

$  1,087.940 $ 1,122,615

Service cost 150 150

Interest cost 47,814 47,190

Benefits paid (51,263) (47,550)

Expenses paid (170) (172)

Actuarial (gain) loss 93,358 (34,293)

Settlements (42,306) -

Benefit obligation at end of year 1,135,523 1,087,940

Change In plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 884,983 878,701

Actual return on plan assets 85,842 33,291

Benefits paid (51,263) (47,550)

Expenses paid (170) (172)
Employer contributions 20,631 20,713

Settlements (42,306) -

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 897,717 884,983

Funded status of the plans (237,806) (202,957)

Less: Current portion of liability for pension (46) (45)

Long term portion of liability for pension (237,760) (202,912)

Liability for pension $  (237,760) $ (202,912)

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018 the liability, for pension is included in the liability for pension and
other postretlrement plan benefits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic pension expense and included in the change in net assets
without donor restrictions include approximately $478,394,000 and $418,971,000 of net actuarial
loss as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The estimated amounts to be amortized from net assets without donor restrictions into net periodic
pension expense in fiscal year 2020 for net actuarial losses is $12,032,000.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plans was approximately
$1,135,770,000 and $1,087,991,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The following table sets forth the assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation at June 30,
2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Discount rate

Rate of increase in compensation
4.20%-4.50%

N/A

4.20%-4.50%

N/A
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The primary investment objective for the Plan's assets is to support the Pension liabilities of the
Pension Plans for Employees of the Health System, by providing long-term capital appreciation and
by also using a Liability Driven Investing ("LDI") strategy to partially hedge the impact fluctuating
interest rates have on the value of the Plan's liabilities. As of both June 30, 2019 and 2018, it is

expected that the LDI strategy will hedge approximately 80% of the Interest rate risk associated
with pension liabilities. To achieve the appreciation and hedging objectives, the Plans utilize a
diversified structure of asset classes designed to achieve stated performance objectives measured
on a total return basis, which includes income plus realized and unrealized gains and losses.

The range of target allocation percentages and the target allocations for the various investments
are as follows:

Range of

Target Target
Allocations Allocations

Cash and short-term investments 0-5% 3 %

U.S. government securities 0-10 5

Domestic debt securities 20-58 38

Global debt securities 6-26 8

Domestic equities 5-35 19

International equities 5-15 11

Emerging market equities 3-13 5

Real estate Investment trust funds 0-5 0

Private equity funds 0-5 0

Hedge funds 5-18 11

To the extent an asset class falls outside of its target range on a quarterly basis, the Health System
shall determine appropriate steps, as It deems necessary, to rebalance the asset class.

The Boards of Trustees of the Health System, as Plan Sponsors, oversee the design, structure,
and prudent professional management of the Health System's Plans' assets, in accordance with
Board approved investment policies, roles, responsibilities and authorities and more specifically the
following:

•  Establishing and modifying asset class targets with Board approved policy ranges,

•  Approving the asset class rebalancing procedures,

•  Hiring and terminating investment managers, and

•  Monitoring performance of the investment managers, custodians and Investment consultants.

The hierarchy and Inputs to valuation techniques to measure fair value of the Plans' assets are the
same as outlined in Note 7. In addition, the estimation of fair value of investments in private equity
and hedge funds for which the underlying securities do not have a readily determinable value Is
made using the NAV per share or its equivalent as a practical expedient. The Health System's
Plans own interests in these funds rather than in securities underlying each fund and, therefore, are
generally required to consider such investments as Level 2 or 3, even though the underlying
securities may not be difficult to value or may be readily marketable.
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The following table sets forth the Health System's Plans' investments and deferred compensation
plan assets that were accounted for at fair value as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019

Radamption Daya'
(In thousands of dollars) Lovat 1 Laval 2 Laval 3 ToUl or Liquidation Notice

InvtttmtnU

Cash and ihorl-term inveilmanti S 166 S 16.232 $ $ 16.396 Daily 1

U.S. govammant aacurlUas 46.560 • 48.560 Dally-Monthly 1-15

Domastic dabt aacurttias 122.176 273,424 395.602 Dally-Monthly 1-15

Global dabt aacurttlaa 426 75,146 75.574 DaHy-Monthly 1-15

Domeatic aqultiaa 159.250 18,316 177.575 Dally-Monthly 1-10

Inlamatlonal aqultiaa 17,232 77.146 64,376 Dally-Monthly 1-11

Emarging marfcat aqultiaa 321 36.902 40.223 Dally-Monthly 1-17

REIT funda 357 2.663 3.240 Dally-Monthly 1-17

Prfvata aqulty funda - - 21 21 S«a Nota 7 Saa Nota 7

Hedge funda
• •

44.126 44,126 Quarterly-Annual 60-96

Total inveatmenta S 346,521 % 505.049 $ 44,147 $ 697,717

2018

Radamption Daya'
(in thousands of dollars) Laval 1 Laval2 Laval 3 ToUl or Lfquidatlen Notice

Invaatmanta

Caah and abort-term invaatmanta S 142 S 35,617 $ % 35.959 Dally
U.S. govammant aacurttlaa 46.265 - 46.265 Dally-Monthly 1-15

Oomaatic dabt aacuriiiea 144.131 220.202 364.333 Dally-A4onthly, 1-15

Global debt aacurttlaa 470 74,676 75,146 Dally-Monthly 1-15

Domeatic aqultiaa 156.634 17.594 176,228 Daily-Monthly 1-10

international aqulUea 16,656 60.803 99,459 Daily-Monthly 1-11

Emerging market aqultiaa 362 39.881 40,263 Daily-Monthly 1-17

REIT furtda 371 2.666 3.057 Daily-Monthly 1-17

Private equity funda - - 23 23 Saa Nota 7 Saa Nota 7

Hedge furxla
- -

44,250 44.250 Ouarter1y<-Annual 60-eo

Total Invaatmanta $ 369.051 s 471,659 $ 44,273 t 664.963

The following table presents additional information about the changes in Level 3 assets measured
at fair value for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019

Private

(in thousands of dollars) Hedge Funds Equity Funds Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 44,250 $ 23 $ 44,273

Net unrealized losses (124) (2) (126)

Balances at end of year $ 44,126 $ 21 $ 44,147

2018

Private

(in thousands of dollars) Hedge Funds Equity Funds Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 40,507 $ 96 $ •40,603

Sales - (51) (51)
Net realized losses - (51) (51)
Net unrealized gains 3,743 29 3,772

Balances at end of year $ 44,250 $ 23 $ 44,273
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The total aggregate net unrealized gains (losses) included in the fair value of the Level 3
investments as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 were approximately $14,617,000 and $14,743,000.
respectively. There were no transfers into and out of Level 3 measurements during the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

There were no transfers into and out of Level 1 and 2 measurements due to changes in valuation
methodologies during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The weighted average asset allocation for the Health System's Plans at June 30, 2019 and 2018
by asset category is as follows:

2019 2018

Cash and short-term investments 2% 4%

U.S. government securities 5 5

Domestic debt securities 44 41

Global debt securities 9 9

Domestic equities 20 20

International equities 11 11

Emerging market equities 4 5

Hedge funds 5 5

100 % 100 %

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets Is reviewed annually, taking into consideration
the asset allocation, historical returns on the types of assets held, and the current economic
environment. Based on these factors. It is expected that the pension assets will earn an average of
7.50% per annum.

The Health System is expected to contribute approximately $20,426,000 to the Plans in 2020
however actual contributions may vary from expected amounts.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected
to be paid for the years ending June 30 and thereafter:

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 $ 50,743

2021 52,938

2022 55,199

2023 57,562

2024 59,843

2025-2028 326,737
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Defined Contribution Plans

The Health System has an employer-sponsored 401(a) plan for certain of its members, under
which the employer makes base, transition and discretionary match contributions based on
specified percentages of compensation and employee deferral amounts. Total employer
contributions to the plan of approximately $40,537,000 and $38,563,000 in 2019 and 2018,
respectively, are included in employee benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets.

Various 403(b) and tax- sheltered annuity plans are available to employees of the Health System.
Plan specifications vary by member and plan, No employer contributions were made to any of
these plans in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Postretlrement Medical and Life Benefits

The Health System has postretirement medical and life benefit plans covering certain of its active
and former employees. The plans generally provide medical or medical and life insurance benefits
to certain retired employees who meet eligibility requirements. The plans are not funded.

Net periodic postretirement medical and life benefit (income) cost is comprised of the components
listed below for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Service cost $ 384 $ 533

Interest cost 1,842 1,712

Net prior service income (5,974) (5,974)
Net loss amortization 10 10

$ (3,738) $ (3,719)

The following table sets forth the accumulated postretirement medical and life benefit obligation
and amounts recognized in the Health System's consolidated financial statements at June 30, 201
and 2018:

(In thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 42,581 $ 42,277

Service cost 384 533

Interest cost 1,842 1,712

Benefits paid (3,149) (3,174)
Actuarial loss 5,013 1,233

Employer contributions - -

Benefit obligation at end of year 46,671 42,581

Funded status of the plans $ (46,671) $ (42,581)

Current portion of liability for postretirement
medical and life benefits $ (3,422) $ (3,266)
Long term portion of liability for

postretirement medical and life benefits (43,249) (39,315)

Liability for postretirement medical and life benefits $ (46,671) $ (42,581)
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As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the liability for postretirement medical and life benefits Is included, in
the liability for pension and other postretirement plan benefits in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic postretirement medical and life benefit income and
included in the change in net assets without donor restrictions are as follows;

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Net prior service income $ (9,556) $ (15,530)
Net actuarial loss 8,386 3,336

$  (1,170) $ (12.194)

The estimated amounts that will be amortized from net assets without donor restrictions into net

periodic postretirement income in fiscal year 2020 for net prior service cost is $5,974,000.

The following future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid for the year ending June 30, 2020 and thereafter:

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 ■ S 3,468

2021 3,436

2022 3,394

2023 3,802

2024 3,811

2025-2028 17,253

In determining the accumulated postretirement medical and life benefit obligation, the Health
System used a discount rate of 3.70% in-2019 and an assumed healthcare cost trend rate of
6.50%, trending down to 5.00% in 2024 and thereafter. Increasing the assumed healthcare cost
trend rates by one percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated postretirement
medical benefit obligation as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 by $1,601,000 and $1,088,000 and the
net periodic postretirement medical benefit cost for the years then ended by $77,000 and $81,000,
respectively. Decreasing the assumed healthcare cost trend rates by one percentage point in each
year would decrease the accumulated postretirement medical benefit obligation as of June 30,
2019 and 2018 by $1,452,000 and $996,000 and the net periodic postretirement medical benefit
cost for the years then ended by $71,000 and $72,000, respectively.
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12. Professional and General Liability Insurance Coverage

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital and Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic, along with Dartmouth College,
Cheshire Medical Center, The New London Hospital Association, Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health
Center, and the Visiting Nurse and Hospice for VT and NH are provided professional and general
liability insurance on a claims-made basis through Hamden Assurance Risk Retention Group, Inc.
(RRG), a VT captive insurance company. Effective November 1, 2018 Alice Peck Day Memorial
Hospital is provided professional and general liability insurance coverage through RRG. RRG
reinsures the majority of this risk to Hamden Assurance Company Limited (HAC). a captive
insurance company domiciled in Bermuda and to a variety of commercial reinsurers. Mary
Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic, and Dartmouth College have ownership

interests in both HAC and RRG. The insurance program provides coverage to the covered
institutions and named insureds on a modified claims-made basis which means coverage is
triggered when claims are made. Premiums and related insurance deposits are actuarially
determined based on asserted liability claims adjusted for future development. The reserves for
outstanding losses are recorded on an undiscounted basis.

Selected financial data of HAC and RRG, taken from the latest available financial statements at
June 30, 2019 and 2018, are summarized as follows;

2019

(in thousands of dollars) MAC RRG Total

Assets $ 75,867 $ 2,201 $ 78,068

Shareholders'equity 13,620 50 13,670

2018

(in thousands of dollars) HAC RRG Total

Assets $ 72,753 $ 2,068 $ 74,821

Shareholders'equity 13,620 50 13,670

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation
The Health System is involved in various malpractice claims and legal proceedings of a nature
considered normal to its business. The claims are in various stages and some may ultimately be
brought to trial. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the outcome of any of these claims,
it is the opinion of management that the final outcome of these claims will not have a material effect
on the consolidated financial position of the Health System.

Operating Leases and Other Commitments
The Health System leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases with varying
expiration dates. The Health System's rental expense totaled approximately $12,707,000 and
$14,096,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Minimum future lease payments under noncancelable operating leases at June 30, 2019 were
as follows:

(in thousands ofdoHars)

2020 $ 11,342

2021 10,469

2022 7,488

2023 6,303

2024 4,127
.Thereafter 5,752

$  45,481

Lines of Credit

The Health System has entered into Loan Agreements with financial institutions establishing
access to revolving loans ranging from $2,000,000 up to $30,000,000. Interest is variable and
determined using LI80R or the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The Loan Agreements are due to
expire March 27, 2020. There was no outstanding balance under the lines of credit as of June 30,
2019 and 2018. Interest expense was approximately $95,000 and $232,000, respectively, and Is
included in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

14. Functional Expenses

Operating expenses are presented by functional classification in accordance with the overall
service missions of the Health System. Each functional classification displays all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Salaries, employee benefits, medical
supplies and medications, and purchased services and other expenses are generally considered
variable and are allocated to the mission that best aligns to the type of service provided. Medicaid
enhancement tax is allocated to program sen/ices. Interest expense is allocated based on usage
of debt-financed space. Depreciation and amortization is allocated based on square footage and
specific identification of equipment used by department.

Operating expenses of the Health System by functional and natural basis are as follows for the
year ended June 30, 2019:

2019

Program Management
(in thousands of dollars) Services and General Fundralsing Total

Operating expenses
Salaries $  922,902 $  138,123 $  1,526 $  1,062,551
Employee benefits 178,983 72,289 319 251,591
Medical supplies and medications 406,782 1,093 - 407,875
Purchased sen/ices and other 212,209 108,783 2,443 323,435
Medicaid enhancement tax 70,061 . . 70,061
Depreciation and amortization 37,528 50,785 101 88,414

interest 3,360 22,135 19 25,514

Total operating expenses $  1,831,825 $  393,208 $  4,408 $  2,229,441

Operating expenses of the Health System by functional classification are as follows for the year
ended June 30, 2018:
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(in thousands of dollars)

Program services $ 1,715,760
Management and general 303,527
Fundralsing 2,354

$  2.021,641

15. Liquidity

The Health System Is substantially supported by cash generated from operations. In addition, the
Health System holds financial assets for specific purposes which are limited as to use. Thus,
certain financial assets reported on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet may not be
available for general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date.

The Health System's financial assets available at June 30, 2019 to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year of June 30, 2019 are as follows;

(in thousands of dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 143,587
Patient accounts receivable 221,125

Assets limited as to use 676,249

Other investments for restricted activities 134,119

Total financial assets 1,375,080

Less: Those unavailable for general expenditure
within one year:
Investments held by captive insurance companies 66,082
Investments for restricted activities 134,119

Other investments with liquidity horizons
greater than one year 97,063

Total financial assets available within one year $ 1,077,816

For the years ending June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, the Health System generated positive cash
flow from operations of approximately $161,853,000 and $136,031,000, respectively. In addition,
the Health System's liquidity management plan includes Investing excess daily cash In Intermediate
or long term investments based on anticipated liquidity needs. The Health System has an available
line of credit of up to $30,000,000 which it can draw upon as needed to meet its liquidity needs.
See Note 13 for further details on the line of credit.

16. Subsequent Events

The Health System has assessed the impact of subsequent events through November 26, 2019,
the date the audited consolidated financial statements were issued, and has concluded that there

were no such events that require adjustment to the audited consolidated financial statements or
disclosure in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements other than as noted below.

Effective September 30, 2019, the Boards of Trustees of D-HH, GraniteOne Health, Catholic
Medical Center Health Services, and their respective member organizations approved a
Combination Agreement to combine their healthcare systems. If regulatory approval of the

44



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

transaction Is obtained, the name of the new system will be Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Health GraniteOne.

The GraniteOne Health system is comprised of Catholic Medical Center (CMC), a community
hospital located in Manchester NH, Huggins Hospital located in Wolfeboro NH, and Monadnock
Community Hospital located in Peterborough NH. Both Huggins Hospital and Monadnock
Community Hospital are designated as Critical Access Hospitals. GraniteOne is a non-profit,
community based health care system.

On September 13. 2019, the Board of Trustees of D-HH approved the issuance of up to
$100.000,000 par of new debt. On October 17, 2019, D-HH closed on the direct placement tax-
exempt borrowing of $99,165,000 on behalf of the DHOG acting through the New Hampshire
Health and Education Facilities Authority and issued its DHOG Issue, Series 2019A Bonds.

On January 29, 2020, D-HH closed on a tax-exempt borrowing of $125,000,000 on behalf of the
DHOG acting through the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority and issued its
DHOG Issue, Series 2020A Bonds.

17. Subsequent Events • Unaudited

Subsequent to the issuance of the audited financial statements on November 26, 2019, the novel
strain of coronavirus emerged and in January 2020 the World Health Organization has declared the
novel coronavirus a Public Health Emergency of International Concern. Beginning in March 2020,
the State of New Hampshire and Verrnont have adopted various measures to address the spread
of this pandemic, including supporting social distancing, requests to stay home unless necessary
(i.e., groceries or medications) and work from home recommendations. Such restrictions and the
perception that such orders or restrictions could occur, have resulted in business closures, work
stoppages, slowdowns and delays, work-from-home policies, travel restrictions and cancellation of
events, including the rescheduling of elective or non-critical procedures (which management
believes is temporary and such procedures will be performed at a later date) and redeployment of
resources to address the novel coronavirus needs, among other effects. The outbreak has also
negatively impacted the financial markets and has and may continue to materially affect the returns
on and value of our investments. While we expect that the novel coronavirus may negatively
impact our 2020 results, we believe we have sufficient liquidity to meet our operating and financing
needs; however, given the difficulty in predicting the ultimate duration and severity of the impact of
the novel coronavirus on our organization, the economy and the financial markets, the ultimate
impact may be material.
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Dartmouttv Cheshire AUca Peck hlew Lortdon ML Ascutney DHObUgatsd AH Other Non- Health

Hitchcock Dartntouth- MatUcal Dey Hospital Hospital and Group ObOg Group Systam
(in ffwttsantb oldoian) Health Hitchcock Center MeiTterlal Association Health Center Eliminations Subtotal Affiliates EBmliutloiH Cortsoldatad

Assets

Corrert assets

Cash and cash equivatents S 42.456 5 47.465 S 9,411 S 7.086 S 10.482 S 8.372 S . S 125,232 S 18.355 S S 143.587
Patient acccunts racetvabte. net • 180.938 15.880 7.279 8.960 5.010 . 218.067 3.058 . 221.125
Prepaid ei^enses and other cunent assets 14.178 139.034 8.563 2.401 5.567 1.423 (74.063) 97.063 1.421 (3.009) 95.495

Total eutrenl assets 56.634 367.437 33.854 18.746 24.989 14.805 (74,063) 440.382 22.834 (3.009) 460.207

Assets bniied as to use 92.602 688.485 18.759 12.684 12.427 11.619 . 836,576 39.673 . 876.249
Notes recervabta. rotated party 553.484 752 - 1.406 • - (554.236) 1,406 (1.406) .

Other Inveslmerrts for restricted activities • 91.882 6.970 31 2.973 6.323 . 108,179 25.940 134.119
Property, plant, arxi equipmefa, net 22 432.277 67.147 30.945 41.946 17.797 - 590,134 31.122 - 621.256

Other assets 24.884 108.208 1.279 15.019 6.042 4.388 (10.970) 148,830 (3.013) (21.346) 124.471

Total assets $ 727.606 S 1.689.041 S 128.009 s 78.831 s 88.377 $ 54.932 s (639.289) s 2.125,507 s 115.150 s (24.355) s 2.216.302
UaMWes aitd Net Assets

Current iabiities

Current portton o( tong-term debt $ - S 8.226 s 830 s 954 5 547 5 262 $ . 5 10,819 s 95 s s 10.914
Current portion of iablity for pension and
other postretlrement plan tienetlts - 3.468 • - - . . 3,468 . 3.468

Accomts payable and accrued e^eraes SS.499 99.884 15.620 6.299 3,878 2.778 (74.083) 109.873 6.953 (3.009) 113.817
Accrued ccmperaatfon artd related bertefils - 110.839 5.651 3.694 2.313 4.270 . 126.767 1.641 128.408
Estanaled Ihinl-psrty setbemento • 26.405 103 1.290 10.851 2.921 . 41,570 . 41.570

Total current iatsiities 55.499 248.622 22.404 12.237 17.589 10.229 (74.063) 292.497 8.689 (3.009) 298.m

Notes payattle. related party . 526.202 . . -28.034 - (554,236) . .

leng-term debt, excluding current portion 643.257 44.820 24.503 35.604 643 11.465 (10.970) 749,322 2.858 752.180
Irauranoe deposits and related laMRies - 58.788 440 513 388 240 . 58,367 40 . 58.407
Uabflty for pension and other postretkemerS .

plan benefits, excluding eurrerd portion - 268.427 10.282 . - 4.320 . 281.009 . 281.009
Other iabiities - 98.201 M04 28 1.585 . . 100.918 23.218 . 124.136

Total Ksbttbes 698.756 1.241.058 58.713 48.382 48.239 26.254 (639.289) 1.482.113 34.805 ra.009) 1.513.909

Commilments arto contingencies

Net assets

Net sssets without donor restrtctiorts 28.832 356.880 63.051 27.853 35.518 21.242 . 533.176 48.063 (21.306) 559.933
Net assets «dth donor lestrictiora 18 91.103 6.245 796 4.820 7.436 - 110.218 32.282 (40) 142.460

Total net easels 28.850 447.963 69.296 28.449 40.138 28.678 . 643.394 80.345 (21.346) 702.393

Total hblitles arto net assets s 727.606 5 1.689.041 5 128.009 5 76.631 S 88.377 S 54.932 s (639.289) S 2.125.507 s 115.150 s (24.355) 5 2,216.302
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
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June 30, 2019

D-HH Heatth

and Other O-Hand Cheshira ai>d NLH and MAHHC and APD and VNH and System
On thousands ofdoiars) Subsidiaries Sutnidlarfes Sutisldlarfe* Sui>sidlaries Subsidiaries Sul»idlaries Subsidiaries ERmirrations Cortsolidated

ASMtS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents S 42.456 S 48,052 $ 11,952 i 11,120 S 6.549 S 15,772 S 5,686 S . $ 143,587
Patient accounts receivable, net - 180.938 15,880 8,960 5.060 7,280 3,007 . 221,125
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 14,178 139,832 9,460 5,567 1.401 1,678 471 (77,092) 95,495

Total current assets 56.634 368,822 37,292 25,647 15.010 24,730 9,164 (77,092) 460,207

Assets Smited as to use 92.602 707.597 17,383 12.427 12,738 12,685 20,817 . 876,249
Notes receivable, related party 553.484 752 - . - . . (554,236) .

Other investments for restricted activities - 99,807 24,985 2.973 6,323 31 . . 134,119
Property, plant, and equipment, net 22 434,953 70,846 42,423 19,435 50,338 3,239 - 621,256
Ottter assets 24,864 108,366 7,388 5,476 1,931 8,688 74 (32,316) 124,471

Total assets $ 727,606 s 1.720,297 S 157,894 i 86,946 S 55,437 S 96.472 s 33,294 $ (663,644) S 2.216,302

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liat>aities

Current portion of long-term debt $ - t 8,226 $ 830 i 547 t 288 $ 954 i 69 $ . $ 10,914
Current portion of liability for pension and
otfter postretirement plan bertefits - 3,468 - . - . . - 3,468
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 55,499 100,441 19,356 -■-3,879 2,856 6,704 2,174 (77,092) 113,817
Accrued compensation and related benefits - 110,639 5,851 -2,313 4.314 4,192 1,099 . 128,408
Estimated tNrd-party settlements • 26,405 103 10,851 2,921 1.290 . . 41.570

Total current tiabiiities 55,499 249,179 26,140 17,590 10,379 13,140 3,342 (77,092) 298,177
Notes payable, related party - 526,202 . 28,034 . . . (554,236) .

Long-term debt, exdudirtg current portion 643.257 44,820 24,503 643 11,753 35,604 2,560 (10,970) 752,180
IrrsurarKe deposits and related lialHlities - 56,786 440 388 240 513 40 . 58,407
Liatxiity for pension artd other postretirement
plan benefits, exdudtng current portion • 266,427 10,262 . 4.320 . . - 281.009
Other BabSities - 98,201 1,115 1,585 - 23,235 . - 124,136

Total UbSities 698.756 1,241,615 62,460 48.240 26,702 72,492 5,942 (642.296) 1,513,909
Commitments and contingencies

Net assets
Net assets wfttwut dortor restiictiofts 28.832 379,496 65,873 36,087 21,300 22,327 27,322 (21.306) 559,933
Net assete with donor restrictions 18 99,184 29.561 4.619 7,435 1,653 30 (40) 142,460

Total net assets 28,850 478.682 95,434 40.706 28,735 23,980 27,352 (21.346) 702.393
Total fabilities and net assets s 727,606 i 1,720,297 $ 157,894 $ 88.946 i 55,437 $ 96,472 S 33,294 s (663.644) s 2.216.302
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30, 2018

Dartmouth- Chashira New London ML Ascutnay DM Obllgstad All Other Non- Health

Hltcfwock Dartmouth- Medical Hoapltal Hospital and Group OtiOg Group System
(kt thotaanOs «3f dotafs) Health Hitchcock Canter Association Health Center Eliminations Sutrtotal Afmiatas Elbnlnatlora Consolidatad

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents S  134.634 $  22.544 S  6.668 $  9,419 S  6.604 S S  179.889 S  20,280 S . S  200.169
PatierS accourtts receivable, rtet - 176.981 17.183 8.302 5.055 . 207.521 11.707 . 219.228
Prepaid expertses and other currer^ assets 11.964 143.893 6.551 5.253 2.313 (72.361) 97.613 4.766 (4.877) 97.502

Total cuners assets 146.598 343.418 30.422 22.974 13.972 (7Z361) 485.023 36.753 (4.877) 516.899

Assets Bmited as to use 8 616.929 •  17.438 12.821 10.829 . 658.025 48.099 . 706.124

Notes receivable, related party 554,771 . - - . (554.771) . - -
.

Other investments for restricted activities - 87.613 8.591 2.981 6.238 . 105.423 25.473 . 130.896
Property, ptam, and equipmenL net 36 443.154 66.759 42,438 17.356 . 569.743 37.578 . 607.321
Other assets 24,863 101.078 1.370 5.906 4.260 (10.970) 126.527 3.604 (21.346) 108.765

Total assets S  726,276 S  1.592.192 S  124.580 S  87.120 $  52.675 %  (638.102) $  1.944.741 $  151.507 i (26.223) S  2.070.025

Liabilities and Net Assets

Cunsnt Kabaities

Current portion of long-term detx
Current portion of iabHity for pension and

ottwr posSetkement plan bertefits
Accounts payattle and accrued expertses

Accrued compensation and related berrefits

Estimated thitd-party settlenrents

Total current iiatjHities

Notes payatite. related party
Li>ng4enn debt, excluding current portion
Insurance deposits and related fiabilites

UabHity for pertsion end other postretirement
plan benefits, exctuding current portion

Other ttabfiities

Total liabiities

Caimstjuenta and contingenides

Neiassets

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictiorts

Total r>et assets

Total Mstilfities attd net assets

S  - $ 1,031 S 810 S 572 $

DI

- $ 2.600 S 664 $ •  S 3.464

- 3,311 . . . _ 3,311 . . 3.311
54.995 82.061 20.107 6.705 3.029 (72.361) 94.536 6.094 (4.877) 95.753

- 106.465 5.730 2.487 3.796 - 118.498 7.078 . 125.576
3.002 24.411 - 9,655 1.625 . 38,693 2.448 . 41.141

57,997 217.299 26.647 19,419 8.637 (72.361) 257.638 16.484 (4,877) 269.245

. 527,346 . 27.425 - (554.771) .
. . .

644.520 52,878 25.354 1,179 11.270 (10,970) 724.231 28.744 . 752.975

•
54.616 465 155 240

-
55.476 40

•
55.516

- 232.696 4.215 _ 5.316 . 242.227 . _ 242.227
- 85,577 1.107 1.405 . - 88,069 38 . 88.127

702.517 1.170,412 57.788 49.583 25.463 (638.102) 1.367.661 45.306 (4,877) 1.408.090

23.759 334,882 61.628 32.897 19.612 473.178 72,230 (21.306) 524.102
- 86.898 4.964 4.640 7.400 - 103.902 33.971 (40) 137.833

23.759 421.780 66.792 37,537 27.212 - 577.080 106.201 (21.346) 661.935

S  726.276 $ 1.592.192 i 124.580 S 87.120 S 52.675 $ (636.102) S 1.944.741 S 151.507 $ (26.223) S 2.070.025

48



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30, 2018

O-HH Health

artd Other D-Hand Cheshire and NLH and MAHHC snd VNH and System
(h thousands ot dotars) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries APO Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents S 134,634 S 23,094 $ 8,621 i 9,982 $ 6,654 S 12,144 % 5,040 $ , S 200,169
Patient accounts receivable, net - 176,981 17,183 8,302 5,109 7,996 3,657 . 219,228
Prepaid expettses artd ottwr current assets 11,964 144,755 5,520 5,276 2,294 4.443 468 (77.238) 97,502

TcMai current assets 146,598 344,830 31,324 23,560 14,057 24,583 9,165 (77,238) 516,699

Assets limited as to use 8 635,028 17,438 12.821 11,862 9,612 19,355 . 706,124
Notes receivable, related party 554,771 - . . . . . (554,771) .

Other investments for restricted activities - 95,772 25,873 2,981 6,238 32 . . 130,896
Property, plant, and equipment, net 36 445,829 70,607 42,920 19,065 25,725 3,139 - 607,321
Other assets 24,663 101,235 7,526 5,333 1,886 130 128 (32.316) 108,765

Total assets $ 726,276 s 1,622,694 S 152,768 $ 87,615 S 53,108 $ 60,082 S 31,807 $ (664,325) $ 2,070,025

Liabilities and Net Assets

Cunent UabiGties

Current portion of long-term detit $ - s 1,031 $ 810 s 572 S 245 s 739 S 67 S . $ 3,464
Current portion of Bability for pemion and
other postretiremetrt plan bertefits

- 3,311 . . . - . - 3,311
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 54,995 82,613 20,052 •6,714 3,092 3,596 1,929 (77,238) 95,753
Accrued compensation and related benefits - 106,485 5,730 '2,487 3,831 5,614 1,229 - 125,576
Estimated third-party settlements 3,002 24,411 . 9,655 1,625 2.448 . - 41,141

Total current Gablities 57,997 217,851 26,592 19,428 8,793 12,597 3,225 (77,238) 269,245

Notes payable, related party - 527.346 . 27,425 . . . (554,771) .

Long-term detiL exducfing current portion 644,520 52,878 25,354 1,179 11,593 25,792 2,629 (10,970) 752.975
Irrsurance deposits artd related liabilities . 54,616 465 155 241 . 39 . 55,516
Liability for pertsion and other postretirenrent
plan tjenefits. excluding current portion . 232,696 4,215 . 5,316 . . . 242,227
Otf>er babilrties • 85,577 1,117 1,405 . 28 - . 88.127

Total iiabiities 702,517 1,170,964 57.743 49,592 25.943 38,417 5,893 (642.979) 1,408,090

Commitments and contingefxaes

Net assets

Net assets without dorxx restrictions 23,759 356,518 65,069 33,383 19,764 21.031 25,864 (21,306) 524.102
Net assets with donor restrictiorts - 95,212 29,956 4.640 7,401 634 30 (40) 137.833

Total net assets 23,759 451,730 95,025 38,023 27,165 21,685 25,914 (21,346) 661.935

Total SaiMiities and net assets S 726,276 s 1.622.694 $ 152,768 $ 87,615 $ 53,108 5 60,082 i 31,807 S (664.325) $ 2.070.025
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2019

fii tiousand* at dotanf

Dsranouth-

Hlteheeek

Itistth

Oertmeudw

Hltehcock

Cheshire

Medical

Center

Abes Peck

Day
Memeriii

New London

Hospital

Aasodaden

tdLAscutney

Hospital and

HealCh Center EOninstleia

DHObBgsted
Group

Subtotal

Al Other Neo-

ObOg Group
Afflbiaa EMninstlOns

Hosith

SysMiB
CensdWslod

OpMfing r*v«cMi« and oOm support
Patters lervica teverwe

CotSraded reverwe

00<er eperatng revenue
Net assets releesed tram restrtcdetM

»

S.0t1

21.120

369

t  1.500.552

109.051

106.052

11.556

5  220.255

355

3,407

732

S  89,794

1,748

137

5  60.166

4.261

177

5  46.029 S

5.902

2.289

24

(46.100)

(22.076)

5  1.976.796

74.219

197609

12995

5  22527

790

13666

1.110

S

8

(297)

5  1.999.323

75.017

210.698

14.105

Total eperatinQ revenue and opiar support 26.508 1M.011 224.749 71.679 84.804 54.244 (68176) 2261619 37.813 (2891 2299.143

Operattng aspsrues
Salaries

Emploree berteto
« * - -«> - - « - - " ■ j - ■ ■

INV9CB pjppees ■no fnoocnons

Purchased servlees end other
ModicM enhammera tax
Depreoalxxi and amortizatton
Interest

11.366

14
20.677

068.311
208.346
354.201
242.106
54.954
69.343
21.565

107.671
24.225
34.331
35.088
8.005
7J77
1.053

37.297
6,454
8,634

15.306
3,062
2J0S
1.169

30.549
5.434
8.298

13.528
2J«4
3.915
1.119

26.514
6.966
3,032

13,950
1.778
2J60

228

(24.662)
(3.763)

(21,176)

(20.850)

1.045,660
247.662
406,496
310.I7O
70,061
85,914
24.981

15,785
3,642
1,379

14.887

2600
533

1.106
287

(1,822)

1.062651
251.591
407.675
323.435
70.061
88.414
25614

Total operadng eidensee 32.057 1J10.846 218.350 74.229 63.107 54.826 (70.471) 2190.944 38.728 (229) 2.229.441
Ofteraanp ̂ loss) margei (5.549) 89.165 6.399 (2.550) 11.497 (582) 2.295 70 675 (013) (60) 69.702

Wonoperattng galtts (losses)
Investnieia income (loesee), net
Odter (lnnBi> ricotne. t<el
Loes on eactf edinguishmeni d debt
Loss on swap tormetalton

3.929
0.784)

32.193
1.566

227
(187)

469
30

(87)

834

(240)
623
279

(196)
(2.097)

38,077
(4.413)

(87)

1,975
791 60

40.052
(3.562)

(87)

Total iwKperabnQ pains (losses), net 145 33.779 40 412 594 902 (2.295) 33,577 2768 60 36.403
(Defcienqf) excess el revereie over eigenses (5.404) 102.944 6.439 (2.138) 2.091 320 104652 1,853 . 106.105

Net assets wtttveui donorrestrlctlorta
Net assets reteased horn resatcbora

Change hi tutded status d panaien and edier
posaethemeni tMnehts
Nd asaed haialened to (horn) aOlaies
Mdttiotal paid hi capital
Other danges hi net assets
Change hi iah vahie on haeresl rate swaps
Change hi luided status d haerest rate swaps

10.477

419

(65.005)
(16.360)

565

(7.720)
1.939 8.760

402

128

318

682
110

-

1.704

(72043)
5.054

85

(5.054)

1.769

(72043)

Inseeae hi net assets wtthout donor festricbons S  5.073 S  21.998 S  1.223 5  6,622 $  2.621 S  1,430 5 - *  38,967 5  (3.135) 5 8  35.631
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2019

D-HH Health

and Other D-H ar>d Chesftirs srtd NLHand MAHHCand APDsnd VNH and System
(}n IhousatKls of dotlars) SulasWIartes Substdlartes Sulasidiartes Subsidiaries SubskSarles Subsldlailes Sutstcflarles Eilminadons Corrsotidatad

Optrating r»v«ntM snd other mupport

Patient service revenue $ S  1.580.552 $ 220.254 $  60.166 S  46,029 $  69.794 S  22.528 S . S  1.999.323
Contracted revertue 5.010 109.642 355 . 5,902 . . (46,092) 75.017
Other operating revenue 21.128 188.775 3.549 4.260 3.868 10,951 540 (22.373) 210.698
Net assets relessad from restrictions 371 12.637 732 177 26 162 • 14.105

Total operating revenue and other starport 26.509 1.891.806 224.890 64.603 55.825 60.907 23.068 (68.465) 2.299.143

Operating expenses

Salaries
- 868,311 107.706 30,549 27.319 40.731 11.511 (23.576) 1.062.551

Employee trenefits - 206.346 24.235 5.434 7.133 7.218 2.701 (3,476) 251.591
Medical supplies and medicatiorts • 354.201 34.331 6.298 3.035 8.639 1.371 407.875
Purchased services arrd other 11.366 246.101 35.396 13.390 14.371 18.172 7.437 (22.798) 323.435
Medicaid enhancement tax - 54.954 8.005 2.264 1.776 3.062 . . 70.061
Depredation and amortization 14 69.343 8.125 3.920 2.478 4.194 340 . 88,414
Interest 20.678 21.585 1,054 1.119 228 1.637 63 (20.850) 25.514

Total operating expenses 32.058 1.822.841 218,852 62.974 56.340 63.653 23.423 (70.700) 2.229.441

Operating (loss) margin (5,549) 68.965 6.038 1.629 1515) (2.746) (355) 2.235 69.702

Moo-operating gains (losses)

Investment income (losses), net 3.929 33.310 129 785 645 469 983 (198) 40.052
Other (losses) income, net (3.784) 1.586 (171) (240) 288 31 765 (2.037) (3.562)
Loss on early extinguishment of deta • - . . . (87) . (87)
Loss on swap termination

- - - . - . .

Total norroperating gains (losses), net 145 34.896 (42) 545 933 413 1.748 (2.235) 36.403

(Defidertcy) excess of reverue owr expenses (5.404) 103.861 5.996 2.174 416 (2.333) 1.393 - 106.105

Net assets without dorw restrictions

Net assets released from restrictiorts - 464 565 402 318 . . . 1.769
Change in funded status of perrsion artd other
postretirement berwfits - (65.005) (7.720) . 662 . . . (72.043)
Net assets trartsferred to (from) affiliates 10.477 (16.360) 1.963 128 118 3.629 45 , .

Addltionaf paid in capital . . . . . .
.

. ,

Ottrer changes in rret assets - . .
.

. , _ . .

Change in fair value on interest rate swaps . . . . . . . .

Change in furtded status of interest rats swaps
• - - . . - . . _

Increase in net assets without donor restrictiorrs S  5.073 S  22.960 S 604 S  2.704 S  1.536 $- 1.296 $  1,438 s - S  35.831
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Dartmoutft- Cfiesliire New l.pndon ML Ascutney DH Obligated All Other Non Health

HItcfKOCk Daitmouth- Itedical Hespttsi Hospital and Group Obtig Group System
Onftousandao/dotan) Hesitti HHchcock Center Asseclstton Haatth Center EKmtoatlana SulMotal AfliSates Eltoiinatlons ConsoHdated

Opcnttng ravanu* end ottwr support
PatienI servica rewsnue S S  1,475.314 3  216.736 5  60.466 S  52.014 3 . S  1.604.550 i  94.545 i . $  1.899.095
Prowtsaon for bad debts • 31.358 10.967 1.554 1.440 . 45.319 2.048 - 47.387

Net patient service revenue
• 1.443.956 205.789 56.932 50.574 . 1.759.231 92.497 - 1.851.728

Contracted revenue (2.305) 97.291 - . 2.169 (42.870) 54.285 716 (32) 54.969
Olfter operating levetM 9,799 134.461 3.365 4.169 1.814 (10.554) 143.054 6.978 (1.086) 148.946
Net asaeb released from restrictions SS6 11.605 620 52 44 - 12.979 482 . 13.481

Total operatirrg revertue anO other support 8,152 1.687.313 209.754 63.153 54,601 (53.424) 1.969.549 100.673 (1.118) 2.069.104

Operating expenses
Saisiles - 806,344 105.607 30.360 24.654 (21.542) 945.623 42.035 1.605 989.263
Employee t>enefl& • 181.833 28.343 7.252 7,000 (5.385) 219.043 10.221 419 229.683
Medical suppfes and medicatiortt • 289.327 31.293 6.161 3.055 - 329.838 10.195 - 340.031
Purchased services and other 8.509 215.073 33,065 13.587 13.960 (19.394) 264.600 29.390 (2.818) 291.372
Medic Bid erthancement lax • 53.044 8.070 2.659 1,744 • 65.517 2.175 - 67.692
Depreciation attd amortization 23 66.073 10,217 3.934 2.030 . 82.277 2.501 . 84,778
Interest 8.684 15,772 1.004 981 224 (8.882) 17.783 1.039 . 18,822

Total operating ejqwnses 17.216 1.627.466 217.599 64.934 52.867 (55.203) 1.924.879 97.556 (794) 2.021.641

Operating margvt (toss) (9.064) 59.647 (7.845) (1.781) 1,734 1.779 44.670 3.117 (324) 47.483

Non-operating gabtt (losses)
Investment Incotne (tosses), net (26) 33.628 1.408 1.151 858 (198) 36.821 3.566 - 40.387
Other (tosses) income, net (1.364) (2.599) . 1.276 266 (1.581) (4.002) •  733 361 (2,908)
Loss on early exttoguishment of detx - (13.909) . (305) - . (14.214) . - (14.214)
Lots on swap termlttation • (14.247) - - . (14.247) - - (14247)

Total rmt-operating gains (tosses), net (1.390) 2.873 1.408 2.122 1.124 (1.779) 4.358 4.299 361 9.018

(Deficiency) excess of revertue over expenses (10.454) 62,720 (8.437) 341 2.656 - 49.028 7.416 37 56.481

Met assets without dottor restrictions

Net assets releesed from restrictions - 16.036 . 4 252 16.294 19 . 16.313
CItange to funded status o( perrston and ottter
postirtxerneiU benefits • 4.300 2.627 - 1.127 . 8.254 . - 8254
Net asse& transferred to (from) aflQIstes 17.791 (25.355) 7.186 48 328 . - . .

AddittonalpMd In capital - - - . • . . 58 (58) .

Other cbangea in net assets - - • . - - . (185) (185)
Cftange In fair value on Interest rate swaps - 4.190 . . - . 4. IX . . 4.1X
Cftange in funded status o( interest rats swaps • 14.102 - - . . 14.102 . . 14.102

Increase to net assets wfiftout donor restrvtiorts $  7.337 5  75,995 S  3.578 $  393 5  4.S6S 5 - $  91,668 S  7.308 s (21) S  99.155
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2018

D-HH Health

and Other D-Hand Cheshire aitd NLH and MAHHC and VNH and System
On thousands 0/dotars) Sutrsidiaries SutMidlarles Sutrskllaries SutisidUfies Subsidiaries APD Subsidbrles Elbnlitations Consolidated

Operating ravenu* and other support

Patient service revenue $ S  1.475.314 $  216.736 i  60.488 5  52.014 S 71.458 S  23.087 S . $  1.899.095
Provision for bad detMs • 31.358 10.967 1.554 1.440 1.680 368 - 47,367

Net patient service revertue
• 1.443.956 205.769 58,932 50.574 69.778 22.719 - 1,851.728

Contacted reveraje (2.305) 98.007 . - 2.169 . . (42.902) 54.969
Other operating revenue 9.799 137.242 4.061 4.166 3,168 1,697 453 (11.640) 148.948
Net assets released from restrictions 6Sd 11.984 620 52 44 103 . . 13.461

Total operatir^ revenue artd other support 8.152 1.691.189 210.450 63.150 55.955 71.578 23.172 (54.542) 2,069.104

Operating expertses

Saiaries
- 806.344 105.607 30.360 25.592 29.215 12.082 (19.937) 989.263

Employee benefits • 181.833 28,343 7.252 7.182 7.406 2.653 (4.966) 229.683
Mcdicjl supplies artd medicatiorts - 289.327 31.293 6.161 3.057 8.484 1.709 340.031
Purchased services arxi other 8.512' 218.690 33,431 13.432 14.354 19.220 5.945 (22.212) 291.372
Medicaid enhancement tax . 53.044 8.070 2.659 1,743 2.176 . 67.692
Depreciation arfo amortization 23 66.073 10.357 3.939 2.145 1.831 410 . 84.776
Interest 8,684 15.772 1.004 981 223 975 65 (8.882) 18.822

Total operating expenses 17.219 1.631.083 218.105 64.764 54.276 69.307 22.864 (55.997) 2.021.641

Operatirrg (loss) margin (9.067) 60.106 (7.655) (1.634) 1.679 2.271 308 1.455 47.463

Nonoperating galrts (losses)

Investment income (losses). r>et (26) 35.177 1.954 1.097 787 203 1.393 (198) 40.387
Other (losses) income, net (1.364) (2.599) (3) 1.276 273 (223) 952 (1.220) (2.908)
Loss on earty extinguishment of debt • (13.909) - (305) - - . (14.214)
Loss on swap termination

- (14.247) - - . - . . (14.247)

Total nor>K>perating gains (losses), net (1,390) 4.422 1.951 2,068 1.060 (20) 2.345 (1.418) 9.018

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses (10.457) 64.528 (5.704) 434 2.739 2.251 2.653 37 56.481

Net assets without dot>or restrictions

Net assets released from restrictions - 16.058 . 4 251 . . . 16.313
Change in funded status of pension and other
postretirement t)ef>efils . 4.300 2.827 . 1.127 . . 8.254
Net assets transferred to (from) afTiKates 17.791 (25.355) 7.188 48 328 . , .

Additiorral paid in capital 58 - . . - (58) .

Other charrges in rret assets - • - . . (185) (185)
Change in fok value on nterest rate swaps . 4.190 - . - . . 4.190
Cfrange In forrded status of nterest rate swaps - 14.102 . . - •  . . 14,102

focrease (decrease) in rrel assets without
donor restrictions $  7.392 S  77.823 %  4.311 S  488 5  4.445 $ 2.068 i  2.653 s (21) 5  99,155
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Notes to Supplemental Consolidating Information
June 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying supplemental consolidating Information includes the consolidating balance
sheet and the consolidating statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor
restrictions of D-HH and its subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions between D-
HH and its subsidiaries have been eliminated. The consolidating information presented is prepared
on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America consistent with the consolidated financial statements. The

consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated
financial statements and is not required as part of the basic financial statements.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Fadtnd Prognni
RMMftti and DawMopmanl Cholar

Papwtmawt d Oatann

Nattonal GuM MOtary Opemkn and it<aMenane» (OftM) Protacts

luary taadol Reaaatcti and OMkvmani
uatvy Uadal Raaaaraft and OawlopRiani

DcpartnM o< Odcnse

Envlfonraantal Proaactton A^ancy
Sdenee To AcMava Reaula (STAR) Raiaauli Pregnm

Papaltiiiaid o( HeaBi and Human Sarvtcaa

kauaaluainAdpiad ̂ McHaalDi Raaaardi

EnviranmenM Haath

Envimonwoi HeeBh

NEKS Sivertund Hazanleui Skftattneaa

llaaPi Pregnm tar Tade Subataneaa and Oiaaaaa Raipsay
Ata ^ - -« • - , I , - ^ t «T ^

mwwo c i^snesi 9X1 * U90>O9«

Nadonal Raaeareft Sarvica Award in Primary Cara Maddna

Research and Trataino in Cemptamanary and kHugnllra Health
Rasaarch and TraMng in Cemptamantary and tntagradwa llaath
Reaaarch and Trtaning in Comptamardry arta hdegialNa llaaPi
Raaaareh and Training in Ccmplemeidry and aitagutwa HaaBi

Research on liaNlhcara CesS, QuaHy and OuKomaa
Riiaarch on HaaKhcam CosS, OuaHy and OuBomes
Reaaarch en Itaallhfa Coats. QuaHy and Ouleomat

Uan(aiHaa«h

Manm Heath

Manm Heath

MentH Heath

Uenai Heath

Ueniai Heath

MwAN Heath

ManM Heath

Reaaarch Grarts

Reaaarch Grants

Reaaarch Grants

Reaaarch Grants

Reaaarch Grants

Research Grarts

Reaaarch Grard

Raaaareh Grard

Reaaarch Grard

12.420

12.420

03.113

03.113

03.143

03.161

03.173

03.168

03.213

03.213

03.213

03.213

03.226

03.226

03.226

03.242

03.242

03.242

03.242

03.242

03.242

03.242

03.242

03.242

Award Numbarfpees4hreugh
Wanliflcatien Number

WB1XVW1620076

VM1XVW1610712

RI143

60232

31220SUBS206S

1 R01 TSOOOTSe

eK23ES02S781-0e

RI118

R1000

AMX0010S23

aR21DC01$133-03

T32HP32520

RI112

R1187

12272

NeiPrevtaad

SP30KS024403

R1128

R1140

1K0eMH117347-O1A1

6K23MH116367-a2

6R01MH110eeS

6T32tilH073SS3-1S

6R2SMH06&S02-17

eR01MH10762&^

R1082

R1144

R11S6

Fundbig Source

Direct

OiracI

Paaa-ThrtM^

Pas^Threugh

Pass-Through

'^Oired

Oiraci

Pass-Through

Pass-Through
Oirea

Oiraci

^Obaci

Pass-Through
Pass-Through
Pass-Through
Pass-Through

Obacl

Pass-Through
Paaa-Through

Olroa

Direct

Olract

0lra<3

Olraet

Direci

Pass-Through
Pass-Through
Pass-ThR>ugh

Pass-Through
Erdtty

Trustees of DarvnouOi Cctaga

Ciaare.lnc

Uniraraity of Varmerd

Trustees of Dartmouth Coiega

Ttuasaaa of Darttnoufh Colega

Truateas of Dardnouth Cctaga
Trustaaa of Dardnouth Colaga
Pdmar Coiega of Chiropractic

SoUhamCattamiaUnidratyofttaath

Tnjstaaa of Dardnoulh Catega
Trustaaa of Dardnoulh Coiega

Tiuiiaei of Danmoufh Coiega
Trustaaa of DardnouOi Coiega
Trustaaa of Dartmouth Coiegs

Amourd

Total Paaaad Through
Expandttutos to OutwaclpiaiHi

S  234.630 6

13t.S2S -

2.0SS .

133,560 -

46,275 .

414.465

1.031

1.031

64,957 6.307

111,125

5.067

110.212

6.457

61.160

119.896 61.900

309.112

21,167

446

30,748

12,030

64.421

641.114

6.003

4,690

651.813

54,211

109.228

220,076 64.823

1M,340

157.599

200,805 27.964

11.740

5.697

4.721

894.617 112.7*7
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Ajr)Oucrl

Award Numbarfpaaadrrowgh Paaa-Threugh Tom Paaaad Through
CPDA Maralfleeilen NutiAar Pwidtag Sourca Etrttly Exparrdtluraa 10 Subcadpiand

93.279 6R010A03469943 Dvad 390.647 90.965
93.279 6R21DA044S01-03 Olrad 116.741

Or« AbuM and Adiftami Reaureb Programi 93.279 eR01DA041416-04 Dirad 135.687 62,277
Drug AbuM M AJiacbon Rmebtcb Propmni 93.279 R1I0S Paaa-Threugh Truaiaa* el Oartmeub) Ccbcga 11.957 .

Drug AbuM and Addfcten Reaeareh Pregnma 93.279 R1104 Paaa-Tbrougb Tiustaai ol Owbnoubi CeOaga 4.109 .

Ong Abuaa and Ad4eta> Reaaarab Pregnma 93279 R1192 Paaa-Througb TnoMa el Oarbnoubi Ccbaga 5059

666200 153262

Olacowary and Appbad Raaaarcb tor TarJardoggaf bwrvabona K>
tanprmn Human Haafih 93.2S6 eK23EB02S507-02 Dbaa 96.499 9.562
OiKomiy atri Appbed Raaaarch tor Tacbnetogieal bmowatlona lo
brvoria Human Haabti 93.2S6 eR21EBa2t4S6^ Olrad 23293
Oiaria'ialy ard Appbad naiuatli tor Taebnelogieal bvtevaiiona lo
knptona Hunan HaaBi 93206 RI103 Paa^Througb Tnrsiees ol Oarbnoubi Cobaga 16.635
CHarniinir, and Appbad fTa wiar ih lor Tacbncbigical bmevBlw le
Imprmia Hunan Haabb 93206 5R21EB024771-02 ) Paaa-Througb Truaieaa el Oatbnoubi Cobaga 5.938

144.365 9.582

National CaMer lor AMncmg Tranalatlonat Sdanoaa 93.350 RII13 Paaa-Threugh Tfuaieaa ol Dartmouth Cobaga 342.790
21« Carauy Cuaa Act ■ 8aau Badan Cancar Moet«ahol 93.353 120450) Paaa-ThrcucAi Oana Faibar Carrcet brablula 166.421

CancarCauaa awtPrenwtien Raaaard) 93.393 1R01CA225702 Dbad 54251
Cancar Caun and PrarwiUon Reaaardi 93293 R21CA22777aA Obaa 28.640
Cancar Cauaa and Praraniien Raaaard) 93.393 R01CA229197 Oirad 65.701
Cancar Cauaa and ftarintion Reaeareh 93293 R1127 • Paaa-Throu^ Tnrtiaaa el OanmouOi Cobaga 6.035
Cancer Cauaa and l>ai«aritien Raaaard) 93.393 R1097 - Paaa-Through Tntdaaa el Dartmouth Cobaga 5.870

93.393 R1109 'Pan-Through Tnaiaaa of Oartmouth Cobaga 1.964

93.393 0HMCCAZ22046 Paaa-Threugh The Panrtayhrania Staia Unirataltii 3.173
Cancar Cauaa and Ptananbon Raaaard) 93.393 R44CA210810 Paaa-Throu|^ Cdm Surgical. UC 38241

203.995

Cancar Oalacbon and Oiagtroaia Raiaard) 93.394 4R00CA190e9fr«3 Olrad 1.717
Cancar Oraacbtn and OdgnoaH Reiaardi 93294 6R37CA2121S7-03 Obad 106.110 2.907
Cat)ear Oiaacbiw mtd Oiagrroaia Ruiuari.ti 93.394 6R03CA219445-03 cured 18.880
Cat)car Oraai;bi») »nd Olapt)oaia Raauardi 93.394 R1079 Paaa-Threugh Truiioai d Dartmouth Cobaga 23,031
Cat)oar Oalecbon ar)d Olagf)oai» Raaaarci) 93.394 R1060 Paaa-Threugh Tructaaa ol Dartmouth Cobaga 23.031
Car)car Oalacbon and Otagneaa RaaaarcJ) 93.394 Rioeo Paaa-Threugh Tntalaaa ol Oartmouth Cobaga 8.772
Cancar Oalacttan and Oiagnoaia RaiearcA 93.394 R1096 Paaa-Threugh TniaiMs ol Daibr)outh Cciega 1.174
Carrcar Daiaebon and Diagr)oai> Raaaard) 93.394 R1I24 Paa^Threugh Truiiaai ol Oatbnouth Cobtga 63.174

263.869 2.907

Cancar Tiaaa laa ■ Raaaarcf i 93.395 1IAG1CA23332341 Obad 14.675
Cancar Treabnera Raaaard) 93.395 6U10CA1S06544)6 Obad 27.790
Car)oar Traabnarb Raaaard) 93.395 DAC-194321 Paaa-Threugh MayoCinIc 36.708
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Awvd HuvnbvrfpcM^hfOUQti
MudncAtlon Numbar Fundng Soufca EnOy

TOMI

Expandftura*

AmoMTrt

Pasaad Thfougti
to autoaclplanu

Cancar Traaonart Raaaareti 03.385 R10e7 ftaa-T)irou(^ Tnmaai d OarOneuth CcOaga 2.030
Cancat Traatmani Raaaarcti 03.385 110400 Paaa-Through ^ -I- j '« '■ ' 1 » , M 4

tsv^jiSTt >no v^^rnen 9 nospm 20.430

103.233

Cancer Caraars Supped Gnms 03J97 RIITO Paaa-TTaough Trunaaa e( OareneuBi Ceiaga 05.034 .

CarJtwaacular Orwaiai Raiaareti

Cardtoraaeuiar Obaaaaa Rcjc»ch
03.037

03.037

1UM1HL14737141

7)a3H.142835-02

Olraci

DicM

11.774

05.544

77.310

Luc»Q Oiaeaiaa Raaaarcli

AdMis. MuKukMMaatil artd Skki Otaaaaa* Raaeareh

03.030

03.040

0R01HLI22372.O5

6T32AR0407tO-16

Daad

Direa

305.020

73.048

0.064

Diabawi. DQe«h«. and KUnay Odaaaei Exttanmal Raiaareti 03.047 RiOOO Paaa-Threugh Truataea e( DartmeuDi Ceiaga 70.730 704

Fttamuni RtuaaiiJi Prngrmia in B<a HoaneriHnrna

and Naaaob^cal DnodSan
1 1 1 > in

03.053 OROiNSOS2274-n Oiraa 50.412

- - -*

w nemoQn uwm 03.053 10-3108504)4 ^Oraci 10.010

00 420

atann' and Inlacdoua Dbaaiea Raiearcli
Alaryy and Intactiem OiMaaaa Raaaareh
Aaacgr and Macitoua Dnaaiei RaaaaRti

03.055

03 055

03.055

R1001

RESS13834

R1155

Paaa-Through
Paaa-Threugh
Paas-Threu^

Truaieea o< Dartmeudi Coiege
Caie VMem Reaarva UnworMy
Trvataaa of OaranouSi Ceiaga

3.707

4.170

14.502

22.538

Dioniadfcat RaaaarOi and nawargi TnMng
Biomadical ReaeaRfi and Raaavdi Training
BionwdiciiReia«<A and Raaaawft Training

888

R1100

R1141

Rn45

Paaa-Through
Paaa-Thiough
: Paaa-Through

Truatoes cf DaraneuSi Ceiaga
Trualaea ef Darsnoudi Ceiaga
Trunaai of DaraneuPi Ceiaga

14.001

507

241

15729

CMd Heato and Hwnan Daratopmerd Ewanert RaiaarOi
CMd HaaCh and Human OavetopRieni Eiiranaaal Reseeith

83005

03.005

5P3CH0006841-04

eUG1000240404D

nracl

Diraa
127.400

200.914

10.132

CMd HeaSiand Hunan Daralepmtaw Eoacravai ReaaarO) 03.005 6R01H0067270 Oiraa 314.050 223.605
CMd HeaBi and itaian Oaaaiopmard Ettanaaii RaaearcA
CMd HaaBi and Hunan Danctapmatd Eittanani Raaearct)

03.005

03.005

R1I18

51400

Pat^Threugh
Paaa-Threugh

Truaaeea of Daranoudi Ceiage
Univ a Artanaaa ior Medkaf Sdaneea

13.204

4.690

720.332 234.017

Aging Raaaarcn 83.000 6K23AG05160I-O4 Diraci 76.377 2.803
Agirq Reaeardi 03.000 R1102 Paaa-Threugh Truafaea of DartmeuO) Ceiaga 0.205 .

04.662 2.803

NAaion ReaaarOi 03.007 eR21Ey020e77-03 Oiraa 20.751 3.148

Uadlcal Ubraiy Aaaimea
Uadical Ubraqr Aaaistanca

83.070

03.070

R1107

R1I80

PB«-Through
Pan Through

Treataas of Datamudi Ceiaga
Truataea of OartmouOi Ceiaga

4.273

1.244
-

5.517 .

Imemabetwl Raeaareti and Raaaatch Trairdng
* ' -* ' pa — a aa ' » » «

irvfTwoonv eno KeesBfcn i fWiQ

03.008

03.008

R1133

eR2STVM»7Be3-08

Paaa-Throu|^
Paaa-Threui^

Truaiaea of OanmouO) Ceiaga
Fegarty imematlonaf Career

5.836

90.327 65.087

102.263 65.007

57



Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
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AroouiM

Aarard Numbarfpaaadweugfi Pasa-Through Total Paiiad Through
CFDA tdantmeaaen Number Fundbig Seurea EiMlty Ezpandburaa to Subredplantt

Ocparanant ef HMBt and Human Saivteaa ea.RD Paaa-T>ireugh Laidoa Biemadieal Raaaareh. bie. 201 551

Tetn Depaftman e< Haalh and Human Saraica 5.870.077 883J27

Total Raaaafch tn6 Oaiii»topmanl Ctuatar 8.380.483 883.327

Uodeaai Ckotv

Madcal AaalManea Pregnm 83.778 SfdtH 2-18-18 Para Hnough SouOwm NawHampahba Haan 131.775

Madfcal AaaiManea Pregram 83.778 NMPimlded Pail Through rdH Oapl el HaaBh and Human Sanltaa 1.453.788 .

Madical AaalManea Piograni 83.778 RFP-TOIT-OCOM-OI-PMYSI-OI Pill Through NH OapioiHaaSh and Human Sanleaa 3.100.148

Madieal AaalManea Pragiam 83.778 03420-7235S Paai Through Varmom Dapanmeni ol HeaAh 58.381

Madfcal AaalManea Program 63.778 03410-2a20-18 Paaa-Thfough Vermorb OepaiVnetbel HaaBh 118 780

TotM MadeMd OuaMr 4.889.887
•

lUghioay Salaty Chatar

8ta» and CommunHy Highway Solely 20.800 18-288 Yodh Oparalor Peaa-Through MH Highway Safely Aganey 88.000

Stale and Community Highway Safely 20.800 18-288 BUNH Pata-Through NH Highway Safety Agency 78.815

State and Ccnaiaailhr 1 Ughway Safety 20.800 18-288 Staiawida CPS Pill Through NH Highway Safely Aganey 82.202 -

Telal Highway Salaly Ouaaar 225.777

Odw Sponaomd Pio^ama

Datiaituiaiil of Juattca

Cim VAetknAaalatanea 18.575 2015-VA-GX0007 ■'Paaa Through New Hampahba Oaparbnarb ol Juibca 237.882 .

Improylng B»a Invaittgaltai and Proaacubon ol CMd Atiuaa and the
Regional and toad ChMran'a Adyeeaey Camara 18.758 1-CLAR-NH-SA17 Paei Through Nattonal Chidian'a ABaneo 1.448 -

238.140 .

Ooliai tinani of Sducatlon
Raea loeiaTap 84.412 03440-34118-18-ELCG24 Paae-Tteoudi Varmam Oepi tor CMdran and PaeWat 115.084 -

115.094 -

Oapailiiiaiil d HaaBh and Human SanAeaa
HoapiW Prepamdnaaa Program <HPP) and PuMe HaaBh Sroaigancy
Praparadneaa (PHEP) mgnaif Ccicitacatha Agraemanit 83.074 Not Pro>4dad Paaa Through NH Oapl ol HaaBh aid Humvi Sarwcaa 88,845 .

abed Oiaordar Program: Ptanatalon. Siaveaaneo. and Raaaaich 83.080 GENF00001588485 Pam Through Beaton CMdran't HoapBal 18283

MaiatTMl and CMd HaaSh Padaraf Cmi'iaiiiRlaMil Pioi^aina 83.110 8 T73MC323930101 Oiraei 852.887 591.411
ilaiamal aM CMd HaaCh Padaraf Ci!iiiii,*ilalail Piograma 83.110 0253-85454808 Pasa-TTiroud< Icahn Sched el Madeina at Mount SbMi 18 548

672.545 591.411

Emargancy Midlcal SarvlcaafecCMdran 83.127 7 H33MC3239S0100 Obad 137.087
Caraaia loc Raaaai cli and OarnmBli adon lor i leaPi Premedon
andOlaaaaa PrayanUon 83.135 R1140 Paai Threugh TturfeM ol OartmouPi CcBaga 448,757 .

HfV-ReMad Training and Taehnieaf Aaaittanea 83.145 NelProvidad Paaa Through Unfeatiby ol MnsadwsaQi Mod 8ehed 3.242
Coocdfeiated Oanifeaa and Aceaaa to Raiaareti for Wbnan. intaraa. CMdran 03.153 H12HA311I2 Obad 391.628 -

SuOatanm AbiMa and laenlM HaaCh Sarvloea Preteeia el
Regional and Hafanal SIgnMcanea 83.243 7H78SM063584-01 Obad 24,313 .

Subatanea Abuaa and Idaniaf HaaBi Sanrfcaa Projada of
Regional and Nadorral Signiacanoa 83.243 RPP-2018-DPHS-81-REGION-1 Paae-Thraugh NH Oapl ol HaaBh and Human Sanloes 55,381 .

Subetarea Abuae and Idareal Hoeah Sarvleae Projacb ol
RegtenM and Nailonai SignBeartee 83.343 NoiPiooidad Pasa-Ttvough VatmowOapatimeraollHBiBi 227.437 .

Subatanca Abuaa and Mantel HaaBi Sanrlcaa Preieeta ol
Ragienaland Wallenal SlgnBcanee 83.243 03420AI900SS Paw Tbtough Vatmont OaimBiiaia iBHaMBi 128.764

433.875 -

Drug Fraa CemnajnHaa Support ftogram Grama 83.278 SH78SP020382 Obad - 128.484 .

Daparanam d HaaBi and Hianen Sarvlcea 83.^ RFP-201OOPHS41-REGION-1 Pail TTaough NH Oapl d HaaBh and Human Sanicea 28,838
•
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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Award Numb8ffpaa»4itfeuQh
Mandflcalien Numbv Funding Seurea

Faas>Threugit
Entty

Tetd

Expandlturaa

Amount

PaaMd nireugtt
to Subraelpiantt

Unwondy Canton for L«a<enco in OawoMjnianUI DiioOtlai
Educstton. RoMarah, and Sernee

Adegdon OppanmlUes

Adoption Opponmdiaa

Piuaudlta HaaBi andHoaSh Sarncaa Bloek Grant fcmdod aolaly
w«h PrauoKlon and Pubic HeaBi Funds (PPHF)
UntvenWy Canton for Excelonco in Dovelepmomi OUibtles
Educadon. Reiearcti, and Sarvico

OpWdSTR
OpWdSTR
OploidSTR

OrpatiBod Appcoacftes to Increaao Coteractal Cancar Scfoaring
Hoipdjt Prcparodnaia Program (HPP) Ebola Proparedness

htatemoL bdart and Early Ctiii*iood Homo Mning Grant
htatemai. biM and Early Cliidhood Homs VWting Grant

Naltonal EMoterrorUm HoapU Pteparodnoas Program
Rural llaaWiCan SanrlcesOuOcocb. Rural ItedPi Natworik Dowotop
and SmalHoaBr Can Prowdor Ouaity Impronment

Gractt to Provida Oupatiota Early Intetvtinticin Sar»leaa wtti Roapaet to

HIVOisaasa

Btoclk Grwits far Cotnmunily lAai'itd HeaP Satvlcea

Olecfc Grants tor ConwraaiY Marm Heath Sarvlcaa

Otoek Gram ior ̂ anrdion ard TroaOnonl o( Sutntarrea Abusa

Btoek Grants tor Pravarriien ard Traaonard el Subatanca Abuaa

Btod: GrMs lor Piarerdion ana Traatmara el Subatanca Abuaa

BtoA GrMs lor Prauardion aral TraaOiard el StdMtanca Abida

PPHF Gariatie Educadon Garden

Oepartraar* ol Healh and l**nan Services
Oeparenaid d HeeWi and Hianan Services
Oeperenerd el HeeBi and Hianan Services
Depardnard ol Haalh arri HtsTon Servicea

Dapartmani ol Haain and Humwr Sarvlcaa
Dapaidiwtd d l laaPi and Hurran Servlcea

03.652

93.652

03.756

93.761

93.786

93.786

03.786

03J0O

93JI7

93.670

03.670

03M8

93.912

03.956

9X956

93.950

93.950

93.959

9X959

93.969

93.U01

93.UQ2

93.U03

93.U0«

93.U0S

93.U06

CorporsHdA for Natiotui and Community Sarvtea
AmerCorpa

Total COiar Pngraraa

Total Fatlaral Awards and E^andltuns

AVt000000303

RFP-20184)PHS41-REGION-1

RFP-201»«PHS41-REGiON-l

O0FPSGOO10

RFP-2018-8OAS-0S-IFrTEO

201MOAS-05-ACCES-04

SS-201»«OAS-0S-ACCES-02

5 NUS80POOeoe6

0342a<7SSS

03«2a49S1S

03420^)7623

03420-7272S

6006RH31057^.03

1 H76HA316S4-01-00

9224120

RFP-2017-OeH-OS-FIRSTE

0549-49-491S10-2900

NdPronidad

05-95-49-491510-2900

0342l>Aia033S

U10HP32S19

RFP-2016-OPHS-OS-MJUR

NdProvidod

Nd Provided

Nd Provided

NdProvidad

NdProvidad

17ACHNH0010001

Paas-Thraugh

Dincl

Pass-Through

Pass-Through

Pass-Through
Pass-Through
Pass-Through

-Oiract

Pass-Through

Pass-Through
Pass-Through

Pass-Through

Obact

Pass-Through
Pass-Through

Pass-Through
Pass-Through
Pass-Through
Pass-Through

OirBCI

Pass-Through
Pass-Through
Pass-Through
Pass-Thre>4h
Pass-Through
Pass-Through

Pass-Threud>

University d Nme HampeNn

NH Dapl d HaaBh and Human Swvicss

NH Dad d HaaKh and Hunan Sarvlcaa

NH DepI d HaaBh and Human Servieaa

NH Dapl d HaaCh and Human Servicas

NH Daptd Health and Human Sanocas

Varmotd Oaparliuaia d Hadlh

Varmerd Oepartiuard d I leaPi
Varmont Dapannani d Haaih

VecmM Oapartnard d HaaBi

NH DepI d HoaCh and Human Sarvicas
NH Dad d Haaih and Human Sarvicas

NH Oapl d HaaRh and lhanan Sarvicaa
Foundaiian lor HeaChy Commulties
Pouidation tor I luaffij Cuisissiliea
varmerd Dapatiniatd d I ludBi

NH Hldiway Salaly Agency
NH Daptd Haaih arri HumanSanhcaa
NH Oept d Haaih and Human Sarvicas
NH Dad d Haain and Human Sarvleas
NH Dad d Haaih srid Human Sarvicas

Caudy d Chashiro

32.364

110,524

343.297

134.524

954.356

161.164

243,747

61.206

1.359^67 61.208

91X937

1347

99,641

176,007

278.748

X7a6

138.959

273.666

X49e

32.625

35.123

69.276

54.356

1.695

50.204

164 531

728,055

60.107

46.469

56.419

37.009

39.653

21X301

474.978

72.297

72J97

7.774J13 652.619

S 19.250.480 5 UtS946
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2019

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") presents the
activity of federal award programs administered by Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
(the "Health System") as defined in the notes to the consolidated financial statements and is
presented on an accrual basis. The purpose of this Schedule Is to present a summary of those
activities of the Health System for the year ended June 30, 2019 which have been financed by the
United States government ("federal awards"). For purposes of this Schedule, federal awards
include all federal assistance entered Into directly between the Health System and the federal
government and subawards from nonfederal organizations made under federally sponsored
agreements. The information in this Schedule in presented in accordance with the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Pass-through entity identification numbers and CFDA numbers have been
provided where available.

Visiting Nurse and Hospice of NH and VT ("VNH") received a Community Facilities Loan, CFDA
#10.766, of which the proceeds were expended in the prior fiscal year. The VNH had an
outstanding balance of $2,696,512 as of June 30. 2019. As this loan was related to a project that
was completed in the prior audit period and the terms and conditions do not impose continued
compliance requirements other than to repay the loan, we have properly excluded the outstanding
loan balance from the Schedule.

2. Indirect Expenses

Indirect costs are charged to certain federal grants and contracts at a federally approved
predetermined indirect rate, negotiated with the Division of Cost Allocation and therefore we do not
use the de minimus 10% rate. The predetermined rate provided for the year ended June 30, 2019
was 29.3%. Indirect costs are included in the reported federal expenditures.

3. Related Party Transactions

The Health System has an affiliation agreement with Dartmouth College dated June 4", 1996 In
which the Health System and the Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth College affirm their
mutual commitment to providing high quality medical care, medical education and medical research
at both organizations. Pursuant to this affiliation agreement, certain clinical faculty of the Health
System participate in federal research programs administered by Dartmouth College. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, Health System expenditures, which Dartmouth College
reimbursed, totaled $3,979,033. Based on the nature of these transactions, the Health System and
Dartmouth College do not view these arrangements to be subrecipient transactions but rather view
them as Dartmouth College activity. Accordingly, this activity does not appear in the Health
System's schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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Reports on Internal Control and Compliance



pwc

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed In

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and subsidiaries

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and its subsidiaries {the "Health System"), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as of June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets and of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated November 26, 2019, which included an emphasis of a matter
paragraph related to the Health System changing the manner in which it accounts for revenue recognition
from contracts with customers and the manner in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects
of its financial statements as a not-for-profit entity in 2019 as discussed in note 2 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Health System's
Internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's internal
control.

A de^ciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, loi Seaport Boulevard, Suife500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617)5305000, F: (617) 530 5001, www.pwc.com/us
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Health System's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompllance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston, Massachusetts

November 26, 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance with Requirements

That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on internal

Control Over Compliance In Accordance with the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Trustees of

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and subsidiaries

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Its subsidiaries' (the "Health System") compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Health System's major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2019. The Health System's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Health System's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Health System's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Health and its subsidiaries compliance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, loi Seaport Boulevard, Suife500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617) 530 5000, F: (617) 530 5001, www.pwc.com/us
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and its subsidiaries complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30. 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Health System are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Health System's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's Internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basts. A material weakness In intemal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not Identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston, Massachusetts

March 31. 2020
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reporting

Material v^eakness (es) identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness (es)?
Noncompliance material to financial statements

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs

Material weakness (es) identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness (es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs

Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs

CFDA Number

Various CFDA Numbers

93.800

93.788

93.110

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified opinion

No

None reported
No

No

None reported

Unmodified opinion

No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Research and Development

Organized Approaches to Increase
Colorectal Cancer Screening
Opiod STR
Maternal and Child Health Federal

Consolidated Programs

$750,000

Yes
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Financial Statement Findings

None Noted

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None Noted
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock and Subsidiaries
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Status
Year Ended June 30, 2019

There are no findings from prior years that require an update in this report.
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GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hatnpshjre and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

.1. IdentiilcatioD and definitions...

i  1.1. State Agency Name i
.  '■

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address j
1

33 Capitol Street, Concx)rd, NH 03301 j
'  • 1.3. Subrecipient Name

I  iMerrimack County Child Advocacy Center
i  1.4. Subrecipient Address

(

333 Daniel Webster Highway, Boscawen, NH 03303

■  1.5 Subrecipient Phone #

,  '603-796-6855
1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-200010-2601-0

73-500580

1.7. Completion Date

06/30/2023

1.8. Grant Limitation 0
s  I

18,000.00

'  1 1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen Carr

1.10. Stale Agency Telephone Number i

(603)271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
includins if applicable.RSA 3l:95-b."

1 1.11. Subrecipient Signature 1 1^. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 1 |
—r- 1

j Subrecipient Signature lij^AppUcable : Name & Title of^ubrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable ,

1  i/w f
i 1.1^ Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, Coun^cc^^i^'
'on ^tfybefore the undersigned officer, personally appeared person identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
1 salls&ctorily proven) to be the person whose name is sign^ in block 1.11., and acknowledged that he/she executed this '

P( document in the capacity indicated in block 1.12.
of Notary Public

wy I! f ^ ./
leiSPStlf of Notary Public<Qr.Jt4sl4£^fltlb6$eaDfi.

^tON

VL^» <

ll&
IQitfiCeen Carf

'gency Sign£/ure(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor<s)

'nti

• 9)

Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: A^stant Attorney General, On;
/oA^hu^uZ' AuzAAyyuvt^i^^

/  /
7/28/2021

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2.SC0PE' OF-.WORK;" In cxch'ang^fof7^Mt~fuhds pfovidcd'by'thc'State of New^HarnpsHlreT^acting tlirbugirtHc~A'gency
ideritifled'in BloclTlTl"(hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
*Hhe Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described In the scope of work^attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").
Rev. 9/2015 Page 1 of 8 Subrecipient Initja)(3):

Date:^^^



4.

4.1.

4,2,

5,

5,t,

5.2,

5.3,

5,4,

5.5.

7,

7,1.

7,2.

8.2.

8.3,

9.

9,1,

AREA COVERED, Except as otherwise specificall)' provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrocipicnl shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT,

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become 9J,
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and CouiKil of the Stale of New Hampshire if required (block 1,17), or upon 9.4,
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 Chhe effective date").
Except as otherwise speciHcally provided herein, the Project, including oil
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in I'I'S entirety prior to
the date in block 1,7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date"),
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS- PAYMENT. 9.5,

The Grani Amount is idenlified and more partkulariy described in EXHIBIT B.
anached hereto. 10,

The manner of, end schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B,
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfixitury performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipienl the Grant Amount, The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipienl under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to NiH. RSA 80:7 through 7-c,
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipienl for all expenses, of whatever nature. II-
incurred by the Subrecipienl in the performance hereof and shall be the only, II.I.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipienl for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipienl other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and 11.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2
peyment.<i authorized, or actually made, hmunder meed the Grant limitation 11.1.3
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBREGIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 11.2.

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipienl shall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or 11.2.]

■municipal authorities which shall impose any obligatioas or duty upon the
■.Subrecipiem, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits.
.^RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.
'Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
iDate the Subrecipienl shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in 11.2.2

? connection with the Project, including, but not limited to. costs of
cadministnition, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts .shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the dale three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipient's normal business hours, and as often 11.2,3
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipienl shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agrcemem, The Subrecipienl shall 11.2.4
permit the Stale to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other informiuiqn rtlating to alt matters 12.1.
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, '^ubrecipient" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identined as the Subrecipienl in block 1.3 of then
provisions

The Subrecipienl shalfai its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2,
perform the Project. The Subrecipienl warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and.shall be:properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under ell applicable laws.
The Subrecipienl shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.
subgrontee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elKted or
appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. Intheevem 12.4,
of any di.spute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.
As used in this''Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and 13.
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproduction.*!, drawings, analyse.^, graphic repre.sentation.s,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, alt vrfielher finished or unfinished.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 2 of 8

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipienl shall
grant to the State, or any person designated by it. unrestricted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpo.se whatjtoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other counUy by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with fund.s provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.
The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted aulhwity to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in v^ole or in port, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, irKluding,
without limiurtion, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, end in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments'hereunder in excess'of'such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those l\inds, the
State shall have the right lo withhold payment until such ftinds become
available, if ever, and shall have the right to terminate (his Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEF^LT^REMEDES.
Any'bnc'w'lTrorc of the follbwng acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of defiiult hereunder (hereinafter referred lo as "Events of
Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; trr
Failure to maintain, or permit accra to, the rnorda required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may'lake any one. or
more, or all. of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of De&ult end
requiring it to be rcmcdjed within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending.all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrccipkni
during the period from the dale of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and''l".jj
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any df'its rcrhedies al^law, or in
equity, or both. •
.TERMINATION. ,
In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for.any: reason othCT'lhan
the completion of the Fhoject, the Subrecipient sha^ deliver to the Grant Offictr,
not later then fifteen (15) days after the date of lamination, a report'(7ervinaft|r
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in-'detail all Projcct'Wofk
performed, and the. Grant Amount ,earnedr-j:o iWid .including: tHc: date of
termination. i n r '' '
In the event of Termination under paragraphs^10,'or th^.general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by'thc' Stat^ shall entitle
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount' earned lo and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the StBte shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient ffom any and all liability for damages sustained w
incurred by the State'os a result of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the conuary, either the State or.
except where notice default has bem given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.
CONFLICT QF IN'fEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, offtcer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of thc-goveming body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the'undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her

Subrecipient Initial(s): y

Dale;



u.

15.

16.

17,

17.1

17.'!.1

17.1.2

persona! interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association 17.2.
in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.
SUBRECIPIENT'S RELATION TO THE STATC. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgrantee of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contractors, and 18.
are neither agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees.
shall have authonty to bind (he State nor axe they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the Slate to its
employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTl^CTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest irTthis'Agreement without the prior written 19.
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold 20.
harmless the State, its ofTicers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any end all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account oC based on, resulting from, arising out 21.
of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE AND-BQND.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or 23.
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force,.both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance;
Statutory workmen's.compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the pcrfbrmance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than S1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one irKident, and
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be die
stondvd form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorixed to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days afler written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
woiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of (he provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly deliver^ or given at the rime of mailing by certified mail,
pastage prepaid, in a United States Post Oflice addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION-OF.AG^MENT-AND-TERMS. This Agreement shall be
cohstru^'ih ucord^e with the law'of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and thdr respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
.THIRD PARTTpr^ The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such bcrtefit
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which be executed in a number
of counteiparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and undemanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 3 of 8 Subrecipient Irutia](s):
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EXHJBITA

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. Menrimack County Child Advocacy Center as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from
the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for the Child Advocacy Center
expenses and services for forensic child advocacy interviews provided by the
Subrecipient.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January }, the first quarterly
report is due on April 15'*' or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least three (3) years after the close of the

grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for
review and compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1261 orTanya.pitman@doj.nh.gov

Page 4 of8
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EXHIBIT-B,

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOPs
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000 of the total

Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval through 06/30/22, with
approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued state funding
appropriation and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000 of the total

Grant Limitation from Govemofand Council approval of 07/01/22, whichever is
later, through 06/30/23, with approved'expenditufe reports. This shall be
contingent on continued state funding appropriation and program performance.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, nor after 06/30/23.

Page 5 of 8
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EXmBITC

DOJ State Funding

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Subrecipient authorizes the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) and its
representatives, access to and the right to examine a)! records, books, paper or
documents related to this subgrant.

2. Discrimination Findings - The Subrecipient assures that in the event that a Federal or
State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground of race, religion, national
origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of victim assistance formula funds under
this award, the recipient will forward a copy of the findings to the DOJ.

3. The Subrecipient understands that subgrants are funded for the grant award period noted
on the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in
future years.

4. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the DOJ

that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal or

state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised

while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the DOJ.

5. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims

unless a program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission to generate
program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding scale

that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant

allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

6. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the

agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,

percentage of state funds, and location.

7. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it

be an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit

and any associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit. The
Single Audit report must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months

after the Subrecipient's year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit.

Page 7 of 8
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■EXHTBIT-C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.

Page 6 of 8
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EXHIBIT C

8. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements

available online (either on the Subrccipient's website, or the DOJ's, or another publicly

available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are considered

in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that
such brganization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as

several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial

statements.

9. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to DOJ: I) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non

profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available

upon audit one of the following:

A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

A letter from the State of NH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit

organization operating within the state, or:

•  A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates

its non- profit status

.Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should

also have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non
profit affiliate.

I have read and understand all 9 special conditions contained in this document:

Aos:S,.£. . 1 ̂ rcdo r
Name an^itle of Authorized Representative ,/ a,

Signature Date

Name and Address of Agency

Page 8 of8
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY for County of MERRIMACK

I, Tara Reardon, Chair of the Merrimack County Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that:

1. The Board of Commissioners authorizes the County Administrator to execute any documents

which may be necessary to enter Into contracts between the New Hampshire Department of

Justice and the Merrimack County Child Advocacy Center;

2. This authorization was In full force and effect on the date the contract was signed by the county

representative, Ross L. Cunningham, and Is In effect for at least thirty days beyond that date;

3. This authorization has not been revoked, annulled or amended In any manner whatsoever, and

remains In full force and effect as of the date hereof; and

4. The following now. occupies the office indicated above:
•

Ross L Cunningham

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Commission Chair this

of July, 2021.

20th day

Tara Reardon, Board Chair

Merrimack County Commissioners

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF MERRIMACK

On this the

-7:i

day, month of July, 2021 ORfbreilffre

undersigned officer, personally appeared Tara Reardon wKo acknowtedged-herself to'^be the Cr^r of the
Merrimack County Board of Commissioners and being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing

Instrument for the purpose therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my official sea

Commission Expiration Date:

>iStldts.Ottt»e>BBece/Notary Public

J72D. 2.D25,
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NH hfbllc flUk MonM«tn«ni Mbengi CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs, in accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement end bylaws, Primex' Is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions In the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex* Is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member la subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
lhat are applicable to the members of Primex', including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Prtmex* Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed Included In the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's ilmll of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Uabinty coverage Is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Uablilty) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Llabllliy) only, Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions). D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Em^oyee Benefit Uabltity) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity Is a member In good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may.
however, be revised at any time by the actions of P^imex^ As of the date this certificate is Issued, the Information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

Tl^s Certificate Is issued as a matter of Information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage efforded by the coverage categories listed below.

PaiVeipatlng Memtwr;

iwlerrimadt County
333 Daniel Webster Highway
Suite 2
Boscawen, NH 03303

' Member NumtMr

604

; Company Atfontng Coverege:

: NH Public Risk li^anagement Exchange - Primex^
, Bow Brook Place
i 46 Donovan Street
1 Concord, NH 03301-2624

tiiexpfrarfoh.Oafef
Oenerai Uablilty (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

□ sr □

1/1/2021 1/1/2022 Each Occurrence'

I'.GeherarAggregate^T.;:", J
FlreDamagafAny'one"
fIreV

,Med Exp (Any one P^rsonjJ

:$ 5.000.000
i$.5;ooo;ooo

Automobile Uablilty
Deductible Comp and Coil; $1,000

{Any auto

Combined Single Umit
(Etcn AcdOtnt)

Aggregete

, X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 1/1/2021 . 1/1/2022 X  1 Statutory
Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease - Earn EmpioyM $2,000,000

Disease - Poicy umn

Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) {Blar>k0t Uml. Reptacamant
> Cost (unless olharwtse stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only. 'i
1

—=^_ ,  . _ — .

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: \ AddltlbWCovoreif'PYrtri ~ "LMa Payee^ ■'Primex' ^NH'Publlc Rlsk''Man8gement Exchan^

By:

' NH Department of Justice
33 Capitol St
Concord. NH 03301

Date: 4/7/2021 ^urcell^nhpiffmex.oit
""" Ploasa^direct'lriqulres'to:"

Primex' Claims/Coverage Sorvicea >
S0$-22S-2841 phone

603;228;3893.fex



GRANT AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Subrecipieni hereby
Mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipient Name

Child Advocacy Center of Coos County, Inc.

1.4. Subrecipient Address

278 Main Street, Lancaster NH 03584

1.5 Subrecipient Phone ft

(603) 788-8201

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-200010-2601-0

73-500581

1.7. Completion Date

06/30/2023

1.8. Grant Limitation

S

18,000.00

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-3658

" By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant.
including if applicable RSA 31:9S-b."

1.11. Subrecipient.Signature 1

2 If Applicable

1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient SignM I . *

_  . pecu^hve
A. I

Sub^ipient Si Name & Title Jf Subrecipient Signof 2 If Applicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of
on , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11.. and acknowledged that he/she executed this
document in the capacity indicated in.block 1.12.

M3.I. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(Seal). 4

Christopher J Byrne
Notary ftibBc. ̂ te of New Hampshire
My Commission Expires Auy. 14.2Qg4

l,13'.2.'NJime & Title of Notary l^lic or Ju^ice of the Peace

1.14. State Agency Signature(s)

'KflthUen Carr

1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifG & C approval required)

By; y. y. y. Assistant Attorney General, On: / /
7/28/2021

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On; /  /

2.SC0PE OF WORX: In exchange for grant hinds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

ARF-A COVERED. ExcqX as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subreciplent shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the Slate of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercunder, shall become 9.3.
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.4.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the effective date").
Except OS otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Ehte").
GRANT AMOUNT: LfMITATlON ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT. 9.5.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B,
attached hereto. 10.

The manner of. and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B. and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Gnuit Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.

The payment by the State of the Giant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nature. 11.
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only. 1 I.I.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstartding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and 11.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation 11.1.3
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRRCIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 11.2.

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or 11.2.1
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in 11.2.2
connection w-ith the Project, including, but not limited to, costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipienl's normal business hours, and as often 11.2.3
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolb, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters 12.1.
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Subrecipient" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all ai^licable laws.
The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.
subgrantec, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the Slate, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or
appointed.
lire Grant Officer shall be the representative of the Slate hercunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hereimder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and hisftier decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and 13.
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 2 of 8

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant to the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data
for e.xaminalion, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the Suite, and shall be returned to the
Suite upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDFTIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, iiKluding.
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever, and shall have the right lo terminate this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder, or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the' Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.
TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
rcfctTcd to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, cither the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient. may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, olTicer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any (unctions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her

Subrecipient Initial(s):
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14.

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

19.

20.

pereonal imcrcsJ or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association 17.2.
in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.
SUBRECTPrENT'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrccipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgrantee of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contractors, and 18.
are neither agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees.
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its
employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrccipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses sufTered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on. resulting from, arising out 21.
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE AND BOND.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or 23.
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:
Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than SI.900,000 per occurrence
and S2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State. ■
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Defoult shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No e.xpress waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post OiTice addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the panics hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to ̂ nefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 3 of 8 Subrecipient Initial(s);
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. Child Advocacy Center of Coos County, Inc. as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant

from the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services

provided for forensic child advocacy interviews and victim services provided by the
Subrecipient.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures'
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days

following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January I, thefirst quarterly
report is due on April J5"' or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both

state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this

office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting

documentation shall be maintained for at least three (3) years after the close of the

project.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for
review and compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271 -1261 or Tanya.pitman@doj.nh.gov

Page 4 of 8
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EXHIBIT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval until 06/30/22, with

approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued state funding
appropriation and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/22,

whichever is later until 06/30/23, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued state funding appropriation and program performance.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, nor after 06/30/23.

Page 5 of 8
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

l. Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and

specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.

Page 6 of 8
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EXHIBIT C

DOJ State Funding

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Subrecipient authorizes the DOJ and its representatives, access to and the right
to examine all records, books, paper or documents related to this subgrant.

2. Discrimination Findings - The Subrecipient assures that in the event that a Federal or
Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground of race, religion, national

origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of victim assistance formula funds under
this award, the recipient will forward a copy of the findings to the DOJ.

3. The Subrecipient understands that subgrants are funded for the grant award period noted
on the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in
future years.

4. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the DOJ,

that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal or

state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised

while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the DOJ.

5. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims

unless a program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission to generate

program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding scale

that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant

allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

6. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the

agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,

percentage of state funds, and location.

7. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it

be an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit

and any associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit. The

Single Audit report must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months

after the Subrecipient's year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit.

Page 7 of8
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EXHIBIT C

8. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements

available online (either on the Subrecipient's website, or the DOJ's, or another publicly

available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are considered

in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that

such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as

several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial

statements.

9. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by

submitting a statement to DOJ: 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non

profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available

upon audit one of the following:

•  . A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

•  A letter from the State of NH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit

organization operating within the state, or:

•  A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates

its non- profit status

Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should

also have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non

profit affiliate.

/ have read and understand all 9 special conditions contained in this document:

Name and Tme ofAtithorized ̂ presentative

Signature dj Date

iiild taxifr Q Cnn% CmxjDfu
Name and Address of Agency Main

Lat^caster OH DSS&H
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER

OF COOS COUNTY, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

February 17,2009. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and

is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 608787

Certificate Number: 0005409692

SI 0&

y
BBm

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this [9lhdayof July A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



3 State Street, Suite 1 KimbeHy Preston

Groveton NH 03582 Executive Director

Phone: (603) 636-1999 G00scac@gmail.com
Fax: (603) 636-1185

Child Advocacy Center of Coos County

Certificate of Authority

I, Brian Seals, hereby certify that I am duty elected President of the Child Advocacy Center of Coos Count/s

Board of Directors. I hereby certify the following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of

Directors, duly called and held on April 20, 2016 at which a quorum of the Board of Directors were present and

voting.

VOTED: That Kimberly Preston, Executive Director, is duly authorized to enter into

contracts or agreements on behalf of the Child Advocacy Center of Coos

County with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments

and is further authorized to execute any documents which may in her judgement

be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

I, hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the

date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that it is understood that the State of

New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the

position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any

limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the Child Advocacy Center of Coos County in contracts

with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Attest: _

Brian Beals, Coresident of^he Board of Directors, Child Advocacy Center of Coos County

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me, this day , by Brian Bealsov/iqla&i

Name, Notary Pufcllc or Justice of thof the Peace

UNDA BJANCHETTE, Notuy Pubfc
Commission Expires: My CommiMton Expirea August 8,2023



/XCORO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

07/19/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING iNSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certlflcate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Fairley Kenneally
(M3) 293-2791 (603)293-7188

A^MESS- <3'dey@e$lnsurance.net
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAice

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Co

INSURED

Child Advocacy Center of Coos County

278 North Main Street

Lancaster NH 03584

INSURERS
FirstComp 27626

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2^ REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE iT?Rllv7iil POUCY NUMBER

P6UCVEFP
(MM/DD/YYYYl

KLIOVeVP
(MM/DOnrYYYI LIMITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LUkBILrTY

E  1 XI OCCUR

PHPK2289209 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
J 1,000.000

CLAIMS-MAO
UAMAUb lUKhNlbU J 100.000

MEO EXP (Any ona oaraon)
, 5,000

PERSONAL a AOV INJURY
, 1.000.000

OEI\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLCY JECT CD LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE
, 2,000.000

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO
, 2.000.000

Professional Liability % 1,000.000

1 AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY 1 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
s

ANY AUTO

HEDULED
TOS
IN-OWNED

TOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per panon) $

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HtRED
AUTOS ONLY

SO
AU

BODILY INJURY (Par acddani) t

NC
AU

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPar acddani)

s

t

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMSUhlAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE t

AGGREGATE %

DED 1 RETENTION i %

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS- UABIUTY y 1 N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PAHTNER/EXECI/TIVE
0FFICER/MEU8ER EXCLUDED? '
(Mandatory In NH) '
M yas. dea^lM urtdar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS tMlow

N/A WC0207490-02 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

VI P6P OTH-
RTATIITF ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
, 100.000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
, 100.000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
, 500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarka Schadula. may ba attacliad H mera apaca la raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Slate of NH Department of Justice

33 Capitol Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e 1968-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
P. 0. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI. OH 45201

Date: SEP2 9 2009

CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS
COUNTY. INC.
PO BOX 662
BERLIN. NH 03570

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Employer Identification Number:
30-0532145
DLN:
17053160026009
Contact Person:
SUSAN Y MALONEY ID# 31210
Contact Telephone Nunber:
(877) 829-5500
Accounting Period Ending:
June 30

Public Charity Status:
170(b)(l)(A)(vi)

Fonn-990-Required:
Yes

Effective Date of Exemption:
February 17. 2009

Contribution Deductibility:
Yes

Addendum Applies:
No

Dear Applicant:

We are pleased to infcmi you that upon review of your application {or tax
oYomnt w& have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax
mS section Ml(?)(3) of thnnternal Revenue Code. Contnbutions to y9u aredeductive Snder section 170 of the Code You are also qua ified to receive
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055. 2106
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your exempt status, you should Keep it in your permanent records.
Organizations exempt under section 501(c)(3) of the
as either public charities or private foundations. We determin^ that you are
a public cnarity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this
letter.

Please see enclosed Publication 4221:PC. Compliance Guide fo^- BOKci^p Public
Charities, for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an
exempt organization.

Letter 947 (DO/CG)



CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS

-2-

Enclosure: Publication 4221-PC

Sincerely.

Robert Choi
Director. Exenpt Organizations
Rul1ngs and Agreements • -

Letter 947 (DO/CG)



Child Advocacy Center of Coos County
Job Description

Executive Director

The Child Advocacy Center of Coos County (CACCC) is a child-friendly, family-focused non
profit organization in Coos County. New Hampshire. The Center works in collaboration with law
enforcement, medical personnel, social service agencies, child advocacy agencies, and the
County Attorney's Office to provide a coordinated system of response and care to children who
are victims of sexual and/or physical abuse and their non-offending family members through a
full utilization of a multi-disciplinary team.

Position Summary: The Executive Director is responsible for the overall administration and
management of the Child Advocacy Center of Coos County as well as the day-to-day activities
of the Center. The Executive Director is ultimately accountable to the Board of Directors and
reports directly to the President of the Board.

Program Administration Responsibilities:

1. Keeps the Board of Directors fully informed on the condition of the organization and all
important issues influencing it.

2. Works with the Board of Directors to maintain a shared vision for the future of the
organization and develops appropriate goals and strategies to advance the
organization's mission.

3. Provides leadership in developing program, organizational and financial plans with the
Board of Directors and other staff, and carries out plans and policies as authorized by
the Board.

4. Recommends operational objectives that support the strategic plan and leads the staff in
the implementation of the strategic plan and any operational objectives.

5. Maintains official records and documents and assures compliance with federal, state and
local regulations.

6. Maintains a working knowledge of emerging issues and significant developments in the
field of child abuse investigations.

7. Conducts ongoing program evaluation including outcome measures.
8. Maintains a positive working relationship with the Board of Directors and partner

agencies.
9. Attends New Hampshire Network of Child Advocacy Centers meetings.

Financial Management Responsibilities:

1. Works in partnership with the Board of Directors, the Finance Committee and
appropriate staff and volunteers, to develop and implement appropriate fund raising
strategies to fund the mission of the Center.

2. Develops annual budget and submits to board for approval in a timely manner.
3. Develops relationships and maintains regular cornmunications with funding sources.
4. Identifies grant opportunities, develops proposals and produces required reports to

funding sources.
5. Contracts for and oversees annual audit.

6. Monitors expenditures and income.
7. Plans for core budget selfTSufficiency.
8. Maintains capital assets of corporation.

Page 1 of 2



Community Outreach and Education Responsibilities:

1. Serves as a spokesperson for the Chiid Advocacy Center and liaison to community
groups and the media.

2. Publicizes the activities of the Child Advocacy Center and its programs and goals.
3. Participates in efforts to raise awareness about the CACCC and its mission to protect

children with the general public, community leaders and private sector.
4. Maintains a positive professional reputation in the community and is a good ambassador

for the Center.

5. Develops and maintains positive working relationships with collaborative service
agencies

6. Develops and provides professional training for community agencies on issues related to
child abuse and the role of the Child Advocacy Center.

7. Creates and provides community educational opportunities.

Supervisory Responsibilities:

1. Ensures personnel have appropriate training and direction and acts as day-to-day
administrative supervisor.

2. Supervises CAC staff members including, but not limited to, interns, AmeriCorps
Members and volunteers.

3. Hires and disciplines all personnel in conjunction with the Governance Committee.
4. Facilitates the preparation and delivery of the performance management for the

organization, in conjunction with specialty specific consultants or employees.
5. Conducts performance appraisals of staff.

Other Responsibilities:

1. Any and all other duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.
\

Job Qualifications

The Executive Director is a professional position and the following qualifications are preferred:
1. An advanced degree in business, certified fund raising, social work, psychology, criminal

justice, mental health or a related field with associated work experience.
2. Significant experience in nonprofit management including program development and

advocacy, grant writing, funds development, financial management/bookkeeping and
supervisory responsibilities.

3. Significant professional experience in working with children and families where abuse
and violence are identified issues.

4. Previous experience working within the criminal justice system or child welfare system.
5. A working knowledge of nonprofit management and board development.
6. Experience in grant writing, grant monitoring, fund development and fund raising.
7. A working knowledge of bookkeeping (preferably with QuickBooks), the budgeting

process and financial management.
8. Knowledge and skills in human resources and staff development.
9. Ability to work in a collaborative manner with diverse professional groups.
10. A working knowledge and understanding of family violence, substance abuse and the

dynamics of child abuse.
11. Excellent verbal, written and technical communication skills.

12. Computer skills including Microsoft Office. PowerPoint and other related applications.
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Kimberly a. Hovt Mai

Phone

Email

Driven ♦ Attentive ♦ Conscientious ♦ Diligent ♦ Creative

How I will be an asset to the Child Advocacy Center of Coos County:
♦ 1 have 3+ years of project management/event coordination experience; my varied managerial,
organizational and administrative skills would be key assets in the daily operation of the
organization.

♦ I have 5+ years of experience working with youth and families in crisis due to a
variety of issues, ranging from basic behavioral problems and family conflict, to court involved
delinquency.

♦ My outstanding written and oral communication skills are consistently leveraged for the
resolution of sensitive matters, including for the sake of public communication.

♦ 1 am familiar with many organizations and service providers in the community and have an
excellent professional and personal reputation, as well as, having had positive working
relationships with a variety of community stakeholders, to include local law enforcement,
courts and school administrators.

♦ 1 am invested in my professional development and will evolve to meet the needs of the
organization I work for and the clients I serve, by considering the specific needs within
the community, keeping abreast of trends and seeking resources or additional training as
necessary.

Achievements:

♦ Sustained Mt. Washington Auto Road's high standard of safety, customer service and
participant experience, for their prestigious annual event series.

♦ Assisted in the successful renewal of a corporate sponsorship, resulting in $ 150,000 over a
three-year term.

♦ Improved customer access to event registration, by implementing online registration services,
capturing valuable revenue at the moment of interest.

♦ Implemented a fiindraising component to our most prestigious event, that resulted in the
donation of $4000.00 to community organizations, including the Child Advocacy Center of
Cods County (2014).

♦ Diverted over 100+ youth and adult residents of Coos County from the Juvenile Justice
and court systems, providing mentoring and guidance using the principles of Restorative
Justice, to help them repair the harm caused by their actions to themselves, their families and
the community at large.

♦ Empowered youth to take an active positive role in contributing to the community by
facilitating the completion of over 1000+ hours of volunteer service for local non-profit
organizations and community events.

♦ Instrumental in the expansion of the TCCAP Restorative Justice Center (formerly Youth
Alternatives Programs) to the Lancaster and Colebrook areas, to provide consistent services to
individuals across Cods County in (3) Districts and (3) Family Courts.



♦ Contributed to the success of several community events, fundraisers and professional
development workshops by providing administrative support, volunteer support, fundraising,
solicitation of donations and raising community awareness. Most notably, a free parent
information evening with nationally renowned speaker Michael Nemey, an expert in
adolescent brain development and high risk behavior.

♦ Engaged community partners across the business, health, safety, government and education
sectors to inform, guide and implement relevant and effective substance abuse prevention
strategies in our community through the North Country Health Consortium, on behalf of
SAMSHA and BDAS.

Additional qualifications:
♦ Self-driven, adherence to a high standard of professional excellence and accountability.
♦ Extremely focused and organized, with meticulous attention to detail.
♦ Utilizing available resources and leveraging professional relationships to achieve goals.
♦ Professional demeanor, especially in areas of confidentiality.
♦ Comfortable speaking in front of groups, soliciting donations, commanding attention and being
a champion for my organization and the communities in which I work and reside.

♦ Proficient in Microsoft Office and various online platforms; able to learn new programs and
adapt skills, with ease.

Professional Experience:

♦ Ml Washington Auto Road, Gorham, NH December 2012 - Present
Event Director: Responsible for organizing and executing all aspects of Mt. Washington
Auto Road's historic, signature event series. Securing and coordinating all logistical
support for events, including: calendar and task management; staff coordination,
delegation and recognition (including direct supervision of department assistant); vendor
procurement and cost containment; volunteer recruitment, coordination and
compensation; guest/participant relations and communications; post-event quality
improvement assessment with key staff and supporters; assisting partner agencies and
organizations with event related needs. Additional responsibilities include: organization
and stewardship of event department equipment, files and associated inventory; basic
administrative duties (filing, billing, preparing/disseminating department news and
updates, attending bi-weekly staff meetings). Designated Manager on Duty (MOD),
responsible for the executive management of business's daily operation during assigned
periods, maintaining our optimal standard of safety and satisfaction, for all employees
and guests.

♦ Portland Community Health Center, Portland, ME July 2012 ~ December 2012
-  Executive Assistant. Per Diem: Provide daily support for the chief executive officer of a

federally qualified health center, operated by the Gity of Portland, Maine. Preparation and
editing of correspondence, communications, presentations and other documentation.
Responsible for the daily organization of the office and files (both paper and electronic),
keeping the CEO's calendar and the scheduling of appointments, conference calls, meets
and events, as needed. Organizing meetings, securing meeting space, preparing materials,
and transcribing minutes for weekly operation meetings, bi-weekly staff meetings and
monthly board of directors' meetings. Support health center staff in daily operations of
the facility, including assisting senior management staff on projects and grants, as
needed. Receiving and redirecting telephone communications, greet and assist patients
with basic administrative needs.



♦ TCCAP Restorative Justice Center, Cods County, NH May 2007 - July 2012
-  Program Coordinator: Provide effective alternative interventions to first-time

misdemeanor level, adult and juvenile offenders of non-violent crimes. Individual and
group interaction with youth, mentoring and monitoring clients and tracking their
progress in our client database. Developing and facilitating educational workshops,
securing viable community service sites, coordinating and supervising community service
activities as needed. Corresponding, communicating and fostering effective and positive
relationships with courts, local law enforcement officials, school administrators and
community partners. Knowledge of Restorative and Juvenile Justice processes, including
court proceedings and writing formal motions to the court. Recruiting volunteers,
making referrals to additional services and various other administrative duties. Securing
donations from community organizations and businesses to support organizational
activities. Represented the organization at annual meetings to advocate for municipal
ftmding.

♦ North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, NH February 2011 - May 2014
Community Action Team Coordinator: Coordinate outreach to community groups to
increase engagement in substance abuse prevention in the Berlin/Gorham area.
Participate in community meetings, events and trainings as needed. Work with coalition
members to implement and integrate evidence-based environmental prevention strategies.
Offer support, technical assistance and information to collaborating agencies,
organizations, youth groups, parents and other stakeholders. Assist in information,
research, preparation and implementation of a region specific strategic plan in
collaboration with the New Hampshire Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services and the NH
Center for Excellence.

Education:

♦ College coursework (1.5 years; approximately 15 credits) from Sacred Heart University,
Fairfield, CT. Biology major; emphasis on pre-med. 1998 - 2000.
♦ High school diploma with High Honors, Groveton High School, Groveton, NH. 1998.

Certificates:

♦ Certified Challenge Program Facilitator
♦ Certified SASSI (Substance Abuse Subtle Screening Inventory) Administrator
♦ Completion of NAMI's 12-week, Family to Family Education Program.

Previous Volunteer Organizations:

♦ Family Resource Center, Board of Directors, Fundraising Committee Member
BussinessNH Magazine: NH's Non-Profit Business of the Year, 2011

-  Cumulus Media, WPKQ: NH North Country Year of Service Award Recipient, 2012
♦ New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion Network, Member
♦ Coos County Coalition, Member
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Child Advocacy Center of Coos County:

We hove reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Child Advocacy Center of ,

Coos County (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional

expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's

financial data and making Inquiries of management. A review is substantially less in

scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the
financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountants' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements

on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and

Review Services Committee of the AlCPA. Those standards require us to perform

procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of
any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to

be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our

conclusion.
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Accountonts' Condusion

Based on our review, we ore not aware of any material modifications that should be

mode to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Cdlds PllC

June 15, 2020
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY. INC.

Groveton New Hampshire

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019

Exhibit A

ASSETS

Current ossets

Cosh and cash equivalents

Grants receivable

Investments

Total current assets

Long-term ossets

Office equipment and furniture

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total long-term assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net ossets (Note 2)

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

16,278

20,755

40,531

77,564

19,739

(7,371)

12,368

$  89,932

5,249

5,249

5,249

84,683

84,683

$  89,932

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY. INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Exhibit B

Revenue and'support

Grants and contributions

Fundraising revenue

Interest income

Other income

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

Expenses

Total program services

Total general and administrative

Total fundraising

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Without Donor

Restrictions

$  118,309

4,491

595

2,992

With Donor

Restrictions Total

$  118,309

4,491

595

2,992

126,387 126,387

124,708 124,708

13,410 13,410

2,323 2,323

140,441 140,441

(14,054) (14,054)

98,737 98,737

$  84,683 $ $  84,683

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Exhibit C

Solcries and wages

Payroll taxes

Staff development

Staff recruitment

Depreciation expense

Insurance expense

Professional fees

Travel

Fundraising expenses

Office expenses

Payroll costs

Dues and subscriptions

Printing and postage

Occupancy expense

Bank fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Advocacy

Program

$  59,573

5,324

8,164

939

4,483

20,441

11,429

3,043

9,308

2,004

General &

Administrativ.e

$  3,135

280

49

3,650

236

850

602

160

3,510

223

490

120

105

Fundraising

Expenses

2,323

$  124,708 $ 13,410 $  2,323

Total

$  62,708

5,604

8,164

988

3,650

4,719

850

20,441

2,323

12,031

3,203

3,510

223

9,798

120

2,109

$  140,441

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Exhibit D

Cosh flows from operating activities

Increose (decrease) in net assets

Add (deduct) charges (credits) to operations not

using (providing) cash:

Depreciation

Adjustments to reconcile net assets

to cosh provided by operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in grants receivable

Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities

Net cosh provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

(Purchase) sole of long-term certificate of deposit

Net cosh provided by (used for) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cosh and cosh equivalents

Cosh and cosh equivalents, July 1

Cosh and cosh equivalents, June 30

Supp/ementa/ disclosures of cosh flow information

Cosh paid during the year for:

Interest

S  (14,054)

3,650

5,106

5,249

(49)

(15,477)

(15,477)

(15,526)

31,804

$  16,278

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Noture of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Child Advocacy Center of Coos County. Inc. is o New Hampshire not-for-profit

orgonizotion estoblished to support child victims of obuse ond the non-obusive

coregivers of those children.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The finonciol stotements of the Orgonizotion hove been prepared on the occruol

bosis of occounting ond, occordingly, reflect oil significant receivobles, poyobles,

ond other liobilities.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preporotion of finonciol statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United Stotes requires management to moke estimotes

and ossumptions that offect certain reported amounts and disclosures.

Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements ore presented in accordance with Accounting

Standards Codification guidance for not-for-profit organizations. Under this

guidance, the Organization is required to report information regarding its

financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets

with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. For the year

ended June 30. 2019, Child Advocacy Center has no net assets with donor

restrictions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Organization considers all short-term investments with an original maturity

of three months or less to be cosh equivalents. As of June 30, 2019, all the

Organization's cash deposits were fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%

NOTE 1 - Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

INVESTMENTS

The Organization holds one automatically renewable certificate of deposit in the

amount of $40,531 for a term of 12 months. The fixed interest rate on this

certificate is 2.1290% and matures in May of 2020. Interest earned is added to

principal giving it an annual percentage yield of 2.1499%.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are carried on the books at cost and are depreciated

using either straight-line or modified accelerated methods. The useful lives of the

Organization's assets are listed as follows:
Useful Life

(in_y.ear.s)

Office equipment 5

Office furniture "" 7

The cost of maintenance and repairs is evaluated and charged to expense as

incurred and appropriate, while renewals and betterments with an initial cost of

$2,500 or more are capitalized.

CONTRIBUTIONS

Child Advocacy Center reports contribution revenue according to Accounting

Standards Codification guidance for accounting for contributions received and

contributions made. In accordance with this guidance, contributions received ore

recorded as either restricted or unrestricted depending on the existence and

nature of any donor restrictions.

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as

revenue in the period received. Conditional promises, which depend on the

occurrence of a specified future and uncertain event, are recognized as revenue

when the conditions hove been substantially met.

GRANT REVENUE RECOGNITION

Grant revenue is recognized in the period that the funds are expended for the

purpose of the grant. The timing of revenue recognition may differ from when

funds are received, giving rise to grants receivable or deferred revenue.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Noture of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

INCOME TAXES

Child Advocacy Center of Cods County, Inc. is exempt from federal income taxes

under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.^The corporation has no
unrelated business income and, accordingly, no provision for income taxes Is

reflected in these financial statements.

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Organization allocates its expenses based on time spent in program,

management, and fundraising activities, directly allocating expenditures when

identifiable. The costs of program and supporting service activities have been

summarized on a functional basis in Exhibit C and are further explained in Note

7. Exhibit C is presented as a separate statement in the financial statements and

represents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.

NOTE 2-Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses ore classified based on the existence or

absence of donor- or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and

changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net ossets without donor restrictions - Net assets available for use in general

operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain

grantor-) imposed restrictions. The Organization reports contributions restricted

by donors as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions

expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is

accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All

other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with

donar restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction

expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without

donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets

released from restrictions.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 -Rented Facilities

Child Advocacy Center rents office space at 3 State Street in Groveton, New
Hampshire, on a month-to month basis at $580 per month. Total rent expense
for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $6,963.

NOTE 4 - Going Concern

The Organization is entirely dependent on grant income from federal, state and
local sources to fund its operations. Consequently, any future support currently
remains uncertain. While the Organization believes its funding sources will

remain stable in future periods, and is seeking accreditation in order to be

eligible for additional funding, there is no assurance of permanent continued
funding.

NOTE 5 - Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated all subsequent events through June 15, 2020,

the dote the financial statements were available to be issued, noting that no

events requiring adjustment to the financial statements or disclosure to the

notes thereto ore necessary for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or

other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date,

comprise the following:

20.15

Total assets, at yearend $ 89,931

Less: Non-financial assets, including fixed assets,

net of accumulated depreciation (12,367)

Total financial assets, at yearend 77,564

Less:

Donor-imposed restrictions on cosh making financial

assets unavailable for general expenditure •

Financial assets available within one year to

meet cosh needs for general expenditure $ 77,564

The Organization has a goal to maintain financial assets on hand, which consist

of cash and cash equivalents and grants receivable, to meet a month of normal

operating expenses, which averaged $12,439 in fiscal year 2019.

NOTE 7 - Functionalized Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are

attributed to a program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require

allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that

are allocated include salaries and wages, staff development, insurance, and

occupancy, which are reasonably allocated based on time spent on the

program for which the expense was incurred. Other expenses that are allocated

are office expenses and professional fees, as well as many others, and are

allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

The Organization reports certain assets at fair value in the financial statements.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell on asset in an orderly
transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement

dote under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used

to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market

participants would use in pricing the asset, including assumptions about risk.
Inputs may be observable or unobservoble. Observable inputs are inputs that
reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset

based on market data obtained from sources independent of the organization.

Unobservoble inputs that reflect the Organization's own assumptions about the

assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset based on the
best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as

follows: *

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that

can be accessed at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted

prices for similar assets in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that ore

observable for the asset, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset. In these situations, the
Organization develops inputs using the best information available in the

circumstances.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton. New Hampshire

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (continued)

In some coses, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset might be

categorized within difference levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those coses,

the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the

fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement. Assessing the significance of o porticular input to entire

measurement requires judgement, taking into account factors specific to the

asset. The categorization of on asset within the hierarchy is based upon the

pricing transparency of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to the

assessment of the Organization of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the

asset.

All of the Organization's investment assets are classified within Level 1,, as they

comprise of one certificate of deposit that is invested in a local banking

institution. The CD is valued by the custodians of the certificate using pricing

models based on credit quality, time to maturity, and stated interest rates.

Promises to give are also measured at fair value and are also included within

Level 1.

NOTE 9 - Change in Accounting Standards

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization adopted the following:

ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial

Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses multiple areas,

including the complexity and understondobility of net asset classification,

deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the

lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses ond

investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these

financial statements, accordingly.

ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cosh Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cosh.

Management believes this adoption will clarify the total cash and cash

equivalents affected by the activity reported on the statement of cosh flows.
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CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF COOS COUNTY, INC.

Groveton, New Hampshire

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - Change in Accounting Standards (continued)

ASU 2018-08, Not-for-profit Ent/t/es (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the

Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.

The ASU clarifies and improves guidance for contributions received and

contributions mode and provides guidance to organizations on how to account

for certain exchange transactions. This change is preferable in that it clarifies

whether to account for transactions as contributions or as exchange

transactions. In addition, it clarified whether a contribution is conditional. As a

result, it enhances comparability of financial information of not-for-profit

entities.

As 0 result of the adoption of ASU 2018-08, there was no cumulative-effect

adjustment to opening net assets without donor restrictions or opening net

assets with donor restrictions as of July 1, 2018.

C
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GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Idendficatton and DeflnltioDS.

1.1. Stale Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipient Name

Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Inc.

1.4. Subrecipient Address

100 Campus Drive, Suite 11, Portsmouth, NH 03801

1  1.5 Subrecipient Phone if

(603) 422-8240

1,6. Account Number

02-20-20-200010-2601

-073-500581

1.7. Completion Date

06/30/2023

1.8. Grant Limitation

^ 18,000.00
1.9. Grant'Officer for State Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. StateAgencyTelephoneNumber 1

(603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public rheeting requirement-for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. Subrecipient Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 1

/pfau/eao r/ S^cl / AVa

Subrecipient Signature 2 If Applicable Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of ,
on , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11., and acknowledged that he/she executed this
document in the capacity Indicated in block 1.12.

(SI

1 .13.1. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(Seal)

1.13.2. Name A*Title of Notary Pubiic.or

H. J-h^r/r
1.14. State Agency Signature(s)

"KfithUen Can

1.15. Ntoe & Title of^te Signor(s)

Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: yy .^istant Attorney General, On: / /
7/29/2021

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2.SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant f\inds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block ). I (hereinafter referred to as '^e State"), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (herdnafter referred to as
"the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

Rev. 9/201S Page 1 of 8 Subrecipient initia[(s);

irK BiiacD

1: rfik
Dote: ^7 /IU



4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrtcipicni shall perform the Project in. and with respect to. the State of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE- COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hcrcuitdcr, shall become 9.3.
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreeiaeot by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required.(block 1.17), or upon 9.4.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 (The effective date'^.
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in PTS entirety prior to
ihe date In block 1.7 (hereinafter lefened to aa The Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMrTATIQN ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS; PAYMENT. 9.5.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly describ^ in EXHIBIT B,
attached hereto. 10,

The manner of, and schedule of paymcoi shall be u set forth in EXHtBIT B,
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the saiisfhciory performance of the Project, as determin^ by the State, and as
limited by subpaiagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the ,
Subrecipient the Grant Amount The State shall withhold from the amounl
otherwise payable to (he Subrecipient under this subptragreph 513 those sums

required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for all nperues, of whstever nature, 11.
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only. 11.1.
and the complete, compcnsatioo to (be Subrecipient for tbc Project Tbc State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and 11.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2
payments authorized, or actually made, hercundcr exceed the Grant limitation II. 1.3
set forth in block 1.8 of these genera) provisions. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH' LAWS AND REGULATIONS 11.2.
In connection with the performanee of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orden of fcdenl. state, county, or 11.2.1'
muicipal auihoritia which shall impose any obligations or'duty upoc the
Subrecipient, Including the acquisition of any end all aecessiiy permits.
RECORDS and ArCOtlNTS

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years afler the Completion
.Date (he Subrecipient shall Veep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in 11.2.2
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to. costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) yean after the Completion
Date, ot any lime during the Subrccipient's.nonnal.twtness houn, and as often 11.2.3
u the State shall demand, the Sidnecipicnt shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matten covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall 11.2:4
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, aid to make
audits of ill contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12. '
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other informodon relating to all matten 12.1.
covered by this Agreement. As used In this paregnph, "Subrecipient" includes
•II persons, natural or fictionaJ, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of those
provisions
per.<;qnn^
The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrecipient warrtnu that ell personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform sud) Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrecipient shell not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3,
subgrantee. cir other person, firm or corporation wth whom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the Stale, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or
appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hercundo. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hercundcr, die Interpretation of this Agreement by die Grant
OfTlcer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATAlRETKNTTQNQFDATAr ACrPJlR

As used in this Agreement, the word "dau" shall mean all Informadon and 13:
ihinp developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rqnoducdons, dnwings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer progrenu. computer printouts, notes, letters, mcmcrenda, paper, and
documents, all whether flnished or unftnisbed.

Between the EfTectlye Dale and the Conqiletion Date the Subrecipient ihall
grant to the State, or any peraoo<designaied by it, unrestricted access to all data
for examinatidn.'duplication, publicadon, translatibn, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to cqiyri^t'.m the United Statcs.or any other country by
anyone other than the Stale.
Oi and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the Slate or purchased with ftinds provided for thai purpose under
this Agreement, shill be the property of the State, and shall be returned to (he
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall ftrei occur.

The Sute. and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, iii whole or in part, all data.
CQNOmONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the coatrary, slJ obligstions of tbc State hercundcr, including,
witltout limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued opproprialion of ftinds, and in no event shall the
State be liable for any psyments hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated ftinds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those ftinds, the
Slate shall have the right to withhold payment until such fUnds become

available, if ever, and shall have the ri^t to terminate this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient nMice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hercundcr (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder, or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hercundcr, or
Failure to perform any ofthe other covenants and conditions of this Agreement
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions;
Give (he Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
retiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specificatioo of time, thirty (30) days,from the date of the notice; and if-tbe
Event of Default is not tim^. remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days sfter giving die Subreciptem notice of tcnninatioo; and
Give the Subrecipient a writtdi notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Oruil Amounl which.would otherwise:accrue to thcSuhrecipient
during the period fhrni the date of such notice until such time as (he State
determines that the Subrecipient.has cured the Event of Dcfbull shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off igoinst any other obligation the State may owe to tbc Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement u breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.
TERMINATION

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Pruject, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Offtcer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the d^ of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.

in the event of Tcrmintlion under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these gencrsi
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Rqsoit by the Stale shall eniitJe
(he Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such s Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by die Stale as i rault of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
beretmdcr.

Notwithstanding anything in.this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except ̂ qe notice defkult has been given.to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreqnent without eatoe upon thirty (30).days
written hodce.

CONFLICT QF INiliKEST. No ofticcr, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, ofRcer or employee of tbc State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be pcrfomied, who exercises any ftmctions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undcitakiog or carrying out of such Project,
participate in any decision relating to (his Agreement which affects hia or ber
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17.2.

14.

15.

16.

17,

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

18.

19.

pcraonal interest or the interest of any cmporation. pannership, or association
in which be or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect; in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.
SUBRECIPtPNT'S RFI ATION TQ THE STATE, (n the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgnntee of the Subrecipient are in all respeM indeppdent contractors, and
arc neither agents nor employees.of the State. Neither'the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agents, members, subcontrsctors or subgrantees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are (hey entitled to any of the benefita.
workmen's compensation or emoluments ^vovided by the State to its
employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be sub^tractcd or
subgrsntcd by tiie Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall.defend, indemnify and hold 20.
harmleaa the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the Slate, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or pen^ties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting IVom, arising out 21.
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oO tbe-acts or omiuions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrsntec or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovcrcign immunity of the Slate, «4iich immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement
INSURANCE AND BOND

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or
shall require any subcontrector. subgrantee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:
Statutory wotkmen's canpensation and employees liability insuraace for all 24.
employees engaged In the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability iosar&nce against all.etaims of.bodily injuries,
death or property damage. In amounts not.leu than SI.000.000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
S500.000 for property damage in shy one incident; and

22.

23.

The policies described in subparagrei^ 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standud form employed in the State of Nirv Hampshire, issued by undcrwriten
acceptable to the Suue, and authorized to do hisineu in the State of New
Hainpshlre. Each, policy shall contain a clause prohibiting eincellation or
modification of the.poiicy eariid tban ta.flO) days after written notice thereof
has.been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No &ilure by the Sutc to enforce any provisions
hereof'sfler any Event of Defiuilt ihill be deemed a waiver of its rî ts with
regard to (hat Event, or any subsequent'Event. No expreu'waiver of any Event
of Defauh shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of (he State to enforce each and a!)
of the provisions hereof upon any (brther or other dcfkult on the pan of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other parry shall be deemed to
have been duly delivered or given at (be time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in i United States Post Oftlce aiddressed to the parties at the
addreues first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by'the parties hereto arid only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OP AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of (he State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and thdr respective
successors and awignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only u a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining (he intqtd of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such beneflL
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of eounterparu, each of which shall be deemed sn ori^nal, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes sll prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Tbc 'additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Inc. as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the
New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services

provided for forensic child advocacy interviews and victim services provided by the
Subrecipient.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of die quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January /, thefirst quarterly
report is due on April JS"* or 15 days after the close of thefirst quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state ftmds and match if provided and to produce those dociunents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation shall be maintained for at least three (3) years after the close of the grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for
review and compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271 -1261 or Tanya.pitman@doj .nh.gov

Page 4 of8
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EXHIBIT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days followihg the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made, to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval until 06/30/22, with
approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued state funding
appropriation and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $9,000.00 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/22,

whichever is later, until 06/30/23, with approved expenditure reports. This shall
be contingent on.continued state funding appropriation and program performance.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred

under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, nor after 06/30/23.

Pagc.S ofS
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terras, conditions and

specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.

Page 6 of8
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EXHIBIT C

DOJ State Fimdihg

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Subrecipient authorizes the DOJ and its representatives, access to arid the right
to examine all records, books, paper or documents related to this subgrant.

2. Discrimination Findings - The Subrecipient assures that in the event that a Federal or
State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground of race, religion, national
origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of victim assistance fonnula ftinds under
this award, the recipient will forward a copy of the fmdings to the DOJ.

3. The Subrecipient understands that subgrantis are funded for the grant award period noted
on the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent fading in
future years.

4; The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former.merriber of the DOJ,
that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal or
state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised
while at the DOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the DOJ.

5. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims
unless a program income waiver is obtained from the DOJ. If permission to generate
program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding scale
that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant
allowable activities by the end of the fimding cycle.

6. Equipment purchased with this subgrant shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the
agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,
percentage of state funds, and location.

7. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it
be an .aijdit under 2 CFR or .not, theiSubrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit
and any associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants'Management Unit, ilie
Single Audit report must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months
after the Subrecipient's year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit.
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EXHIBIT C

8. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements

available online (either on the Subrecipient's website, or the DOJ's, or another publicly

available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are considered

in compliance with this.requirement, with no fuithef action needed, to the extent that

such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as

several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial

statements. '

9. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by

submitting a statement to DOJ; 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non

profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and available
upon audit one of the following:

•  A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

•  A letter fixim the State of NH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit
organization operating within the state, or:

•  A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates

its non- profit status

Subrecipients that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should
also have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non
profit affiliate.

7 have read and understand all 9 special conditions contained in this document:

/l^aui2a Q. A/ Su
Name and Title of Authored Representative

Signature SdCtCoa^-i'CI^'U/lcfl/OCaCy

Name and Address of Agency
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SEACOAST CHILD •

ADVOCACY CENTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

July 12, 1999.1 ftinher certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of,State's office have been received and is in

good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 320619

Certificate Number: 0005387826

%

u.
s

o

N

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be.affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 29th day of June A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

SecretAry of State



Child Advocac}^ Center
OP ROCKINGHAM COUNTY

TUftNtNG HURT INTO HOPE.

Certificate of Authority for

Seacoast Child Advocacy Center. Inc.

D.B.A Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County. Inc.

I, Andrew Chace, hereby certify that I am duly elected Board Chair of the Seacoast Child Advocacy

Center, Inc. doing business as (dba) the Child Advocacy Center ofRockingham County, Inc. I hereby

certify the following is a true copy of a vote taken at the June 22"'', 2021, Board of Directors

meeting at which a quorum of the Directors voted.

VOTED: That Maureen Sullivan is duly authorized to enter into contracts-ahd agreements on

behalf of the Child Advocacy Center o/Rockingham County, Inc. with the state of New Hampshire

and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any documents which

may be in her judgment desirable or necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that it is

understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the

person listed above currently occupy the position indicated and that they have full authority to

bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any ,listed

individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, ail such

limitations are expressly stated herein,

DATED: 6/22/21 ATTEST:

Andrew W. Chace, Board Chair



CHILAOV-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ATAYLOR

DATV (Mftl/DOnrVYn

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(8). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If th« c«rtlficato holder l« an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(iee) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the tenns and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlphts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

AssuredPartners New England, Inc.
1955 Lafayette Road
Portsmouth. NH 03801

Laurie Mclntire, ACSR

(Aj^rL E«t: (S03) 399-6302 ^ h«):(603) 399-6302
Laurfe.MclntfreQAssuredPartners.com

rNsumRrstArroRDiNQ coveraqs NAICS

iNsuneii A: PhlladelDhIa Indemhitv Iris. Co. 18056
MSUREO

Child Advocacy Center of Rocklngham
County Inc.
100 Campus Drive. SuKe #11
Portsmouth, NH 03801

emmea a: Hartford Fire Ins. Co.. 19662

iKsuneR c: Great American Int. Co. 16691

arSUMftD:

INSURER B:

arauRERF:

■■ ■ ■ 11 ft 1T n 11» tgMiTi e swrwi^ Tswswwwis^

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE. POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH!RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXaUSIONS AND CONDmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR
LTR TYPE OP INSURANCE

AOOL

M8D
tUBR

YNQ POLICY NUMBER
POUCYEFF
niM/no/ywv\

POLICY exp
ftnimfuwwx UMrra

A X COMMERCIAL orMERAL UABiLITY

JE OCCUR PHPK2160467 10/18/2020 10/18/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

CLAMS-UAI 1  100,000

t  5,000
J  1,000,000

66FL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

Dloc
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE t  2,000,000

PRODUCTS. COMPfOP AGO 1  2,000,000

1

'Atn OUOBILE LUBILmr CpMBINEO SINGLE LIMIT
t

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

S(MfeoNLY

BODILY INJURY fPer Mnenl s

BODILY INJURY fPer ecddanU t
PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPereeddenir 1

1

UMBRELLA UAB

KxceaaLiAO

OCCUR

CLAIMS MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1

AGGREGATE t

DEO 1 RETENTION S
1

B WORKERS COMPENaATION
ANOeWPLOYERrUABUTV y.
ANY PROPRfETOR/PARTNeWEXECUTIVE F—1jJEnggjA^^exauoEOT 1_J
If yet, deecribe under
OesCRtPnON OF OPERATIONS betow

H/A
04WECAB8CGQ 10/18/2020 10/18/2021

E.L EACH ACCtO^ 100,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMFIOYEE,  100,000

E.L. OlSFARF . POt ICY I lUIT t  500,000
C D&O Liability EPP118624e 11/14/2020 11/14/2021 1,000,000

OeSCnfmON of operations I locations / VeHtCLBS (ACORO m. AddmonU R«iwtw Ichaeu*. msy b« •ttMlMd IT men epM# le meuimtf)

New Hampahire Department of Justice
33 Capttoi Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THS ABOVE DESCRIBEO POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION OATS THEREOF, NOTICE WIU BE DEUVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESEMTATiyE

ACORO 25 (2016/03) 01988-2018 ACORD CORPORATION; All righta reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are feglatered marlia of ACORD
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BBployer wurHnn Hmrber:

p. o. BOX asos
asasoKa, cm 45201

rt O 0nn9 A«
Da«0: J/VN 2 2 02-05X0546

DUT:

17053X42007011

SKBOaST CHUD ADWOCncr CHWI'KH mC. Conmrr perron:
100 GSBPOS OR gp» IX TiTga K RMB BSR SICTS XW 95264
^wtuwwjMiu^y^ TPT 03001 Telephone Etadber:

(077) 829>5500
piBT-irw1 WrwUngs

Peocatear' 31
Farm 990. RaqpriJceA;

Tee

JWMfllltfllTP- RppUee:
ElO

Dear Applicant:

pPT-"^ on <wp^»yiii^niri Replied# azal *""■""*'*!) your qMSXBCloas ellX toe ag
In yoor for CTOPgnitian of eTwrnpHqau. 've Zutee deLenamtasd

yon y*' 4iM-wiw* ^8x sectiLon SOX (a) o£ thn Tntrtmal
Bavesme Gbds as on desoxlhod 1a oeotian 501 (o) (3) •

Oa have >■•>»»«• detoBtdxiAd «•>**>» ycm aze not a private within
cbe ^ of nactHon 509 (a} at tlse Oede, booexxso yon are on eagpimf iritfciep
tesorlbed in caotdLcne 509 (lO (1> aaad 170 (b) (1) (A) hrl) .

XT yoor souroBS of cuppoct, or your pm^ooefl, dhamotoac, or lathnrt of
opemtiaa *ange, let no ftmr eo ea oan ooaudder td>e effedt of tho

on your enuu^L «n ■*n«i axid foanfleirtfgi status. XU tiie oaso'of an caend-
mtmnr. to your duuuiiiBiit or bylars# pXeeee oead no e uopy of t±o

ducKU'HCTi!■ ocr bylBss. Also, you no of all rihengen in your
■»!*«» or address.

As of Jtmajaxy X, 1984, you are £ar tmrwc under tlio PttdhniX
Xigxt (eodal eoonrlty cnsne} on reiiiiiiMimtAcfa cC 6100

or mre you pe^ to each of your enplqyeeo dui tug a. calendar year. TUo ere
not •»*■>■«•<<* for ttia tex Inpow^d iiiidwr t±o Fi iliinil tfrifrngiliiyiiiwul Thx A^ (yUiSU •

Sinao yon ore not a. private foaadBtd«, you axe sot oaideet ^ tba ewnlrie
taxes nnder ""iT* *"' 42 of the Code. ' Heeevar, if yon eve isvolyiBd ̂  an. efiiwiy

ii.nii»iicrlm, ttect i rHiumttrtcm irrtphf be n^edt tie the wstIrwi tfirhe of
ceietiQO 4958. ytux ore not euLciMl.iinhny merript ficcn other
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Certified public accountants

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

Board of Directors of the
Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incorporated
100 Campus Drive, Suite 11
Portsmouth. NH 03801

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Seacoast Child Advocacy Center. Incorporated (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31. 2019, and the related
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. A
review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of
management. A review is substantially less In scope than an audit, the objective of which Is the expression of an
opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements In accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement In accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AlCPA. Those
standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for my (our) conclusion.

Accountant's Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

November 16, 2020

Two International Drive, Suite 225 • Portsmouth. NH 03801
603.766.1968 -603.926.3679

f; 603.926.7149 •wlgraccounting.com



SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER. INCORPORATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018

Assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

S 162,950

114,282

S 149,725

96,680

Total Current Assets 277,232 246,405

OTHER ASSETS

Security Deposit • Derry

Other Asset

500

1,753

500

1,753

2,253 2,253

TOTAL ASSETS $ 279,485 $ 248,658

Net Assets

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 279,485 248,658

TOTAL NET ASSETS 279,485 248,658

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS $  279.48S 248,658

See independent accountants' review report.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

2019 2018

CONTRIBUTIONS, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Contributions

Fund raising

Grants

s 74,325

92,441

206,890

$  91,318

67,308

152,443
Total Contributions and Other Support 373,656 311,069

Other Revenues:

Other Income:

Net Investment return 4,344 3,858
Total Other Revenues 4,344 3,858

Total Contributions and Other Revenues 378,000 314,927

EXPENSES

Program services

Mangement and general

Fund raising

218,429

68,067

60,677

182,251

55,143

47,652
Total Expense 347,173 285,046

Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets 30,827 29,881

NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year 248,658 218,777

NET ASSETS, End of Year s 279,485 S  248,658

See independent accountants' review report.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER. INCORPORATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED FOR);

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets $  30,827 $  29,881

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Other assets

Unrealized (gdin)/loss on Investment (3,604)

264

9,256

Net cash provided by operating activities 27,223 39,401

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net activity of securities

Net cash used by operating activities
(13,998)

(13,998)

(105,936)

(105,936)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 13,225 (66,535)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 149,725 216,260

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  162,950 $  149,725

SUPPLEMENT DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

No Interest or income taxes were paid for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

See independent accountants' review report.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND HISTORY

The Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incorporated (the organization), was formed under the
laws of the State New Hampshire and has been granted an exemption from federal Income taxes under
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Through grants and public support this Organization's
mission is to provide a safe environment for the evaluation of alleged child abuse for children 3-18 years
of age. Through collaboration of public, private and community partners, the Organization works to
ensure the safety, health and well-being of abused children.

NOTE 2 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements and notes are the representations of the Organization's management,
who are responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally
accepted accounting principles and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial
statements.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incorporated are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and liabilities.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made and
Financial Statements of Not-for-profit Organizations as required by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC). Under these guidelines, the Organization is
required to distinguish between contributions that increase permanently restricted net assets,
temporarily restricted assets, and unrestricted net asset. It also requires recognition of contributions,
including contributed services, meeting certain criteria at fair values. These reporting standards
establish standards for financial statements of not-for-profit organizations and require a Statement of
Financial Position, a Statement of Activities, a Statement of Cash Flows, and a Statement of Function
Expenses.

See independent accountants' review report.
Page?



SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 2 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or

will meet, either by actions of the Organization under/or the passage of time. When
a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted

net assets and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net

assets released from restrictions. At December 31,2019, there are no donor restrictions.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with FASB ASC 958-605, contributions, including unconditional promises to give,

are recorded as received. All contributions are available for unrestricted use unless specifically

restricted by the donor. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which

they depend are substantially met. As of December 31, 2019, the Organization has no temporarily or
restricted net assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid debt

instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization
held no cash equivalents as of December 31, 2019.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable market value are reported at fair

value. The fair value of investment is valued at the closing price on the last business day of the fiscal
year.

See independent accountants' review report.
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5EAC0AST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Investment purchases and sales are accounted for on trade-date basis. Realized gains and
losses are calculated based upon the underlying cost of the securities traded. Interest and Income Is

recorded when earned. Gains or losses (including Investments bought, sold and held during the year),
and interest income are reflected in the statement of activities as increases or decreases in unrestricted

net assets unless their use Is temporarily restricted by donor stipulations or by law.

Investment securities, In general, are exposed to various risks, such as Interest rate, credit and

overall market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain long-term investments, it is
reasonably possible that changes in the values of these Investments will occur In the near term and that

such changes could materially affect the amounts reported In the statement of financial position.

Fair value measurements and disclosures: Accounts Standards Codification (ASC)

820, Fair Value Measurement, clarifies the definition of fair value for financial

reporting, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires additional

disclosures about the use of fair value measurements.

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price to sell an asset or transfer a liability
(I.e., the exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants. Additionally,
ASC 820 establishes a hierarchy for Inputs used In measuring fair value that
maximizes the use of observable Inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable

inputs by requiring that the most observable Inputs be used when available.

Observable Inputs are Inputs that market participants would use In pricing the asset
developed based on market data obtained from sources Independent of L.I.F.E.
Unobservable inputs are Inputs that reflect L.I.F.E.'s assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use In pricing the asset based on the best Information
available in the circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels
based on the reliability of Inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Observable inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical

assets or liabilities In active market at the measurement date. Level 1

securities include highly liquid U.S. Treasury securities, certain common

stocks and mutual funds.

See independent accountants' review report.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices Included in Level 1

that are observable for the asset or liability through corroboration with

market data at the measurement date. Most debt securities, preferred
stocks, certain equity securities, short-term investments and derivatives

are model priced using observable inputs and are classified as Level 2.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect management's best estimate

of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability

at the measurement rate. Examples of Level 3 assets include investments

in limited partnerships.

Functional Allocation of Exoenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
function basis. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated amongst the programs and supporting

services benefited.

Contributed Services

Numerous unpaid volunteers have made significant contributions of their time in support of
various program activities of the Organization; however, since the services do not require specialized

skills, and do not enhance nonflnancial assets, no amounts have been reflected in these financial

statements.

Rental Leases

In November 2012, the Organization entered into an agreement with the Foundation for

Seacoast Health to lease space for offices and meeting rooms. This lease also includes monthly
payments of janitorial and utility expenses.

The Organization also has a second location In Derry, New Hampshire which is a month to month

lease agreement.

See independent accountants' review report.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income Taxes and Uncertain Tax Positions

The Organization qualifies under the Section S01(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and,
therefore, no provision for federal or state income taxes has been recorded.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial Instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk

consist of cash and cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, that
are federally insured.

Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through December 31, 2019. There is
nothing unusual to report.

NOTE 3-INVESTMENTS

Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incorporated implemented the accounting standard that

defines fair value for those assets (and liabilities) that are re-measured and reported at fair value at each
reporting period. This standard establishes a single authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a
framework for measuring fair value based on inputs used, and requires additional disclosures about fair

value measurements. This standard applies to fair value measurements already required or permitted

by existing standards.

In general, fair values determined by Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets. Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs utilize data points that are
observable such as quoted prices, interest rates and yield curves. Fair values determine by Level 3
inputs are unobservable data points for the asset (or liability) and include situations where there is little,
if any. market activity for the asset (or liability).

See Independent accountants' review report.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The following table presents information about Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incorporated
assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2019 and indicates the fair

value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utiiized to determine such fairvaiue;

December

31,2019 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

INVESTMENTS:

Marketable Equity Securities $ 114,282 $ 114,282 $ $ •

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 114,282 $ 114,282 $ • $

The fair values of marketable securities within Level 1 inputs were obtained based on quoted

market prices at the closing of the last business day of the fiscal year.

Net investment Income for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $4,344.
Dividend Income: $2,600

Capital Gains Distributions: $806
Unrealized Gain/(Loss): $3,604

Gain or (Loss) on Sales: $(1,999)

Fees $(667)

NOTE 4 - TAXES

Ail required tax returns have been timely filed and taxes, including, but not limited to, payroll

taxes, were either paid prior to December 31, 2019, or paid subsequent to year-end.

NOTE 5 - RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying

financial statement to maintain consistency between periods presented. The reclassifications have no

impact on previously reported net assets.

See independent accountants' review report.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER. INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For The Year Ended Decennber 31, 2019

Bank Service Charge

Communitv Awareness

Consulting

Dues and subscriptions

Insurance

Legal and Professional Pees

Meals and meetings expense

Office supplies and expense

Payroll processing fee

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Telephone

Training

Travel

Total Expenses

Without Donor Restrictions

Program Management

Services & General Fund raising Total

EXPENSES

Payroll $ 127,550 $  42,516 $  42,516 $212,582

Employee Benefits $ 31,082 $  10,361 $  10,361 $ 51,804

Payroll taxes 9,917 3,305 3,305 16.527

168,549 56,182 56,182

66

2,391 598

871

2,616 698 174

2,870 1,913 -

1,590 530 530

950 316 316

3,427 1,142 1,142

760 253 253

23,932 5,983 -

31 - -

1,237 309 -

3,951 - -

5,188 741 1,482

$218,429 $ 68,067 $ 60,677

280,913

66

2,989

871

3,488

4,783

2,650

1,582

5,711

1,266

29,915

31

1,546

3,951

7,411

$347,173

See independent accountants' review report.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER. INCORPORATED
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For The Year Ended December 31, 2018

Without Donor Restrictions

Program

Services

Management

& General Total

EXPENSES

Payroll $ 111,491 $ 37,163 $ 37,163 $185,817
Payroll taxes and benefits 17,643 5,880 5,880 29,403

129,134 43,043 43,043 215,220

Dues and subscriptions 3,622 966 242 4,830

Insurance 2,524 1,683 - 4,207

Meals and meetings expense 2,333 777 777 3,887

Miscellaneous 1,545 59 59 1,663
Office supplies and expense 5,564 1,826 1,826 9,216

Payroll processing fee 766 255 255 1,276

Rent 22,218 5,554 27,772

Repairs and maintenance 565 - -  • 565

Telephone 1,019 255 - 1,274

Training 7,885 - - 7,885

Travel 5,076 725 1,450 7,251

Total Expenses $ 182,251 S 55,143 $ 47,652 $285,046

See Independent accountants' review report.
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Child Advocacy Center
OF ROCKINCHAM COUNTY

TURNINO HURT tNTO HORS.

JOB DESCRIPTION

Executive Director

JOB SUMMARY:

Provide management and leadership.to the planning, development, and management of the Child
Advocacy Center of Rocklngham County (CACRC) and Its staff, which supports the needs of Its
multldisclplinary team (MDT) throughout the county. The Executive Director wIIMead CACRC activities,
promote the CAC model, and develop public awareness at all levels. The Executive Director will execute a
fundralsing strategy to provide the organization with the resources necessary support Its mission.

The Executive Director reports to a Board of Directors {"Board"). Working In conjunction with the Board
and Its priorities and objectives, the Executive Director will:

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

•  Coordinate strategic plan development and Implementation for the CACRC.

•  Ensure smooth operation of the CACRC programs Including financial performance, budget
preparation, staffing, marketing, program development, policy formulation and compliance with all

pertinent government regulations and standards.

•  Develop and oversee fundralsing activities, campaigns and strategies.

•  Ensures implementation of policies adopted by the Board.

•  Has chief administrative responsibility for public accountability of the agency.

•  Implementation and monitoring of ail grants.

•  Hires, evaluates, and terminates CACRC staff in the performance of their duties,

•  Provides overall leadership, supervision, and directs staff towards the successful pefforrhance.of
the agency.

•  Coordinate and oversee all public policy artlvltles, especially promoting the CAC model to

legislators to acquire and sustain county, state and federal funding:
•  Network/collaborate with local, county, state, and national organizations dedicated to child safety

issues.

•  Provide ongoing support to the multldisclplinary team and board of directors. Activities are not

limited to, but can include, the following: meeting national accreditation standards, NCA site
review, compliance checks, facilitating training, and other forms of support and advocacy to meet
the CAC model needs.

•  Help create a strong sense of unity and coheslveness among the staff and multldisclplinary team.
•  Design and direct the Implementation of a public relations campaign Including, outreach and

education to other state organizations and partnership agencies regarding the mission and value of

CAC's.



Child Advocacy Center
OP ROCKINGHAM COUNTY

TUININO NUMT INTO NOfC.

•  Organize, schedule and attend all board of directors' meetings. Generate monthly financial reports,

Create agenda for Board meetings. Prepare and distribute meeting minutes of each board meeting.
•  Act as a statewide GAG membership representative to the GSGA at local, state,.and national

meetings, as appropriate.

•  Generate a monthly status reports to the GSGA Board of Directors on financial and program
performance.

•  Other responsibilities as designated by the CAGRG Board of DIrertors.

REQUIREMENTS;

•  Master's Degree In relevant field or bachelor's degree wlth five years' experience.
•  Management experience or Its equivalent.

•  Experience with non-profit organizations preferred.

•  Kno\vledge of the dynamics dfchlld development and child abuse;

•  Experience with problem solving.

•  Demonstrate ability to worit.ln a collaborative manner with diverse professional groups.
•  Experience with budgets, writing grants, and fundralslng.

•  Excellent verbal, written and technical communication skills.

•  High degree of commitment, strong organizational skills, consistent follow-through, self-motlvatlon,
and the ability to lead professionals towards a common goal.

SUPERVISION:

•  The Executive Director will be supervised by the Executive Committee of the Board.

•  The Board Chair will be responsible for annual elevation of the Executive Director

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS:

•  Excellent Interpersonal skills and ability to work effectively with different.constituencles

•  Excellent writing and verbal communication skills and a collaborative management approach
•  Strong organizational leadership skills and ability to manage multiple projects simultaneously
•  Self-starter with ability to work,Independently as well as in a team

•  Ability to communicate passionately a commitment to the GAG movement

•  Cross cultural'competence and sensitivity

•  Gomputer ahd up-to-date technology skills



DR. MAUREEN SULLIVAN

EXPERIENCED EXECUTIVE

Experienced strat^c and operations executive with a focus on identifying market opportunities, financial management, and
fund development across the public and private sectors. Excel at team building, growing market segments, and being a
visionary for emerging business needs from concept to product, to customer. Develop motivated teams that exceed goals in

AREA OF EXPERTISE

■ Entrepreneurial Leadership •  Fundraising & Grant Writing ■ Team Building 6c,Management
■ Strategic Planning ■  Strategic Partnerships Sc ■  Community Outreach
■ Budget Management Relationship Building ■ Risk Assessment 6c Cdsis
■ NonrProfit Development ■ Market Research 6c Analysis Management

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY, Portsmouth, NH
Executive Director, 2007 to Present

Provide leadership in the overall.strat^c and operational programming, as well as the execution and sustainabUity of the
mission. As the face of a nationally accredited Child Advocacy Center, provide outreach to partner agcndcs to include but not
limited to Domestic Violence & Sexual Assault Advocates, Prosecuting Attorneys, New HampshircDcpartment of Health and
Human Services, Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force, and the state Victims of Crime Act office. Responsibilities
include:

•  Program Impact: Coordinate a team approach with 39 police departments. Federal Bureau of Investigation, Homeland
Security, county attorney's office, child protective services, and mental and medical health providers; serve over 300,000
residents within Rockingham County; ensure programmatic excellence andmaximum impact is achieved by establishing
operational benchmarks, setting timelines, and making child safety our number one priority. More than doubled corporate
and individual donor base.

•  Financial Mano^ment: Overcame limited reserve.in operating funds and a drop in state and county funding following
the economic crisis while growing the operating reserve; provide oversight for invested assets including the first planned
giving program with the NH Charitable Foundation to support the long-tcrminlission and vision; attracted over:$1.75
million in private donations while savirig Rocldngharh County over $4 million.

•  Outreach: Increased thc;usc of'outside r^burces such as volunteers, rctired.dtizens, and university interns to expand
services to the community; spokesperson in the community and mediia throu^ press releasw, social networking, and
television and radio spots..Responsible for press releases and media relations.

>

•  Public Policy: Conducted extensive outreach.and networking with state and bcal public policy-makers'with an emphasis
on Members of the House and Senate Appropriations Committee to reauthorizing the Victims of Child Abuse Act and
Scaate.Bill,366 casino bill to address the ftinding problems facing child abuse victims.

•  Risk Assessment/Crisis Management: Developed a 24-hour Homicide Protocol for the New Hampshire Attorney
General for children that witness a homicide. Collaborate with the NH Internet Crimes ag^st Children Task Force on
the investigation, intervention and prevention of computer-facilitated crimes against children.

•  Leadership: Led and coordinated the community stake holders' panel, which included members of community
groups, in the interviewing process of six finalists for Portsmouth Chief of Police presented by the International
Association of Chiefs of Police

NEW HAMPSHIRE POUCH STANDARDS & TRAINING COUNCIL, Concord, NH

1



Council Member, 2019 to Present

Appointed by Governor John Sununu, servii^ as a community member on tfae-s'tate advisory committee.
Responsible for the overall direction and leadership of the New Hampshire Police Academy to include overseeing
the management and strategic operations.

COLDWELL BANKER RESIDENTIAL BROKERAGE, Portsmouth, NH
Real Estate Broker, 2004 to 2007 '

•  Entrepreneurial Leadership: Define business strategy, market research, customer contact, and sales support; emphasis
on market assessment, developing pricing proposals, sales forecasts, and an operation and profit plan.

• Marketing Sc Sales: Developed collateral, direct mail programs, advertising, and joint markrring alliances; significant
customer contact, market assessment, pricing analysis, direct sales and contract n^otiation.

INTERNATIONAL & AMERICAN WOMEN'S CLUBS OF AMSTERDAM & LONDON, 2002 to 2004
•  Volunteer/Fimdraising: joined the social and nonprofit organization with an objective of fostering an understanding

among people of different cultures, lifestyles, and nations while supporting local charities that benefited women and
children. Organized fundraising events and collaborated with charities throughout the local Amsterdam community.

MARCONI COMMUNICATIONS, Pctaluma, CA (Formerly Mariposa Technology, Inc)
Director of Market Intelligence & Communicatibps, 2000 to 20:02

Recruitcd.by CEO to broaden Mariposa's.posidon in the global teleconimunicatipnsimarkeL.Rctainediby the Marconi Global
executive team to develop and.'implemcnt marketihg programs to idendify portfolio gaps, :attracQvc. markets, ;and strategic
alliances. Responsibilities included gathering market data and synthesizing key competitors, industry trends, and market
forecasts. Selected achievements include:

• Worked on a cross functional team to translate complex technologies into clear, maricct-focused product ret^uirements.
•  Provided the research data to enhance decision-making capability and contribute to the achievement of;a ,$390M business

plan objective in 2001.
• Mana^d outside suppliers and industry partnerships to ensure consistent incorporation of products arid systems while

coordinating with l^al and outside counsel to evaluate viability of third party rdationships.
•  Developed marketing collateral, conference presentations, and white papers for publication.
•  Responsible for company-wide product and system definition, including development of capabilities needed to expand

into new lines of business as well as global m^ets.

EDUCATION

DOCTORATE, LEADERSHIP STUDIES, Organizational Development, Franklin Pierce University, Rindge, NH
MASTER OF SCIENCE, Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
BACHELOR OF SCIENCE, Marketing, University of Massachusetts, Amherst, MA

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING CERTIFICATION
Adverse ChUdhood Experience Master Triuncr - Certificate from AGE.Interfecc.Rob Auda MD,.Laura PbrtaMS
Executive Leadership InstituteTor.Law Enforcement Executives • Certificate from.FBFLaw Enforcement Exec.
Development
Reflective Leadership for Law Enforcement Executives - Certificate from FBLLaw. Enforcernent Exec Development
Command Institute for Law Enforcement Executives - Certificate from FBI Law Enforcement Executive Development
Supervisor Leadership Institute for Law Enforcement Executives - Certificate from FBI Law Enforcement Executive
Development
Extended Forensic Interview Training - Certificate from the National Children's Advocacy Center, Huntsville, AL
Forensic Interviewing of Children - Certificate from the National Children's Advocacy Center, Huntsville, AL'
Commercial Sexual Exploitation of Children - Certificate from the Office ofJuvenile, Justiceand Delinquency Prevention
Accreditation of the National Children's Alliance Standards for Operating a Child Advocacy Center - Certificate from
the National Children's Advocacy Center, Huntsville, AL
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Prevention of Child Abuse: A Multi-Disciplinary Team Approach, - Fox Valley Technical College, Appleton, WI
Understanding and Managing Complex Ethical Sihiations Jh Child Abuse Practice - Certificate of Attendance, 28*
Annual Symposium on Child Abuse„HuntsviUe, AL
Sustainability of Child Advocacy Centers: Funding through Branding - Certificate from the National Children's
Advocacy Center, Huntsville, AL
Grant Writing - Certificate.from University of Southern Maine, Portland, ME
Child Abuse and Neglect Protocols • Certificate of Training from New Hampshire Attorney General's Office
Child Abuse Investigations Training- Certificate from Fox Valley Technical Coll^ Appleton, WI

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
Rockingham County Chiefs Association (RCCA) - Secretary-elect
Great Bay Community College - Chair of the Student Development Advisory Board
International Association of Chiefs of Police - Associate Member
University of New Hampshire's Peter T. Paul School of.Business and Economics - Adjunct Instructor
Leadership Seacoast • 2004 graduate
New Hampshire Network of Children's Advocacy Centers -Vice Chair
Portsmoudi Rotary Club past board member
Community Leadership Award - University of New Hampshire Community Leadership Program

PROFESSIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Funding Intelligent Transportation Solutions through Public/Private Partnership - Presentation.and publication to
the Third World Congress and Intanational Bridge, Tunnel and Turnpike Association on how inno^^tivc tdecommunication
and state government parmerships can work to develop state-of-the-art methods to.resolyc funding problems.

Restructuring New Hampshire's ChUd Advocacy Centers; Forging Eflfcctive Alliances - A dissertation on collaborative
deasion-making model and servant leadership for utilizing local knowledge and input within the context of Child Advocacy
Center development and the state's ability to combat child abuse.



SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INC

Andrew Chace - Chair
Board Member Since: 5/2016

Sally Aldrich - Vice Chair
Board Member Since: 4/2011

Samantha Elwell - Secretary
Board Member Since: 5/2016

Erik Johnson, CPA - Treasurer
Board Member Since: 9/2017

Angela Ferris
Board Member Since: 5/2018

Brad Russ

Board Member Since: 1999

Frank Firicano

Board Member Since 8/2019

David T. Salois

Board Member'Slnce: 1/2018

Julie Golkowski

Board Member Since: 1/2011

Allyson Kreyclk
Board member since 9/2020

Jonathan. Melanson
Board Member Since 2/2019

Captain Darrin Sargent
Board Member Since: 12/2019

Richard Sawyer (Chief Deputy RCSO)
Board Member Since: 09/2016

Kristina Seid

Board Member Since: 12/2018
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